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2 Al & F
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

2 Y R
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PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

LE 3 iRy

DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
BREZEDE - ERYE

Gross Floor

Site Area Area (included
Type of Attributable (Total Site Area) underground) Expected
Number  Item Name  Location Property Portion Interest R EEMBE Completion Date  Lease Term
Fr i HAARE  ERE wEEE 2R BEfids  (AAbm) (BWT) AR HE MR
1 Changsha Changsha, Commercial ~ Commercial  100% 504.03 mu 181,135 Medium-term
Outlets Wangcheng District, 1% Portion (362,020 sq. m) ity
RWRHK Tengfei Village, [E4 504,031
Magiaohe Village, (362,020F %)
Dongma
RUZHEE
AR > S HEA -
KB
1.1 Commercial 84,782 Main part
North Portion completed
GRS FRIEEM
1.2 Commercial 96,353 May 2018
South Portion ZE—NEHA
B3
2 Changsha Changsha, Residential, ~ Residential ~ 100% 1,086.76 mu 922,074 N/A
Outlets Wangcheng District, Commercial ~ Portion (724,505 sq. m) TR
Reib A Tengfei Village, g HE HEER 1,086,761
Magiaohe Village, (124,505°F 5 %)
Dongma
R1b K16
TeHE ~ S HRIA
HEHE
2.1 Residential 102,796 Majority of
Phase 1 the main part
fEE—H completed
Kbz
FRIERL
2.2 Residential 393,299 June 2015
Phase 2 ZE-TEAN
frE=H
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PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

WAL A
Gross Floor
Site Area Area (included
Type of Attributable (Total Site Area)  underground) Expected
Number Item Name  Location Property Portion Interest B HEMH Completion Date  Lease Term
F 4 HHAW  EmE WEEY AR BAHESE (BB (RWTF)  HEHERIH AR
23 Residential 24,793 August 2016
Phase 3 e SN ING
fEE=H
24 Residential 154,094 September 2017
Phase 4 “FZ—tiEA
fEEMH
2.5 Residential 43,840 May 2018
Phase 5 “Z—-N\ERA
fEEaH
2.6 Residential 58,595 June 2019
Phase 6 “E-NERA
iy
27 Residential 52,112 April 2020
Phase 7 ZERZRAENA
LY
3 Huailai Zhangjiakuo, Industrial Whole Portion 50% 156.06 mu 104,038 April 2015 Medium-term
Wineries Huailai County, (small B (104,038 sq. m) S X L] i
AR Sangyuan Town, private 156.061%
Zhangguanying wine estate) (104,038°F 5 %)
Village, I
Xiaxiang Ling (/M)
Village Northwest
AR TR
RIAGREEH
EEE GILE
4 Qinhuangdao Central Golden Coast, Residential, ~ Whole Portion 40% 1,077 mu 502,600  December 2019 Medium-term
Z2EHH  Changli County, Commercial % (717,955 sq. m) ZEEFZA i
Beidaihe, Qinhuangdao 1€ ~ Hi¥ 1,077k
Municipality (117,955F %)
REETLEN
L1AeE 2 o
W
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o BRLE W i 5203 A

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Richly Field
China Development Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to report the
audited consolidated annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2013 (the

“Year”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in property development, property
management, building construction and maintenance and trading of
fashion wears and accessories. It typically acquires land and on sells
part of its interests to selected developers or financiers in order to

optimize the use of the Group’s financial and operational resources.

During the Year, with persistent concerns over the “European debt
crisis”, China’s economic growth was advancing with caution.
Accordingly, China’s investment growth and export growth receded.
However, China’s economic growth potential was still strong. Its
property market gradually recovered from the adverse effect caused by
the tightening measures of “purchase limit”,“mortgage limit”, “limit on
pre-sale” policies and the property market as a whole has shown a slow
upward trend. Transaction turnover recorded in key cities rebounded
and transaction prices also gradually stabilized. In the Year, the
property sector saw a more remarkable demand shift towards property
upgrading, under which integrated development projects became the
mainstream industry trend.

The outlet property development project with commercial and
residential portions under Hunan Richly Field Real Estate Limited* (1]
B PR AT B 2E A FRA F]) (“Hunan Richly Field”) in Changsha,
Hunan Province, the PRC (the “Changsha Project”) is the major
property development project of the Group.

During the Year, infrastructure construction for Changsha Project is in
progress and model rooms for the residential portion and the greening
and landscaping works of the Changsha Project were further improved.
Earth and stone construction works for the residential portion A also
commenced during the Year. As at 31 March 2013, the pre-sale permit
for the area of 60,782 sq.m. in Changsha Project was obtained. For the
commercial portion, the interior and exterior decorations, car parking
spaces and greening works were partially completed. The Outlet Plaza
has substantially been completed and is open to the public.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B T o i 543

Marketing activities for the Changsha Project progressed smoothly.
During 2013, the Group launched several promotion campaigns geared
towards the Changsha Project, constantly seeking to optimize the
product structure and increase the proportion of marketed products
targeted for rigid demand. The direct-sale stores of Nike, Adidas,
New Balance etc. have commenced business and recorded promising
turnover. The interior decoration work was carried out for “Le Tian”
international cinema which has an area of approximately 7,000 sq.m.
above with 11 screens. The cinema will carry out its operation in
January 2014. In addition, Pizza Hut, Starbucks, KFC automobile
shuttle restaurant, The North Face, Puma and Polo gear would

commence business one by one.

In addition to the Changsha Project, the Company has investments in
property development projects in other cities in the PRC, which include
Qinhuangdao and Huailai in Hebei Province and Changchun in Jilin
Province.

During the first quarter of 2012, Qinhuangdao Outlets Real Estate
Company Limited (“Qinhuangdao Outlets”), a 40%-owned associate
of the Company, successfully obtained state-owned construction land
use rights for an area of 1,077 mu. The land is located at the Golden
Coast of Changli County in Qinhuangdao of Hebei Province, which is
opposite to the Forest Sports Park, to the west of the coastal highway
and near the Beidaihe Tourist Resort, a traditional tourist destination
in Northern China. Leveraging on its geographical advantage,
Qinhuangdao Outlets plans to construct a large-scale seaside, self-
contained holiday property complex consisting of shopping, tourism,
leisure, holiday and residential elements in one. The project is currently
undergoing preparations for the preliminary stage of construction,
including fencing and backfill work, in order to well prepare for the
official kick-off of project construction. This is a comprehensive project
which can enhance the popularity of the surrounding projects to a
great extent, and therefore it has been one of the key projects in Hebei

Province and has become a local landmark urban complex project.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B T o i 543

Huailai Dayi Wineries Company Limited* (53 K — 7 %5 1 5 A bR
/~y#l) (“Huailai Wineries™), a 50%-owned associate of the Company,
obtained state-owned construction land use rights for an area of
104,037.82 square meters located in Sangyuan Town, Huailai County,
Hebei Province, the PRC during the year of 2012. The parcel of land
was jointly planned with another parcel of land obtained via a lease
by Huailai Wineries, leveraging on the resources of the homeland
of Huailai grape wine and the geographical advantage in its close
proximity to Beijing. It is planned to establish a private wine estate with
features of grape plantation and wine brewing to fulfill the business,
social, as well as travelling and leisure needs of upmarket habitants in
the greater Beijing region. In order to better launch the project, Huailai
Wineries intends to launch a display area for concept promotion.
Electricity and water supply, leveling of road and site of display area
and part of the greening and plantation in such display area were
completed. During the Year, the Group devoted energies in the planning
of the private wine estate project and the design of the showroom in the
demonstration area as well as the transformation works for barren hills
and slopes, the grape planting, greening showroom works, etc. in the

demonstration area, preparing for construction works.

Globe Outlet Town (Jilin) Limited (“Jilin Outlets”), a 42%-owned
associate of the Company, is in the process of bidding parcels of land
in the Shuangyang District, Changchun, Jilin, the PRC. As at the
end of September 2013, the controlling shareholders of Jilin Outlets
have contributed a total US$11,541,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$89,789,000) as the registered capital of Jilin Outlets. In addition,
a loan facility of RMB35,000,000 arranged by the controlling
shareholder to the Jilin Outlets remains. As at the end of September
2013, Jilin Outlets has deposited a preliminary tender guarantee deposit
in the total amount of RMB110,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HKS$138,732,000) to the Finance Bureau of Shuangyang District,
Changchun in respect of a proposed bidding of certain land parcels
located in Shuangyang District, Changchun, Jilin, the PRC. According
to information available to the Jilin Outlets, it is expected that the
tender process for the first phase of land parcels with the area of 462
mu will be conducted by the local government in the first quarter of
2014.

During the Year, to streamline the Group’s operations, the Group
passed a resolution to wind up a 50%-owned associate of the Company,
Jiangxi Globe Outlets City Co., Ltd* (VTP LR 3E i 4 BT 1A FR
ZvH]), (“Jiangxi Outlets”). As at the reporting date, the preliminary
procedure for the liquidation of Jiangxi Outlets is still underway.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B T o i 543

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Year, the Group recorded a total turnover of approximately
HK$27,943,000 as compared with approximately HK$50,843,000 in
the year ended 31 March 2012 (the “Corresponding Year”). As set out
in note 6 (a) to the consolidated financial statements, during the Year,
the Group had not been able to generate any revenue from the sale of
the properties, and the turnover of the Year was mainly attributable to
the construction revenue of approximately HK$27,414,000 relating to
the provision of construction services for some of the infrastructure
and supporting facilities surrounding the Changsha Project, which
was recognised based on the percentage of completion method in
accordance with the relevant accounting policies.

The loss attributable to equity holders amounted to approximately
HK$96,901,000 as compared with approximately HK$91,907,000 in the
Corresponding Year. The loss per share for the Year was approximately
HKS$1.09 cents as compared with approximately HK$1.03 cents for the
Corresponding Year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS
The Group did not have any significant investments during the Year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

On 7 November 2012, # HSgf (L) HEM M AR H (Richly
Field (Beijing) Investment Consulting Co., Limited*), a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company (“Richly Field Beijing*) and
Zhongrong International Trust Company Limited (“Zhongrong Trust”)
entered into an acquisition agreement (the “Acquisition Agreement”),
pursuant to which Richly Field Beijing as the purchaser agreed to
acquire 49.25% equity interest in Hunan Richly Field from Zhongrong
Trust as the vendor for a cash consideration of RMB224,000,000 (the
“Acquisition”). The Acquisition was completed on 13 November 2012.
As the remaining 50.75% equity interest in Hunan Richly Field is
owned by Globe Outlets City Holdings Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, after completion of the Acquisition,
Hunan Richly Field has become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. The entering into the Acquisition Agreement constitutes a
non-exempt connected transaction for the Company under Rulel4A.13
of the Listing Rules and should be subject to reporting, announcement
and the Independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The Company however did not publicize the
transaction and seek Shareholders’ approval on a timely basis.

S 5 1o

WARFERN AEBEKMEEERELY
27,943,000¥ 70 > M2 —F—4F = =+
— H IR (THEAFEE ) HIAY £550,843,000
W o WNER A MBS R M EE6(a) Tl » A
FEWN > ASSE F R AR B 8 B T A b AR AR ]
Wets o AR B E E TR E nEYIHE
E 38 0 o> £ 78 TAE T e 2535 i £2 it 2306 AR %5
FITTS I £ 4 i 25 427,414,000 7T > A B 448
O MR 45 4 BH & w1 B 4% 58 LA 4 He A AR
N

REZS A AEAL 518 40 5596,901,000% 7T >
JEAEFE &9 /591,907,000 7T o AANAE FE 1) &
JBE s R 40 5 1. 09 HEAL » AR AR 3 I 40 25 1.03 6
il

HARE
TAAAERE - ARSI AR AT R B

P8 2> ) B B 2 ) W B RO % i

RoFE—TAEF—HLEH AANFREHERE
B 2 W) FE SEAR IR (Jbst) &R A BR 2
A ([ H 248 A 5 ) B ool B BR A5 R
FRZS A (T H RS 5C ) 5T 57 Y B fop o (1 e %
Wk l) o PRI > A H SEREIWRAL R (FEAE T
] 2 1) A RS RE (1 2 2 07) Wi I ma s H
49.25%JKctE > Bl UE A R ¥224,000,00070
(Mg ]) o et —F——F+—H+=H
SEN o HHA AN F A B N R B RR A
Hr 55 48 AT IR B A PR R I A
FH R T 50.75% B HE > A Ui B 58 iUAR - 9 R
FH 8 25 A s ) A B T 0 W) o AR R b T LRI
SE14A N30 - BT 37 WS B i A | I e
B EAL S > ZESE BRI 14A % A B
R~ A AT B A S R R ME 2 BLE o
AR ) NI B TR RN g N R B 32 G B R i
HRHLHE -

Annual Report 2013 —. % — ZARAE g



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B T o i 543

10

After discovery of the transaction, the Company immediately alerted
the regulators and made the relevant announcement. Details of the
Acquisition were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 30 May
2013.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group mainly finances its business operations with its internal
resources and loan facilities from banks and financial institutions.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had cash and bank balance of
approximately HK$50.3 million (2012: HK$29.5 million). The Group’s
current ratio (measured as total current assets to total current liabilities)
was 1.49 times (2012: 1.48 times). The increase in the current ratio was
mainly due to the increase in property under development.

As at 31 March 2013, the secured and un-secured interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$946 million (2012: HK$374 million) and HK$6 million (2012:
HKS$Nil) respectively. The gearing ratio, which is calculated as a
percentage of total interest bearing borrowings to total equity, was
203% (2012: 44%). The increase in the gearing ratio was mainly due to

the significant increase in interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

Details of bank loans and other loans repayable of the Group were set
out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

Property development is capital intensive. As set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 25 November 2013 and 6 December 2013, on
21 November 2013 and 5 December 2013, Hunan Richly Field and the
Entrust Bank entered into various entrusted loan agreements, pursuant
to which, the Entrust Bank was entrusted by a company established
in the PRC, who is a third party independent of the Company and the
Company’s connected persons (within the meaning under the Listing
Rules), agreed to lend Hunan Richly Field entrusted loans in the total
amount of RMBI1.2 billion. The Group’s prepaid land lease payment
with a net carrying amount of HK$568 million as at 31 March 2013
was pledged to secure the entrusted loans of the Group. As at the
reporting date, the drawdown of the entrust loans in the total amount
of RMB1.2 billion has taken place. The Directors have given and will
continue to give careful consideration to the liquidity and performance
of the Group and ensure that the Group will have sufficient working
capital to finance its operations and meet its financial obligations as

and when they fall due.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2013, property interest held by the Group with
net carrying amount of approximately HK$615,621,000 (2012:
HK$330,437,000) were pledged to a PRC bank and a financial
institution for the Group’s borrowings. In addition, as at 31 March
2013, a loan from a financial institution was secured by the Group’s

entire equity interest in Hunan Richly Field.

Details are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURES

As the Group’s bank or financial institution borrowings, bank and cash
balances and accruals, trade receivables and trade payables were mainly
denominated in Renminbi, the Group had not significant exposure to

foreign currency fluctuation.
COMMITMENT

On 18 March 2010, Hunan Richly Field and Wangcheng Economic
Development Zone Construction and Development Company Limited*
(2 Bk 2 BA I g 5% B #% A ®l) (previously known as Wangcheng
Development and Construction Investment Company Limited* (%347
B 4% 5l % & 480 ) (“Wangcheng Investment”), a state-owned entity,
entered into a construction contract, pursuant to which Wangcheng
Investment appointed Hunan Richly Field as the primary constructor
to provide construction services for some of the infrastructures and
supporting facilities surrounding the Changsha Project, which mainly
include municipal power facilities project, earth project, drainage and
sewer project and gardens landscape project at a cash consideration of
RMB251,474,000 (equivalent to HK$310,797,000). As set out in note
6(a) to the consolidated financial statements, based on the percentage
of completion method in accordance with adopted accounting policies,
the Group recognized a construction revenue of HK$27,414,000 (2012
(Restated): HK$50,554,000) the Year.

Details commitment in respect of property development expenditures
are set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In 2012 and 2013, the Group entered into a number of lease agreements
(the “Tenancy Agreements”) with its tenants in relation to the lease of
certain shop premises developed under the Changsha Project. Pursuant
to certain Tenancy Agreements, the shop premises shall be available for
occupation during the period from August 2012 to May 2013.

During 2012, the PRC government launched a series of adjustment
measures and policies to control the property market. These regulatory
control measures and policies had caused a slowdown in the pre-sale of
the properties of the Changsha Project, which in turn added pressure on
the Group’s capital requirement and further resulted in the slowdown in
the construction progress of the Changsha Project. As the results, pre-
sale of the properties of the Changsha Project was below the Group’s
expectation. During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group made
certain adjustments to the original design of the Changsha Project to
meet the local demand. These adjustments which required the approval
from the local relevant government authorities had also affected the
construction progress of the Changsha Project. As the construction
of Changsha Project was behind the original schedule, during the
year ended 31 March 2012, the Group was not able to deliver the
shop premises to a number of tenants in accordance with the agreed
timetable set out in the Tenancy Agreements. Pursuant to the Tenancy
Agreements, the tenants could terminate the agreements and/or claim
against the Group for the delay in the delivery of the shop premises on
the basis of loss incurred or the number of days delayed.

The Group has been in discussions with the tenants regarding the
delay in the delivery of the shop premises. Some of the tenants have
terminated the Tenancy Agreements with the Group with initial deposits
having been refunded by the Group. For those tenants who are willing
to continue its lease, the Group has been in discussions with them
regarding the revised terms of agreements by offering them certain
discount on the leasing fees or rent-free period as compensation for
the delay. As at the date of these financial statements, the Group has
not received any claims for compensation from its tenants against the
Group, and no estimation can be made on the quantum of such potential
compensation. With respect to the terms of the Tenancy Agreements,
for which calculations of compensation have been specified, a sum of
HK$530,000 (2012: HK$325,000) was recognised as provisions for
such compensation as at 31 March 2013. Details are set out in Note 36
to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, the Group did not have

any material contingent liabilities.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2013, the Group employed a total of 274 employees
(excluding Directors) as compared with 230 employees (excluding
directors) as at 31 March 2012. The Group remunerates its employees
based on their performance, working experience and prevailing market
parameters. Employee benefits include medical insurance coverage,

provident fund and share options.

PROSPECT AND OUTLOOK

Looking forward, rigid demand will continue to drive the growth of
mainstream property projects in core cities in the PRC, where property
prices in first-tier and some second-tier cities will face some upward
pressure. In addition, the newly launched policy of modern-mode
urbanization is expected to bring new development opportunities and
challenges to the property market. Although the property sector is a
direct beneficiary under the new policy, in the course of promoting
modern mode urbanization, it will bring, in addition to housing,
relevant ancillary sectors to the region, such as service, commercial and
industrial sectors, etc. Therefore, developers are bound to face higher
demands in respect of their planning and professional capabilities.
Besides, while the Central Government insists to adopt the property
control policies and the scope of pilot property tax charge is expanding,
the property sector will continue to accelerate its pace of optimizing,
upgrading and innovative development, making it a trend of launching
more remarkable products that are integrated and diversified.

Notwithstanding the general optimism of the property market, with
refinancing now in place for the ongoing development of the Changsha
Project, the Group will cautiously manage its property portfolio by
swiftly reducing its inventory in respond to market changes, and will
adjust its development projects to uphold the brand philosophy of
“Richly Field Town”. Whilst strengthening its compliance by engaging
a compliance adviser and reinforcing its internal control by instituting
an internal audit function, the Group will also carefully manage its
finances and is in the process of looking for strong strategic investors
to fully exploit the asset potentials of the Group.

D L % %7 I B 3

RoF—ZEZA=Z+—H > REEBEAL R
B A274% (FEFERIN) > MEE T —
“HEEZH =1 —HAA2304 8 B (EER
Hh) o BF AL BRI S 2 KRB - T
VERS i S BiAT B 7 o (B B HE P64 55 %
PRER A ~ ARE S X HE -

e B2 B i

=

JE BB ORAE o A R RO A A A ) v A 0 I
TR £ P5 M TH H R > — BN R
Yok T AR TR L BRJBE T o T A SRR R
At R TR SUD 51 2 5 i B 4 A 5
AN PR o IR M BT BT B R Z 4 AT
3 > (AR T R R B AR IR BR S R A
IR i B AN BRI L > AR 36 ~ 7 3
TESE TR % R i A L o) S SRSERE )
SRINHHRESR 1 o BEAb - 78 o S BUR B 157 R 44
73 3t E A 2 TSR T s R i T K 14 15
DU > J5 i AT SEE AL THON AT 8 R E)
T AR - BT R AR AN 2 Tl
A -

165 B ) S T 3 SRR BL  (ELBE R A A )
BRI Z S RIETHME > &
B B A B LR SE AL B R D
B DLRE S i 0 A o NI B R 8% R IR
H oo BRERR [ H/NGR GBS o AL EE R
ZH 5 BRI 0 A AR L - Sl 4 % 1A
A A T R LA R[] A R B > BRLCR] RE > A
A5 FH 5 i A PR BB R M0 R B
TIHEIR 2 R EE & U e i M A L B 2 &
FETET] -

Annual Report 2013 —. % — ZARAE g

13



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EHE

14

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out
in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income on page 47 of this report.

There will not be a payment of a final dividend for the Year. (31 March
2012: Nil)

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the authorised and issued share capital of the Company are

set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 50 and in Note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

The Company had no distributable reserve as at 31 March 2013 (2012:
Nil).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of

the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers was more than 90% of the Group’s total revenue for the
Year.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The percentage of purchases cost for the year ended 31 March 2013
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

—  the largest supplier 55%
—  five largest suppliers combined 90%

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted
above.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 152 of this report.

This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of
this report are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

HE Guang

WONG Kin Fai

MA Jun (appointed on 17 December 2013)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

HUANG Shao Xiong

WANG Yuan Xun

CHEN Wei (appointed on 17 December 2013)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
YIU Fai Ming (appointed on 2 May 2012)

HOU Rong Ming (appointed on 11 June 2012)

LIN Qi (appointed on 11 June 2012)

LIU Ming Fang (resigned on 25 April 2012)

HE Chuan (resigned on 11 June 2012)

HSU Wai Man Helen (appointed on 21 November 2013)
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Pursuant to Bye-Law 99 of the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr. He
Guang, Mr. Wong Kin Fai, Mr. Huang Shao Xiong, Mr. Wang Yuan
Xun, Yiu Fai Ming, Mr. Hou Rong Ming and Mr. Lin Qi shall retire by
rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company.

Pursuant to Bye-Law 102(B), Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen, Mr. Ma Jun and
Mr. Chen Wei will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will be offering herself for re-election.

The term of office of each non-executive Director is not specific but
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the general meetings
of the Company in accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2013, the interests of the directors, the chief executives
and their associates, in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws
of Hong Kong) (“SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed
to have taken under such provisions of the SFO) or, as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transaction by Directors of

Listed Companies, were as follows:
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LONG POSITIONS

Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each of the Company

LID<S

K2 F] BE IR AT 0.0578 70 2 2 A%

Approximate
Number of Aggregate
Number of unlisted percentage of
issued ordinary underlying the issued
shares held/ shares capital of
Name of director Capacity interested interested the Company
IEEEE ¥) AR bo) (o N/
REfi 2 BB FE b AH B AT BRA
WA 271 W BB H Je A B H [ipidia:-%
(Note 4)
(Htit4)
HE Guang (Note 1) Held by controlled corporation and 1,440,000,000 34,500,000 16.60%
personal interest
i (Mfat1) P R A AR A RE 45
WONG Kin Fai (Note 2) Held by his spouse and personal interest 30,000 25,500,000 0.29%
wEHE (M FE2) UL R A B AR HE £
WANG Yuan Xun (Note 3) Held by his spouse 7,950,000 - 0.09%
ECH (Mat3) HEC R A
Note: Htat

1) Sino Dynamics Investments Limited, which is the registered holder of 1)  #%1,440,000,000/% B iy = % %c % A ASino
Dynamics Investments Limited {5642
EHEAR o AR IR O B o TS SE A B
L1 7% 1,440,000,000 8 A7 T A HE 45 o

1,440,000,000 shares, is wholly owned by Mr. He Guang. Mr. He Guang is

deemed to be interested in 1,440,000,000 shares under the SFO.

2)  Mr. Wong Kin Fai is deemed to be interested in 30,000 shares held by his

spouse under the SFO.

3) Mr. Wang Yuan Xun is deemed to be interested in 7,950,000 shares held by

his spouse under the SFO.

2)  ARPERE S I BRG] SR o AR Bl A
i H BB A 230,000 5 5% 3 b A B 25 o

3)  AREERE S KN EME] > oo E e AR o A
i H AR A 27,950,000 8 B 5 e A HE 25 -

4)  Unlisted underlying shares are share options granted to the directors pursuant ~ 4) I TR B B o AR R A 2 ) B R
P27 0 A > A7 Bl A SO A R 5
39HEHA4H -

to the share option scheme of the Company and details of which are set out

on page 39 to page 44 of this report.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, the chief executive
and their associates, had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debenture of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to
be recorded in the register kept by the Company under Section 352 of
the SFO or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transaction by Directors of
Listed Companies as at 31 March 2013.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2013, other than the interest s of certain directors as
disclosed under the section headed “Directors’ and chief executives’
interests in shares and underlying shares” above, the interests and
short positions of persons in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who is,
directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of
any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meetings of any other members of the Group, or substantial
shareholders as recorded in the register of substantial shareholder
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were
as follows:

LONG POSITIONS

Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each of the Company
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LIY<S

A4 Al R T {6 0.057 7T 2 2 IR
Number of issued Approximate
ordinary shares and  percentage of the

unlisted underlying issued share capital

Name of shareholder Capacity shares held/interested of the Company
Hf WA
C 47 % 38 B & A~ FE
Bk H by Ik b R B e 4 e H BATRAT 2 b
Sino Dynamics Investments Ltd (Note) Registered owner 1,440,000,000 16.21%
Sino Dynamics Investments Ltd (f/7#) EwiHFeA A
Leung Ho Hing Registered owner 2,340,000,000 26.35%

S {ny L LR R EN

Note: Sino Dynamics Investments Limited, which is the registered holder of
1,440,000,000 shares, is wholly owned by Mr. He Guang, an executive
director of the Company.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, no person (other than
the directors of the Company) who had an interest or short position in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who is, directly or indirectly, interested in
5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other
members of the Group, or any other substantial sharcholders whose
interests or short positions were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

To the best knowledge of the Board, at no time during the Year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any directors or their respective
spouse or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them, or
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other body

corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Having made all reasonable enquiries and based on the available
books and records, the Board is not aware of any material interest in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the date of this report, none of the directors, the shareholders
of the Company and their respective associates had any interest in a
business which causes or may cause a significant competition with the
business of the Group and any other conflicts of interest which any
such person has or may have with the Group.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions are set out in Note 39 to the

consolidated financial statements of the Company in this report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

The Board is not aware of any contract during the Year entered into
with the management and administration of the whole or any substantial

part of the business of the Company.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefit schemes are set out in Note 2.3 to the
consolidated financial statements of the Company in this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES

During the Year, the Company and any of its subsidiaries did not
purchase, sell or redeem any of the Company’s listed shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws or the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer

new shares on a pro rata basis to the existing Shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules during the
Year and up to the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
Details of the significant events after the reporting date of the Group

are set out in Note 43 to the consolidated financial statements of the

Company in this report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EHEHE

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the Year
were audited by Ernst & Young. A resolution for their re-appointment
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

He Guang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 6 December 2013
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Although there were some internal control weaknesses which are being
addressed, the Group is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance. During the Year, the Company has applied
the principles of and complied with the code provisions (“Code
Provisions™) of the former Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “Former Code”) and of the new Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) effective from 1 April 2012 as set out in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) except for the following deviation:

CODE PROVISION A.2.1

This provision states that the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer (“CEO”) should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The division of responsibilities between the chairman
and chief executive officer should be clearly established and set out in

writing.

During the Year, Mr. He Guang assumes the roles of chairman and CEO
of the Company. The Board believes that at the Group’s development
stage, this structure helps to make planning and execution more
efficient. The Board will review this situation periodically and will
consider steps to separate dual roles of chairman and CEO as and when

appropriate.

CODE PROVISION A .4.1

This provision requires the non-executive directors should be appointed
for specific terms, subject to re-election at the general meeting of the
Company.

During the Year, all the non-executive Directors are not appointed for
a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation and reelection
at annual general meetings in accordance with the Company’s Bye-
Laws and Code Provision A.4.2, and their term of appointment would
be of a length of not more than 3 years. As such, the Board considers
that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s
corporate governance practices are no less exacting than that required
under the CG Code.
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CODE PROVISION C.2.6

In accordance with this provision, the issuer without an internal audit
function should review the need for one on an annual basis and should
disclose the outcome of this review in the Corporate

Governance Report.

During the Year, although the Company has not established a formal
mechanism and an internal audit function to monitor the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control system, arising from transactions that
had not been reported under the Listing Rules, the Company engaged
an external, independent professional accounting firm to review all
the material transactions as well as the internal control system of the

Company.

CODE PROVISION C.3.3

This provision requires that the terms of reference of the audit
committee should include at least the duties specified in the CG Code.

It was found that during the Year, the terms of reference of audit
committee of the Company were incomprehensive without the inclusion
of minimum specific duties. With the assistance of the externally
engaged professional accounting firm, the Company has reviewed
and revised all the terms of reference of the Company’s committees.
The revised terms of references of the Company’s committees were
published by the Company on 26 November 2013.

CODE PROVISION D.1.1

This provision requires that when the Board delegates aspects of
its management and administration functions to the management, it
must, at the same time, give clear directions as to the management’s
powers, in particular, where management should report back and obtain
prior board approval before making decisions or entering into any
commitments on the issuer’s behalf.

During the Year, the Company did not have sufficient written
procedures documenting clear directions as to the delegations of
authorities of the Board and as to the management’s powers. With the
assistance of the externally engaged professional accounting firm, as
at the reporting date, the Company has developed written procedures
documenting the directions as to the delegations of authorities of the
Board.
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CODE PROVISION D.1.2

This provision requires that an issuer should formalise the functions
reserved to the Board and those delegated to the management. It should
review those arrangements periodically to ensure that they remain

appropriate to the issuer’s needs.

During the Year, the Company did not have sufficient written
procedures documenting clear directions as to the delegations of
authorities of the Board and as to the management’s powers. With the
assistance of the externally engaged professional accounting firm, as
at the reporting date, the Company has developed written procedures
documenting the directions as to the delegations of authorities of the
Board and the relevant procedures will be reviewed periodically by the
Board.

CODE PROVISION E.1.2

This provision requires the chairman of the Board to attend the annual
general meeting (the“AGM”) and arrange for the chairman of the audit,
remuneration and nomination committees (as appropriate) or in the
absence of the chairman of such committees, another member of the

committees to be available to answer questions at the AGM.

During the Year, the chairman of the Board did not attend the AGM
held on 29 April 2013 as he was engaged in an important business
meeting in the PRC. The chairman of the Board delegated an executive
Director to chair the aforesaid AGM.

INTERNAL CONTROL

As disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 25 June 2012, 10
August 2012, 6 March 2013, 10 April 2013 and 30 May 2013, 24 June
2013, 28 August 2013 and 5 December 2013, during the audit work for
the year ended 31 March 2012 and the internal control review of the
Group, it was discovered that there were four connected transactions
(the “Past Connected Transactions”) which were conducted without
the prior approval of the Board and were not in compliance with the
requirements under Chapter 14A of Listing Rules for proper reporting,
disclosure by way of announcements/and obtaining independent

Shareholders’ approval.
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During the Year, in light of the discovery of the Past Connected
Transactions, the Company has engaged independent professional
internal control consultants to review and assess the adequacy of the
corporate governance, financial reporting procedures and internal
control environment of the Group, ascertain the circumstances in which
the Past Connected Transactions were conducted and assess whether the

Past Connected Transactions were isolated incidents.

As at the reporting date, the internal control review and the
investigation have been completed. According to the investigation
report, there was no indication suggesting that there were (a) other
undisclosed connected and notifiable transactions; (b) other significant
connected and notifiable transactions that had been conducted without
the prior knowledge and approval of the then Board; and (c) any
significant connected and/or notifiable transactions that had been
approved by the then Board but were not in compliance with the Listing
Rules requirements. However, during the internal control review, the
internal control consultants have identified a number of internal control

issues and made recommendations to the Company.

Based on these recommendations, the management of the Group has
taken steps to address the deficiencies with a view to improving the
internal control system of the Group. As at the reporting date, the
Company with the assistance of the professional accounting firm is
in the process of implementing the improved internal procedures and
policies. After fully implementing of these procedures and policies, the
Board will cause a follow-up review on the adequacy of internal control
system of the Group. The Group will institute an internal audit function
by the engagement of a professional accounting firm, and will engage
a compliance adviser to continue to support the compliance function
of the Group till the publication of its annual results for the year
ending 31 March 2015. More details of the internal control deficiencies
identified by the internal control consultants and measures which were
taken by the Group were set out in the Company’s announcement dated
5 December 2013.

Having considered the findings in the investigation report, the
materiality of the deficiencies identified in the internal control report,
all remedial actions taken and to be taken by the Company, and the fact
that no irregularities have occurred since April 2013, with the addition
of an independent non-executive Director of Ms. Hsu Wai Man, Helen
who has ample auditing, accounting and compliance experience, the
Board and the audit committee of the Company believe that the internal
control system of the Company has been sufficiently improved to a
state where the Company has the structure and professional expertise
to ensure ongoing compliance of the requirements under the Listing
Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

COMPOSITION
As at the date of this report, the Board comprises of ten Directors
including three executive Directors, three non-executive Directors, and

four independent non-executive Directors.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Company’s businesses, investment and strategic
decisions and performance. In addition, the Board has also delegated
various responsibilities to the board committees. Further details of

these board committees are set out in this report.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

HE Guang

WONG Kin Fai

MA Jun (appointed on 17 December 2013)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
HUANG Shao Xiong

WANG Yuan Xun

CHEN Wei (appointed on 17 December 2013)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
YIU Fai Ming

HOU Rong Ming

LIN Qi

HSU Wai Man Helen (appointed on 21 November 2013)

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other. The biographical
information of the Directors are set out on page 36 to page 38 of this
report.

CHAIRMAN

The chairman of the Company takes the lead in formulating overall
strategies and policies of the Company; ensures the effective
performance by the Board of its functions, including compliance with
good corporate governance practices and encourages and facilitates
active contribution of directors in Board activities. He also ensures that
all directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings
and have received adequate, complete and reliable information in a

timely manner with the assistance of the company secretary.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The executive Directors are responsible for running the Company
and executing the strategies adopted by the Board. They lead the
Company’s management team in accordance with the directions set by
the Board and are responsible for ensuring that proper internal control
system is in place and the Company’s business conforms to applicable

laws and regulations.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors serve the important function of ensuring and monitoring an
effective corporate governance framework. Their participation provides
adequate checks and balances to safeguard the interests of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole. The Board currently consists of three
independent non-executive Directors and one of them has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive Directors a confirmation of independence

for the Year pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

On this basis, the Board considers all such Directors to be independent.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS

During the Year, the Board held 28 regular/special Board meetings,
one AGM and 3 special general meeting (the “SGM”). The attendance
of each member at the Board meetings and general meetings is set out

E R SAE YIS VN

ASEE - E G BT R BT R
EREGEGHE - RKBOREFE R G L= RBOR
Rl R & (BRI & ) &R B

below: e e MR R g Z HWH R
BT
Meetings Attended/Held Jbe 3K Jbe 5
Name Board AGM  SGM ## EHE HAERE NG
Executive Directors: PATES :
He Guang (Chairman) 26/28 0/1 0/3 ¥ (FF) 26/28 0/1 0/3
Wong Kin Fai 28/28 1/1 0/3  HE{aE 28/28 11 0/3
Ma Jun Bk
(appointed on 17 December 2013) 0/28 0/1 0/3 (A =F— =4
+ZH+tH
WRAT) 0/28 0/1 0/3
Non-executive Directors: FEHTESF
Huang Shao Xiong 28/28 1/1 33 HwDIE 28/28 1/1 3/3
Wang Yuan Xun 28/28 1/1 33 EoiH) 28/28 1/1 3/3
Chen Wei Btk
(appointed on 17 December 2013) 0/28 0/1 0/3 (A = F— =4
+ZA+tH
HZAT) 0/28 0/1 0/3
Independent Non-executive Directors: B kAT H S
Yiu Fai Ming gl
(appointed on 2 May 2012) 22/28 1/1 3/3 (R _F—_4
Hou Rong Ming HHZHEZRAT) 22/28 1/1 3/3
(appointed on 11 June 2012) 21/28 0/1 173 {5
Lin Qi (= F— 4
(appointed on 11 June 2012) 21/28 0/1 1/3 AHA+—H
Liu Ming Fang HZAT) 21/28 0/1 13
(resigned on 25 April 2012) 1/28 0/1 0/3  MiE
He Chuan (A =& —4F
(resigned on 11 June 2012) 7/28 0/1 2/3 AH+—H
Hsu Wai Man Helen EZAT) 21/28 0/1 1/3
(appointed on 21 November 2013) 0/28 0/1 0/3 BB
(A =F—T4
WWH_—+HH
BHT) 1/28 0/1 0/3
il
(R =F—4F
ANA+—HEHE) 7/28 0/1 2/3
RE
(R =F—=4
+—H=+—A
HZAT) 0/28 0/1 0/3
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Board minutes are kept by the company secretary and are open for
inspection by the Directors. Every Board member is entitled to have
access to Board papers and related materials and has unrestricted access
to the advice and services of the company secretary, and has the liberty

to seek external professional advice if so required.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
financial statements for each financial period and to ensure that the
financial statements are in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Board also ensures the timely
publication of the financial statements. The Directors, having made
appropriate enquiries, confirm that they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant

doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the auditors of the Company regarding their
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditors’ Report on page 45 to page 46 of this report.

TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal
induction to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the
business and his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing

Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

The continuous professional development is provided to all Directors
at the Company’s expense to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to assist them to discharge their duties. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Since 1 January 2012, all Directors satisfied the revised CG code on
directors’ training by either attending seminars, attending in-house
briefings or reading material relevant to the Director’s duties and

responsibilities.

R GG R B A A E R AR T it
FARN  EHEEFXMBWARRINESEG X
1 B AR B R - Sl T AN 32 R o 2 2 ) B
2B > WA R A E R A
FEERA -

ERHMBH R R/

2B R D L A R ) A IO ] B R
R 2 FE S e PR A B R AF 5 5 A 2 RO
PRt aE R o 3 g IR AR OR L2 Ry ) 8% RS T
R o AR R A ol AR e R A AR I M
FE B A AL E A W] Eﬁz%ﬁﬂzﬂk{ﬂ > ] 5]
BB AS /Y AR AT RE T R A 2 BORBER -

7 ) A SR R 3 A B R R 2 AT 2 W
R AS A 545 T A 546 FL 2 S BT R

tnt‘ o

ERZHI

P4 %ﬁ%%&%%*}“ﬁ‘%i‘%%& LR 98

1 A B B L R 2 AT 3
T L R R ER 2 AR
s -

Aoy E) OB A R R A S SE R I LA
3R e 7 BE BT R A S AR o o B A A R AT IR
B AR ORI S ) 3 R R RO B 2
Bk o

-4 —HE 2EFEIEFGH
A (SR T R R R A
g 5B G A B E R 2 MR R BT
SPARI

Annual Report 2013 —. % — ZARAE g

29



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
B HE

30

DIRECTOR’S SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”) as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors.

The Board confirms that all Directors have complied with the Model
Code throughout the Year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference in compliance with
the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system and internal
control procedures; making recommendations to the Board in the
appointment and removal of the external auditors and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors, and any
questions of resignation or dismissal of such auditors; and reviewing

the interim and annual reports and accounts of the Company.

During the Year, the Audit Committee comprised all independent
non-executive Directors. Following resignations of Mr. Liu Ming
Fang and Mr. He Chuan, currently, the Audit Committee comprises
four independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yiu Fai Ming
(Chairman), Mr. Hou Rong Ming, Mr. Lin Qi and Ms. Hsu Wai Man
Helen.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the Year have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee, who is of the opinion that such
statements comply with the applicable accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and legal requirements, and that adequate disclosures have been
made.
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The Audit Committee held twelve meetings during the Year. Details of  JAASAEJF » WAL Z B & 8T+ K&k o
attendance are set out below: JEErdk 2 FEEIURINT
Meetings iV
Name attended/Held §t% BTG &
Yiu Fai Ming (appointed on 2 May 2012) 12/12 WeHERY (R = F— 4R A — HERF) 12/12
Hou Rong Ming (appointed on 11 June 2012) 10/12 fr4El] (i =% — 4R +— HEZEL) 10/12
Lin Qi (appointed on 11 June 2012) 11712 MG (R —F— A H T—HERT) 11/12
Liu Ming Fang (resigned on 25 April 2012) 0/12  BIWF (i —F— "4 H —+1 H &) 0/12
He Chuan (resigned on 11 June 2012) 112 fap)i] (ff —F—_4ENH +— HEHT) 1/12
Hsu Wai Man Helen 3 -3
(appointed on 21 November 2013) 0/12 R ZF—Z4F+— A+ — HEEE) 0/12
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with written terms of reference in
compliance with the Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee is
mainly responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s remuneration policy for directors and senior management,
and overseeing the remuneration packages of the executive directors,

and senior management.

Currently, the Remuneration Committee comprises one executive
Director, Mr. He Guang, and four independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Yiu Fai Ming, Mr. Hou Rong Ming (Chairman), Mr. Lin Qi
and Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting
to discuss about the remuneration package of Directors and senior

management. Details of attendance are set out below:

Meetings
Name attended/Held
Executive Director:
He Guang 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors:
Yiu Fai Ming (appointed on 2 May 2012) 11
Hou Rong Ming (Chairman)

(appointed on 11 June 2012) 1/1
Lin Qi (appointed on 11 June 2012) 11
Hsu Wai Man Helen

(appointed on 21 November 2013) 0/1

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) with written terms of reference in
compliance with the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee is
mainly responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board, making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably
qualified to become member of the Board and making recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships,
assessing the independence of independent non-executive directors,
and making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-

appointment of directors and succession planning for directors.

HiMZR &

AnrCHLHMEE G (HFMEE®))
7 AR 8 L i R ) DA R A T o
FMZREGTRARMERGRALFAES
B o 5 78 B 2 37 T B SR 4 L A R - DA
K B PUAT HEF J i E BRE 2 AL o

H - #5MZ B ah 2T EFMLEE
Lo VU 22 8 57 38 B4 T HE R WO SE AR - AR
SErE () ~ MG SEAE Rk Sl AL -

AR > B RGBT —Wk AE
o5 R LR B AL AT o
R TIPS UNCE

Y
%4 BT
P ES
(0P 11
BT E S
WERER] (R ZF— T H ZHEEE) 11
TG ()

(h=F—"HENA+—HERT) 1/1
M (i —F——4E N H +— AR 1/1
3-34

(R_FE—=Ft+—H+—HEZT) 0/1
RUHEEY

AnFEd A LZAE (RAZRT))
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RAZAGERAREMNER G20 - M
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Currently, the Nomination Committee comprises one executive
Director, Mr. He Guang (Chairman), one non-executive Director,
Mr. Wang Yuan Xun, and four independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Yiu Fai Ming, Mr. Hou Rong Ming, Mr. Lin Qi and Ms.
HSU Wai Man Helen.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board. Details of attendance
are set out below:

Bl 2 Z B Gh A PITERMDELE
()~ —H AT EF L ooH ek K4
T8 S7 FF HUAT WO e R - BRAR P SEE
MR e A e f i e AU o

RAEERN > RAZBTRT T —KEkL
FE DR A B AR o R
FETEHESIANT

Meetings iy

Name attended/Held ¥4 BITE®
Executive Director: PUATHES
He Guang (Chairman) U1 e () 1/1
Non-executive Director: FPTHES
Wang Yuan Xun 171 FoH /1
Independent Non-executive Directors: B kBT E S
Yiu Fai Ming (appointed on 2 May 2012) /1 e (R —F— R H _HERT) 1/1
Hou Rong Ming (appointed on 11 June 2012) /1 EEW (R F—4FNH+—HERT) 1/1
Lin Qi (appointed on 11 June 2012) /1 W (R =F— N+ — HERT) /1
HSU Wai Man Helen TR

(appointed on 21 November 2013) 0/1 (R ZF—=F = A — HEZRT) 0/1
REMUNERATION DETAILS it T

Details of the directors’ remuneration and the five highest-paid
individuals in the Group are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the financial
statements respectively.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the Year, the remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit

services provided by the Company’s auditors is set out below:

35 I B A B [ 2 T4 e N L R E
185 73 Fill A B 5 i R S sE9 A 10 -
A S8 i P <2

AR AR PE A BRAS 24 AR B £ 3 2 A% U
TR A B B SR

Services rendered Fee paid/payable 2 fit R % et EMN R

HK$’000 FiEor
Audit services 1,500,000 4% #R % 1,500,000
Non-audit services 110,000  JEAZEREE 110,000

The nature of non-audit services provided by the Company’s auditors
was the independent review of the interim results of the Group as at 30
September 2012 during the Year.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary has undertaken not less than 15 hours of

relevant professional training during 2013.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

During the Year, the Company has proactively enhanced its corporate
transparency and communications with its shareholders and the
investment community through its mandatory interim and final reports
announcements. Through the timely distribution of press releases, the

Company has also kept the public abreast of its latest developments.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders
to exchange views with the Board. The Chairman as well as Chairman
of the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees and
members of these committees are pleased to answer shareholders’
questions. Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on
cach substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
directors. All the announcements and circulars are published on the
Company’s website (http://www.equitynet.com.hk/richlyfield) and on
the website of the Stock Exchange (http://www.hkexnews.hk).

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

THE WAY IN WHICH SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
CAN CONVENE A SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE
SHAREHOLDERS (“SGM”)

The Directors notwithstanding anything in its Bye-laws shall, on the
requisition of Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one- tenth of such of the paid-up capital of the
Company as at the date of the deposit of the requisition that carries the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed

duly to convene a SGM of the Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the company secretary at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit 1208,
12/F, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong, and may consist of several documents in like form each

signed by one or more requisitionists.

AR

RAEMECRHR —F— ZFE2HADRS
ZINIRE B AR B B A o

P& & B R

AR TE o 35 3 5 ) rh D R AR R R
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TR > AR ]IS 2 R RIRE TR LT 0 R
R’ o

SHL % 3 1k %

I8 SR A A DR B 7 TR R B R A A AR
ARCFR - - EREREG - HWERE
PR 2% B e LU NS Z B G A %R
[ 22 g R AR 2 PR - BIHEE E L2 E
TH (G452 SR B ) IR R R & a3 Al
P B ERE o P A i K3 oK 2 A AR 2w A
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B 22 T 48 3 (http://www.hkexnews . hk) FI| & o

Jie 5 2 HE A

A% 2> ) BB A BRI SRR R (1B A ok
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The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrars and
upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
company secretary will ask the Board to include the resolution in the
agenda for the SGM.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the requisitionists, or
any of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months from
the said date.

THE PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

The enquiries must be in writing with contact information of the
requisitionists and deposited at the company secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business at Unit 1208, 12/F, West Tower, Shun Tak
Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

THE PROCEDURES FOR MAKING PROPOSALS AT
SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETINGS

To put forward proposals at AGM or SGM, the Shareholders should
submit a written notice of those proposals with their detailed contact
information to the company secretary at the Company’s principal place
of business at Unit 1208, 12/F, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-
200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong. The request will be verified
with the Company’s share registrars and upon their confirmation that
the request is proper and in order, the company secretary will ask the

Board to include the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for consideration
of the proposal raised by the Shareholders concerned at AGM or SGM
varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

. At least 14 clear days’ notice (the notice period must include 10
business days and excludes the date of the notice and the date
of the meeting) in writing if the proposal constitutes an ordinary
resolution of the Company

. At least 21 clear days’ notice (the notice period must include 20
business days and excludes the date of the notice and the date
of the meeting) in writing if the proposal constitutes a special
resolution of the Company in SGM or an ordinary resolution of
the Company in AGM

Richly Field China Development Limited ¥ F o [ 8 45 B 24 )
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THE PROCEDURES THAT SHAREHOLDERS CAN USE TO
PROPOSE A PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A DIRECTOR

Other than a retiring director, any person who is not recommended by
the Board shall not be eligible to be elected as a director at any general
meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to propose that person
for election as a director and notice in writing by that person of his
willingness to be elected including that person’s biographical details as
required by rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, shall have been lodged
at the company secretary at the Company’s principal place of business
at Unit 1208, 12/F, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught
Road Central, Hong Kong at least 7 days before the date of the general
meeting. The period for lodgment of the notices required under the
provisions of the Bye-laws of the Company will commence no earlier
than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the
date of such general meeting. If the notice is received less than 10 clear
business days prior to the date of such general meeting, the Company
will need to consider the adjournment of such general meeting in order
to allow Shareholders 14 days’ notice (the notice period must include

10 clear business days) of the proposal.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

MR. HE GUANG (“MR. HE”)

Mr. He, aged 55, was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 23 July 2008. Mr. He was an executive director and vice-
president of Beijing Capital Land Limited (HKEX stock code: 2868)
from December 2002 to December 2008. In the past, Mr. He was
responsible for project management in the New Rank Group in Hong
Kong since 1998. During the period from late 1996 to 1998, Mr. He
worked as a senior engineer for C.M. Wong Associates Limited in Hong
Kong, which is a firm of consulting engineers specializing in structural
and geo-technical engineering projects. Prior to his position at Beijing
Capital Land Limited, Mr. He also served as a member of the senior
management of Beijing Rongjin Real Estate Development Company
Limited, a PRC property development company. Mr. He has over
25 years of experience in architectural engineering and obtained his
doctorate in civil engineering from the University of Montreal, Canada
in 1996.

MR. WONG KIN FAI (“MR. WONG”)

Mr. Wong, aged 45, was appointed as an executive director of
the Company on 23 July 2008. He has extensive experience in
construction, large infrastructure projects and project management.
Mr. Wong obtained a master of science degree in engineering
business management from the University of Warwick in 1993 and
a postgraduate diploma in quantity surveying from the University of
Hong Kong in 1997. Mr. Wong is an accredited Quantity Surveyor with
the Academy of Experts (England).

MR. MA JUN (“MR. MA”)

Mr. Ma, aged 53, was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 17 December 2013. He has extensive experience in large,
diversified enterprises in management, corporate strategic planning and
brand marketing roles. Mr. Ma graduated from Nanjing University with
a bachelor's degree in law, and obtained from Cheung Kong Graduate
School of Business an Executive Master of Business Administration
degree. Mr. Ma has been a director and the vice president of the
JeShing Group* (&E%4EM) since October 2000. From January 1980
to October 1984, Mr. Ma served as an inspector at Jiangsu Import and
Export Commodity Inspection Bureau. Thereafter, until September
2000, Mr. Ma served as a reporter, deputy director of the editorial
office and a deputy director of city channel at Jiangsu Broadcasting
Corporation respectively.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

MR. HUANG SHAO XIONG (“MR. HUANG”)

Mr. Huang, aged 50, was appointed as a non-executive director of the
Company on 13 August 2010. Mr. Huang holds a master of business
administration degree from Murdoch University, Western Australia and
a postgraduate certificate in financial management. Mr. Huang worked
in the inland revenue department of Guangzhou, People’s Republic
of China for about 11 years and was an audit team leader, and then
pursued his career in the investment and property development industry
since 1994.
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MR. WANG YUAN XUN (“MR. WANG”)

Mr. Wang, aged 68, was appointed as a non-executive director of the
Company on 13 August 2010. Mr. Wang holds a bachelor degree from
the University of International Business & Economics Beijing and
pursued his master degree at University of Regina. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Wang worked as a general manager for The Asia
Pacific Group (Canada) in Vancouver and a special project manager in
cooperation with Beijing Capital Group Limited. Mr. Wang served in
a managerial position with CCG Trade & Development Corporation,
KaiLi Machinery Imp/Exp Corporation and World Golden Bridge
Investment Group. Mr. Wang has extensive experience in management.

MR. CHEN WEI (“MR. CHEN”)

Mr. Chen, aged 41, was appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company on 17 December 2013. He has extensive experience in
aspects related to project planning and construction management. Mr.
Chen graduated from Jinling Vocational University* (% [EHKk3ENZ)
studying in decoration and construction management. Mr. Chen has
been engaging in construction management since 1996 and has been the
chairman of Nanjing First Construction Engineering Group Company

Limited* ([ 5050 — 8248 TRE4E A FR/A 7)) since 2008.
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

MR. YIU FAI MING (“MR. YIU”)

Mr. Yiu, aged 58, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 2 May 2012. Mr. Yiu currently is the
executive director of King Jet Investment Services Limited, a company
engaged in the provision of business and investment advisory services
to corporate clients. Mr. Yiu holds a master degree in business
administration from the Open University of Hong Kong. Mr. Yiu
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and Chartered Institute of Management Accountants,
UK, an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and a member of the Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. Mr. Yiu has over 30 years extensive working experience initially
in accounting and auditing via serving in Price Waterhouse (now known
as PricewaterhouseCoopers) and subsequently in financial management
in both the industrial and commercial sector, including privately-owned
and listed companies in varied industries in Hong Kong. Besides, Mr.
Yiu was an independent non-executive director of Asia Resources
Holdings Limited (HKEX stock code: 899) during the period of
December 2008 to August 2011.
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MR. HOU RONG MING (“MR. HOU”)

Mr. Hou, aged 43, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 11 June 2012. Mr. Hou graduated from
China Finance College (currently known as Central University of
Finance and Economics) with outstanding academic performance in
1992. Mr. Hou was qualified as a PRC certified public accountant and
obtained four qualifications to engage in consultant of investment in
securities, brokerage, listing and underwriting of shares and funds. Mr.
Hou is currently the deputy head of the capital operation department
of GuangHong Assets Management Co, Ltd (one of the three largest
state-owned assets management companies under State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission, the People’s Government
of Guangdong Province), and the deputy general manager of & HJ& 54

POEA PR ] and B R SLRI HE ARG A IR 7 respectively.

MR. LIN QI (“MR. LIN”)

Mr. Lin, aged 44, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 11 June 2012. Mr. Lin obtained his
bachelor degree in corporate management from Sun Yat-sen University
in 1991. Mr. Lin also obtained the professional qualification as PRC
economist. Mr. Lin has over 20 years working experience in financial
and investment management. He was first engaged in the management
work regarding foreign exchange trading and loan business at one of
the four largest stated-owned commercial banks in the PRC for 13
years, and later involved in the management and control of corporate
operational risk at certain large enterprises. He is currently the
managing director of Phaeton Investment Consultant Co Ltd, which is
principally engaged in the provision of investment consultant services
for institutional clients.

MS. HSU WAI MAN HELEN (“MS. HSU”)

Ms. Hsu, aged 43, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 21 November 2013. She has over 20
years’ experience in accounting. Ms. Hsu graduated from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor degree in business
administration. Ms. Hsu had been working with Ernst & Young for 18
years and was a partner of Ernst & Young before she retired from the
firm in February 2011. Ms. Hsu is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Hsu is currently an
independent non-executive director of Perfect Shape (PRC) Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1830), China Forestry Holdings Co. Ltd. (stock
code: 930) and Branding China Group Limited (stock code: 8219). Ms.
Hsu is also an independent director of SGOCO Group, Ltd. (stock code:
SGOC), the shares of which are listed on the National Association of
Securities Dealers Automated Quotations (NASDAQ) Stock Market.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME
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SHARE OPTIONS OF THE COMPANY

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 2

November 2009, details of which were disclosed in the Company’s
circular dated 15 October 2009 and are set out in note 33 to the

financial statements. Particulars of the Scheme are set out below:

1.

PURPOSE OF THE SCHEME

The purpose of the Scheme is to recruit and retain high caliber
Eligible Persons (as defined below) that are valuable to the Group
or any entity in which any member of the Group holds an equity
interest (“Invested Entity” or “Invested Entities™), to recognize
the significant contributions of the eligible persons to the growth
of the Group by rewarding them with opportunities to obtain
ownership interest in the Company and to give incentives to the
eligible participants to continue in contribution to the long term

success and prosperity of the Group.

ELIGIBLE PERSONS

Any employee (whether full time or part time), senior executive
or officer, manager, executive director, non-executive director
(including independent non-executive director) of the Group or
any Invested Entity who, in the sole discretion of the Board, have
contributed or will contribute to the growth and development of

the Group or any Invested Entity.

MAXIMUM NUMBER OF SHARES AVAILABLE FOR ISSUE

The total number of shares in respect of which share options
may be granted under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the total number of shares in issue of the Company as at the date
upon which the Scheme takes effect in accordance with its terms
(“Scheme Mandate™).

The Company may seek approval by the shareholders in general
meeting for refreshing the Scheme Mandate provided that the
total number of shares in respect of which share options may be
granted under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company under the Scheme Mandate as refreshed must not
exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue of the Company
as at the date of the shareholders’ approval.
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The limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding share options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not exceed 30 % of the shares in issue from
time to time. No share options may be granted if such grant will
result in this 30 percent limit being exceeded.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the total number of shares of
the Company available for issue under the Scheme is 56,200,000
shares which represent approximately 0.63% of the total issued

share capital of the Company.

As at 31 March 2013, 86,212,000 share options were exercisable
(2012: 154,750,000).

MAXIMUM ENTITLEMENT OF EACH ELIGIBLE PERSON

The total number of shares of the Company issued and to be
issued upon exercise of share options (whether exercised or

outstanding) granted in any 12-month period to:

(i) each Eligible Person must not exceed 1% of the shares of the

Company in issue;

(ii) a substantial shareholder or an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company must not exceed 0.1% of the shares
of the Company in issue and not exceed HK$5 million in

aggregate value.

Any further grant of share options in excess of the above limit
shall be subject to shareholders’ approval.

PERIOD WITHIN WHICH THE SHARES MUST BE TAKEN
UP UNDER AN OPTION

An option must be exercised within ten years from the date on
which it is granted or such shorter period as the Board may

specify at the time of grant.

Richly Field China Development Limited ¥ F o [ 8 45 B 24 )

HRE 5% w81 B A 2 ) JH A B e pE =t )
P AR G R AT A 2 R AT i 4R mT T g
172 B BOBR A R4S 8 8 R R & 847
B Z2.30% o At 5% 5% HE 35 B0 1 30%BR
B QARSI AT o] RO HE o

BEARERHE W > W8 gtag 17
Z AN T AR B 805 56,200,000 0 #9405
AR E EBATHARAN 2.0.63% ©

W_E—-=H=A=+—H K
86,212,000 HERERE 0] A7 (= F——
4 1 154,750,000) ©

HHEWBHEZ RRHER

AT AT A+ AR A MR T LT A+
ZIEIBEHE (e CAT (S R AT )
BAT RO AT 2 AN R AR AR

() HHREKZHEE > SEEBRAN A
EE T 2 1% s

(i) A A 2 3 BOR BO8 S7 IE BAT
HoO NMPEBRALSAC BTG
0.1%3k A 15 # i@ 4 (5,000,000
fl: o

HE— AP R A A PR 2 A A S S
IR B AL IfE

AL 3R i i 2 B 2 YT B

N S M 2L 1 4% s SR T A Rl
B AL AR R A 2 2 B I R AT o



SHARE OPTION SCHEME
Bl T RE

MINIMUM PERIOD, IF ANY, FOR WHICH AN OPTION
MUST BE HELD

At the time of the grant of an option, the Board must specify
the minimum period(s), if any, for which an option must be held

before it can be exercised.

PERIOD OPEN FOR ACCEPTANCE OF AN OPTION AND
AMOUNT PAYABLE UPON ACCEPTANCE

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance
for a period of twenty business days from the date of offer and a

consideration of HK$1.0 must be paid upon acceptance.

BASIS FOR DETERMINING THE SUBSCRIPTION PRICE
OF AN OPTION

The exercise price must be at least the higher of

(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in daily quotations

sheet on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;
(ii) the average closing prices of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading days

immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of a share.
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9. REMAINING LIFE/DURATION OF THE SCHEME
The Scheme has a life of ten years and will expire on 1 November
2019 unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the terms of

the Scheme.

Movements of share options granted under the Scheme during the

9. FIBRMIM 7 Zut# 2z HIR
a4 R T F L
—H—H 2 - BRIERE L T 2 K
AL R Ioh o

A RAR PR L T 4 T 2 W BOHE 2 A )

year are as follows: o
Outstanding at Number of Share Options Outstanding at
1 April 2012 B HE L 31 March 2013
I S RZZ—=4 Exercise  Exercise price
Eligible persons WMA—H  Granted Exercised  Forfeited Lapsed ZAZ+—H  Dateof grant period per share
AREAL I A b4 frf Bl K% WATHE  HFHH TriEfte  mRITBER
Directors
&%
He Guang 34,500,000 - - - 8,625,000 25,875,000 22 December 2009 Note HK$0.428
fmt ZEENVEFCAZTCR W 042887
Wong Kin Fai 25,500,000 - - - 6,375,000 19,125,000 22 December 2009 Note HK$0.428
R CERNFFCACECR M 04283 T
Employees
lE 8
In aggregate 94,750,000 - - 30,488,000 23,050,000 41,212,000 22 December 2009 Note HK$0.428
At “EENEHCACACR MR 042816 7C
Total 154,750,000 - - 30,488,000 38,050,000 86,212,000
wit
Notes: Wk -

The share options will be vested and exercisable subject to the
attainment of the Performance Target (as defined below) during

the following period in the following manner:

1. the first 25% of the share options granted were vested on
the date of results announcement for the year ended 31
March 2011 in which Performance Target was met and the
exercise period for this tranche is from the date of results
announcement for the year ending 31 March 2011 to 21
December 2015;

2. the second 25% of the share options granted were lapsed

on the date of results announcement for the year ended 31
March 2012 in which Performance Target was not met;
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3. the third 25% of the share options granted were lapsed on the
date of results announcement for the year ended 31 March

2013 in which Performance Target was not met; and

4. the final 25% of the share options granted will fully vest
on the date of results announcement for the year ending 31
March 2014 provided that the associated Performance Target
is met and the exercise period for this tranche is from the
date of results announcement for the year ending 31 March
2014 to 21 December 2015.

Further details of the Share Option Schemes are set out in note 33

to the consolidated financial statements of this Annual Report.

The vesting of the share options is subject to the achievement
of the rate of return on equity of the Group of not less than 12%
(“Performance Target”) for each of the financial years ending
31 March 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014 respectively based on the
reported figures as contained in the annual report of the Group
for the relevant financial year. If the Performance Target is met
in a particular financial year, the share options associated with
that financial year will be vested and can be exercised. If the
Performance Target is not met in a particular financial year, the
share options associated with that financial year will be lapsed

automatically.

The share options outstanding as at 31 March 2013 had a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 1.7 years (2012: 2.7 years).

VALUATION OF SHARE OPTIONS

The fair value of each share option granted was estimated on
the date of offer using the Binomial model with the following
assumptions:

Date of offer 22 December 2009

Share price at date of offer HK$0.425
Exercise price HK$0.428
Risk-free interest rate 2.017%
Expected dividend : Nil
Expected volatility 76.46%
Expected life (year) 1.3t04.3

10.
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Based on the above assumptions, the computed fair value of each
share option was approximately within the range from HK$0.18 to
HK$0.27. The Black-Scholes option pricing model requires input
of highly subjective assumptions, including the expected stock
price volatility. Any changes in the subjective input assumptions
may materially affect the estimation of the fair value of a share

option.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
RICHLY FIELD CHINA DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and

continued in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Richly Field
China Development Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 47 to 151, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31
March 2013, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
March 2013, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
EMPHASIS OF MATTERS

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements which indicates that as of 31 March
2013, the Group had cash and bank balances of HK$50,301,000 and
aggregate outstanding interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of
HK$105,712,000 together with aggregate payables of HK$244,522,000,
which are due within the next twelve months. These conditions, along
with other matters as set forth in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may
cast significant doubt about the Group’s and Company’s ability to

continue as a going concern.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

6 December 2013
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

RYX
R A AR R
Year ended 31 March 2013
MEE = =H = —H I

2013 2012
RS TR
Notes HKS$’000 HKS$’000
K7 Fi#x T
(Restated)
(K=& 5)
REVENUE e 25 6 27,943 50,843
Cost of sales FH 8 LA (31,309) (39,210)
Gross profit/(loss) EH,(8) (3,366) 11,633
Impairment losses of amounts due from JEMSIR 8 A R R 2
associates WA R 18 (3,863) (13,079)
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries & B A F ] 2 Ui i 6 6,446 7,219
Other income and gains HoAh e A B I g 6 12,498 16,951
Selling expenses B B (5,619) (8,087)
Administrative expenses T 2 (92,455) (116,644)
Finance costs il 6T 2 7 (22,4006) (962)
Share of losses of associates JRE AL Wi 7 2 ) e 4R (2,730) (9,872)
LOSS BEFORE TAX K Bt il Ml 18 8 (111,495) (112,841)
Income tax credit Fr gk a 11 9,437 -
LOSS FOR THE YEAR AR 1R (102,058) (112,841)
Attributable to: PAR AN HELS -
Owners of the Company EN/NEIE XS DN 12 (96,901) (91,907)
Non-controlling interests JE PR RE 25 (5,157) (20,934)
(102,058) (112,841)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) Hftt 2 il s~ (#518)
Exchange differences on translation WA ET EEZ
of foreign operations = (4,076) 33,348
Release of Exchange translation reserve upon  Ji Hi 85 i Ji 2 7] 4% fif [
disposals of subsidiaries W S At (1,245) (2,203)
Share of other comprehensive income JEAL B & AR 2
of associates oA 2 a7 U A 1,471 1,553
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) 4EWN H At & H Wi ~(EiR)
FOR THE YEAR (3.850) 32,698
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR AE N 4 TH i 4B AR
THE YEAR (105,908) (80,143)
Attributable to: PR AN L EAS
Owners of the Company EN/NEIE: Z SN (100,891) (73,484)
Non-controlling interests IE PR RE S (5,017) (6,659)
(105,908) (80,143)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE A 2 i) 3 BE 4
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS R N BEAN 15 5 i 18 13
OF THE COMPANY
Basic HA HK(1.09) cents HK(1.03) cents
AL Al
Diluted ;30 HK(1.09) cents  HK(1.03) cents
AL AL
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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31 March 31 March 1 April
2013 2012 2011
R R B4
ZH=Z+—H Z=ZHA=1—H JWH—H
Notes HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$°000
Mzt Fi#oc T T T
(Restated) (Restated)
(ZEEF) (ZEEF)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS I i By ¢
Property, plant and equipment LE BN 044 ] 14 4,997 5,626 6,619
Investment properties &Y 2% 15 389,108 246,952 141,608
Prepaid land lease payments A AF A S 3K 16 592,352 641,127 622,354
Investments in associates RN w6 2 & 18 50,905 20,110 =
Total non-current assets I it B L AR 1,037,362 913,815 770,581
CURRENT ASSETS By
Properties under development e 19 657,389 416,610 244,735
Inventories & 20 8,103 14,475 =
Trade receivable JRE Wi H K 21 - 804 766
Prepayments, deposits and other TAAT A ~ Hed R H A
receivables JRE SRR IE 22 26,299 72,076 248,652
Loan to an associate Eani - /NI=1 I 18 103,893 103,114 =
Due from related parties JRE Wiz B 8 5 kO 23 — 46,342 =
Cash and bank balances Bl K SRAT # i 24 50,301 29,452 339,583
Total current assets it B AR 845,985 682,873 833,736
CURRENT LIABILITIES i By £ 4%
Trade payables JE AT HE 3 25 145,584 68,744 46,617
Amount due to a contract customer JEAT & #1% F #0E 26 131,590 160,593 =
Receipts in advance, other payables FEUSCGRIE ~ HoAfth HEA
and accruals FIE M ST 27 175,467 105,655 247,223
Due to related parties JRE AT IR 788 7 AR IH 28 - 7,936 -
Interest-bearing bank and other FTEERAT 1 K & HoAth
borrowings & 3% 29 105,712 87,206 -
Financial guarantee obligations AR YE R AT 30 - 882 -
Provision g 31 855 325 =
Tax payable JE A B TE 7,687 28,518 29,976
Total current liabilities i) A AR 566,895 459,859 323,816
NET CURRENT ASSETS i B B A 279,090 223,014 509,920
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT AR B T B £
LIABILITIES 1,316,452 1,136,829 1,280,501
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JEw B £
Interest-bearing bank and other FTSERAT K K&
borrowings HoAtAE 3 29 846,525 286,534 356,160
Net assets G RE 469,927 850,295 924,341
continued/...
i -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R a MBI DL R
31 March 2013
CE = H=t—H

31 March 31 March 1 April
2013 2012 2011
B E A —FE 5
ZAZ+—H =HA=+—H MMH—H
Notes HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Mt T# T#T T#T
(Restated) (Restated)
(RE5)) (REF)
EQUITY B £
Equity attributable to owners A vl BEA N HE A HE 23
of the Company
Issued capital CEA T IRA 32 444,044 444,044 444,044
Reserves A 34(a) 25,883 118,025 184,451
469,927 562,069 628,495
Non-controlling interests FEHE e £ - 288,226 295,846
Total equity HE 7 40 %8 469,927 850,295 924,341
Director Director HH #HH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 March 2013
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

/N Nl =R
HABERER
Year ended 31 March 2013
BE-F—=F=H=1—HILFEF

2013 2012
Notes HKS$’000 HKS$°000
Mt F#L T T
(Restated)
(== 51)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING BB EEZ B ERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax BBl Hi s 18 (111,495) (112,841)
Adjustments for: HE B4 IH 2
Impairment losses of amount due from JEE MU A R I 2
associates VeI, SR 3,863 13,079
Bank interest income SRAT R E e A 6 (290) (550)
Other interest income HAALE M A 6 (10,812) (9,021)
Finance costs il S P AR 7 22,406 962
Depreciation of property, plant and Y2k - Wis Mg
equipment 8 2,101 1,996
Depreciation of investment properties Evd L/ E i 8 3,914 =
Write-down of inventories to net T A7 & & ] s R
realisable value 8 6,858 4,825
Recognition of prepaid land lease TERRTEAS 1 Mo & 2K
payments 8 11,851 12,059
Provision for compensation B e A 8 530 325
Gains on disposals of subsidiaries A B A R 2 e 35 (6,446) (7,219)
Share of losses of associates R A 88 2 ) e 1R 2,730 9,872
Equity-settled share option expense DIRE 4 5 05 2 W IR RE B 33 1,571 7,392
(73,219) (79,121)
Increase in inventories &R (486) (19,300)
Increase in properties under development  7E 24 348 i (162,973) (129,584)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables JRE S gD (3 ) 804 (38)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TEAS SRIE ~ e < R HoAth g
deposits and other receivables R IE B Y (B 28,662 (4,794)
Decrease/(increase) in due from JRRE WS R 288y R T
related parties Wb (3 46,342 (46,342)
Increase in amount due from associates JRE WAL Y 7 2 W R TEL B (24,993) (47,564)
(Decrease)/increase in due to related parties  MEATBA#E 5 FIE (W), Hm (7,936) 7,936
Increase in trade payables JREASE R 4 76,840 22,127
(Decrease)/increase in amount due JEAT & #1% P #0E
to a contract customer (W) s (29,003) 160,593
Increase in receipts in advance, TR SR IE ~ oAt A K TE I
other payables and accruals =12 T B 104,051 97,129
(Decrease)/increase in financial MBS EAT () /3
guarantee obligation (882) 882
Cash used in operations s B4 (42,793) (38,076)
Interest paid EAT AL (66,663) (28,978)
Mainland China taxes paid L AT B A A I (11,123) -
Net cash flows used in operating activities  £%45 1% Bl it 35 4 i & 0 48 (120,579) (67,054)
continued/...
B\
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BaBlenak
Year ended 31 March 2013
#E o E S H = H IR

52

2013 2012
R =4 —F-THF
Notes HKS$’000 HKS$°000
Bt T T
(Restated)
(A FI)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BEEHEEZ
ACTIVITIES Bles
Disposal of subsidiaries H B B B 8 ) 35 (26,911) (50,887)
Purchases of items of property, B - WE &
plant and equipment A IE H 14 (1,880) (1,824)
Construction costs for investment ENQ LU Va5 3 W
properties (146,070) (97,014)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests g B I 42 FI MR 17(a) (276,031) (1,295)
Advance loans to an associate BT — M E A R 2 B - (89,590)
Bank interest received B ISR AT FILE 290 550
Net cash flows used in investing activities % & B BT il 2 B 4 i 2 F 48 (450,602) (240,060)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING (LN grT 1) i e
ACTIVITIES B EwE
New bank loans HTERAT K 311,650 -
New other loans At B 3k 680,644 =
Repayment of bank loans TEIRSRAT R (398,912) -
Net cash flows from financing activities Pl T o) 7 AR 2 B A U TR 593,382 -
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH B4 M B 4 246 f 38
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS S (WA S 22,201 (307,114)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning AR 2 B A M 3 4 S (L
of year 29,452 339,583
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net it $5% 2 5 dfy 5 28 PR 4 (1,352) (3,017)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERZBERBE
AT END OF YEAR E R 50,301 29,452
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH ~ Bl& R BI& %M i
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Z & 8R4 M
Cash and bank balances B4 S ARAT &5 B 24 13,401 29,452
Non-pledged time deposits with A Wi B e SR B 38 H
original maturity of less than Dk =8 2 B
three months when acquired & WA 24 36,900 -
50,301 29,452

Richly Field China Development Limited #3 F o [ 8§ & 45 B 24 w)



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A 5k DL

31 March 2013
R —=FE=H=+—H

31 March 31 March 1 April
2013 2012 2011
it Sl E S e S
ZH=Z+—H =A=+—H MA—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
Kt it FiBi Fit oo Tior
(Restated) (Restated)
(&) (#EE)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS JE Ui B A B
Property, plant and equipment Wk~ W Kt 14 134 227 319
Investments in subsidiaries i s T sl < 17 384,494 474,536 443,406
Investments in associates I = P < ¢ 18 68,625 49,999 22,976
Total non-current assets IF it Bh L AR 453,253 524,762 466,701
CURRENT ASSETS B
Prepayments, deposits and other TEATFRIE ~ e 8 X
receivables HAth R i 3 T 22 1,117 918 867
Cash and bank balances B4 e SRAT B B 24 2,647 9,362 89,248
Total current assets it B AR 3,764 10,280 90,115
CURRENT LIABILITIES B £ 1%
Accruals JERT 2 27 3,771 940 300
Due to a subsidiary JREAST — [H] Bf} J&g 2> ) 3k 3 17 10,192 10,192 =
Total current liabilities =R 13,963 11,132 300
NET CURRENT ASSETS/ REEE (AK) FH
(LIABILITIES) (10,199) (852) 89,815
Net assets B R E 443,054 523,910 556,516
EQUITY HE 25
Issued capital L T AS 32 444,044 444,044 444,044
Reserves s 34(b) (990) 79,866 112,472
Total equity W £ AR 443,054 523,910 556,516
Director Director %5 %5
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A By 1 25 A Y

31 March 2013
—E -S4V — H

54

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Richly Field China Development Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and
continued as an exempted company under the laws of Bermuda
after the change of domicile from the Cayman Islands to Bermuda
effective on 11 February 2004. The principal place of business of
the Company is located at Unit 1208, 12/F., West Tower, Shun Tak
Centre, 168 — 200 Connaught Road, Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were involved in the following
principal activities:

(i) property development;

(ii) property management;

(iii) construction and maintenance; and

(iv) trading of fashion wears and accessories.

BASIS OF PREPARATION, PRESENTATION AND
CONSOLIDATION

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA™), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention except for financial guarantee
obligation, which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKS$”)
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
f B T AR I

31 March 2013
—E—=4F=H=1—H

BASIS OF PREPARATION, PRESENTATION AND
CONSOLIDATION (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

As of 31 March 2013, the Group had cash and bank balances
of HK$50,301,000 and aggregate outstanding interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings of HK$105,712,000 together with
aggregate payables of HK$244,522,000, which were due within
the next twelve months. The directors of the Company have taken
steps to improve the Group’s liquidity and solvency position.
Subsequent to 31 March 2013, the Group has obtained entrusted
loans in the aggregate amount of RMB1,200,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$1,513,000,000) (see note 13). Based on the management
estimation of the future cash flows of the Group, after taking into
account (i) the additional entrusted loans obtained after 31 March
2013; (ii) the subsequent sales of properties up to the date of this
report, and (iii) a projection of the future sales of properties, the
Group is able to generate sufficient funds to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the foreseeable future.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements of the Group

have been prepared on a going concern basis.

WP B R AR ()

R (457)

MNoEFE—=ZF=H=+—H > REHFH
& K SRAT AR £550,301,000% 70 [ R fE IR
AT B ERAT B HAth A X #E%H £4105,712,000
W s > i [R] B A5 3K JH 48 %H244,522,000
Wt ABEIOE R AR T A R
B o AR F]EE B PR TR B DA B
AL REE S R EAERN - R F
—ZHE=ZA=+—HUREK  AEHRE
% By N R %1,200,000,0007C (K 25 it
1,513,000,000% 70) Z ZFE A (M 5E
13) o AR R A 4R 1B oK 2 B 4 U 2 BRAG
o BEBOR F—-=4£=HA=1+—
HAR BN 2 ZRE B 5 ()B R A
HHB I HEWESEE > RdGi)REK
W sr e 2 M - AREERRE A B MK
4 > DUREAS LA mT Gt Ak 31 A 2 A 5
1T o I > AKE B O He R A A0 2 L HE I
GG BIwRE -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A By 1 25 A Y

31 March 2013
—E -S4V — H

56

BASIS OF PREPARATION, PRESENTATION AND
CONSOLIDATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised gains and
losses resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends are

eliminated on consolidation in full.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed to

the non-controlling interest even if it results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity,
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income

is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate.

Richly Field China Development Limited #3 F o [ 8§ & 45 B 24 w)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
f B T AR I

31 March 2013
—E—=4F=H=1—H

21 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first
time for the current year’s financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Amendments Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Severe
Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed
Dates for First-time Adopters
HKFRS 7 Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Amendments Instruments: Disclosures — Transfers
of Financial Assets
HKAS 12 Amendments to HKAS 12 Income
Amendments Taxes — Deferred Tax: Recovery of

Underlying Assets

The adoption of the revised HKFRSs has had no significant

financial effect on these financial statements.

2.1 ERHBUR Kk irZ S E)

AR A 4 B 2 B R R T U R A
NI AAE AT s RS O YRR

s S R
HE L) 585 1595
(EFTA)

s B
e Q257 9%
(ERTA)

T s gl e )
1298
(EFT7AR)

7 Y S i o 2 1
B K IR A B il B B
7 R — 2 Ty K
Gl B KR A 2
JE H B 27T

s SV s i B SR 7 5%
e TR HE— "
R R E ZAER]

A i g wt e R SR 1298 A
R0 — LEFE B IH - 4L [
15 & 2 NERT

PRAN 5% < KEAE R A s T S i At e B 7 4
Eapi R g R e NI 2
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&5 W B R B R
31 March 2013
—E -S4V — H

58

2.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs

that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

HKFRS 1
Amendments

HKFRS 7
Amendments

HKFRS 9

HKEFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKEFRS 12

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 Amendments

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)
Amendments

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1 Amendments
HKAS 19 (2011)
HKAS 27 (2011)
HKAS 28 (2011)
HKAS 32 Amendments
HKAS 36 Amendments
HKAS 39 Amendments
HK(IFRIC)-Int 20
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21

Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards —
Government Loans®

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®

Financial Instruments*

Consolidated Financial Statements’

Joint Arrangements*

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities®

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 -
Transition Guidance’

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
(2011) — Investment Entities®

Fair Value Measurement*

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income'

Employee Benefits®

Separate Financial Statements®
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures*

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets’

Novation of Derivatives and continuation of Hedge
Accounting®

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine*

Levies®
Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued in June 20122

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2013

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
< Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
f B T AR I

31 March 2013
—E—=4F=H=1—H

2.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

The HKFRS 7 Amendments require an entity to disclose
information about rights to set-off and related arrangements
(e.g., collateral agreements). The disclosures would provide
users with information that is useful in evaluating the effect
of netting arrangements on an entity’s financial position.
The new disclosures are required for all recognised financial
instruments that are set off in accordance with HKAS 32
Financial Instruments. Presentation. The disclosures also apply to
recognised financial instruments that are subject to an enforceable
master netting arrangement or similar agreement, irrespective of
whether they are set off in accordance with HKAS 32. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase 1 of
a comprehensive project to entirely replace HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This phase focuses
on the classification and measurement of financial assets.
Instead of classifying financial assets into four categories, an
entity shall classify financial assets as subsequently measured
at either amortised cost or fair value, on the basis of both the
entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. This
aims to improve and simplify the approach for the classification
and measurement of financial assets compared with the
requirements of HKAS 39.

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to HKFRS 9 to
address financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and incorporated
in HKFRS 9 the current derecognition principles of financial
instruments of HKAS 39. Most of the Additions were carried
forward unchanged from HKAS 39, while changes were made to
the measurement of financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss using the fair value option (“FVO”). For
these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair value of
a liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk must be
presented in other comprehensive income (“OCI”). The remainder
of the change in fair value is presented in profit or loss, unless
presentation of the fair value change in respect of the liability’s
credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch
in profit or loss. However, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts which have been designated under the FVO
are scoped out of the Additions.
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2.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its entirety.
Before this entire replacement, the guidance in HKAS 39 on hedge
accounting and impairment of financial assets continues to apply.
The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2015. The
Group will quantify the effect in conjunction with other phases,
when the final standard including all phases is issued.

HKFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to
all entities including special purpose entities or structured
entities. It includes a new definition of control which is used to
determine which entities are consolidated. The changes introduced
by HKFRS 10 require management of the Group to exercise
significant judgement to determine which entities are controlled,
compared with the requirements in HKAS 27 and HK(SIC)-Int
12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10 replaces
the portion of HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements that addresses the accounting for consolidated financial
statements. It also addresses the issues raised in HK(SIC)-Int 12.
Based on the preliminary analyses performed, HKFRS 10 is not
expected to have any impact on the currently held investments of

the Group.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 [Interests in Joint Ventures and
HK(SIC)-Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers. It describes the accounting for joint
arrangements with joint control. It addresses only two forms
of joint arrangements, i.e., joint operations and joint ventures,
and removes the option to account for joint ventures using

proportionate consolidation.

HKFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries,
joint arrangements, associates and structured entities previously
included in HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements, HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and HKAS 28
Investments in Associates. It also introduces a number of new

disclosure requirements for these entities.
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2.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

In July 2013, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 which clarify the transition guidance
in HKFRS 10 and provide further relief from full retrospective
application of these standards, limiting the requirement to
provide adjusted comparative information to only the preceding
comparative period. The amendments clarify that retrospective
adjustments are only required if the consolidation conclusion as
to which entities are controlled by the Group is different between
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 27 or HK(SIC)-Int 12 at the beginning of
the annual period in which HKFRS 10 is applied for the first time.
Furthermore, for disclosures related to unconsolidated structured
entities, the amendments will remove the requirement to present
comparative information for periods before HKFRS 12 is first
applied.

The amendments to HKFRS 10 issued in December 2012 include
a definition of an investment entity and provide an exception to
the consolidation requirement for entities that meet the definition
of an investment entity. Investment entities are required to account
for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss in accordance
with HKFRS 9 rather than consolidate them. Consequential
amendments were made to HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011). The
amendments to HKFRS 12 also set out the disclosure requirements
for investment entities. The Group expects that these amendments
will not have any impact on the Group as the Company is not an
investment entity as defined in HKFRS 10.

Consequential amendments were made to HKAS 27 and HKAS 28
as a result of the issuance of HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS
12. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS
12, HKAS 27 (2011), HKAS 28 (2011), and the subsequent
amendments to these standards issued in July and December 2012
from 1 January 2013.
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2.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and a single
source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements
for use across HKFRSs. The standard does not change the
circumstances in which the Group is required to use fair value,
but provides guidance on how fair value should be applied where
its use is already required or permitted under other HKFRSs. The
Group expects to adopt HKFRS 13 prospectively from 1 January
2013.

The HKAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of items presented
in OCI. Items that could be reclassified (or recycled) to profit or
loss at a future point in time (for example, net gain on hedge of
a net investment, exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations, net movement on cash flow hedges and net loss or
gain on available-for-sale financial assets) would be presented
separately from items which will never be reclassified (for
example, actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans and
revaluation of land and buildings). The amendments will affect
presentation only and have no impact on the financial position or
performance. The Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1
January 2013.

HKAS 19 (2011) includes a number of amendments that range
from fundamental changes to simple clarifications and re-wording.
The revised standard introduces significant changes in the
accounting for defined benefit pension plans including removing
the choice to defer the recognition of actuarial gains and losses.
Other changes include modifications to the timing of recognition
for termination benefits, the classification of short-term employee
benefits and disclosures of defined benefit plans. The Group
expects to adopt HKAS 19 (2011) from 1 January 2013.

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of “currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off” for offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities. The amendments also clarify the
application of the offsetting criteria in HKAS 32 to settlement
systems (such as central clearing house systems) which apply
gross settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group upon adoption on 1 January
2014.
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2.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle issued
in June 2012 sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2013.
There are separate transitional provisions for each standard. While
the adoption of some of the amendments may result in changes
in accounting policies, none of these amendments are expected
to have a significant financial impact on the Group. Those
amendments that are expected to have a significant impact on the

Group’s policies are as follows:

(a) HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Clarifies
the difference between voluntary additional comparative
information and the minimum required comparative
information. Generally, the minimum required comparative
period is the previous period. An entity must include
comparative information in the related notes to the financial
statements when it voluntarily provides comparative
information beyond the previous period. The additional
comparative information does not need to contain a complete

set of financial statements.

In addition, the amendment clarifies that the opening
statement of financial position as at the beginning of the
preceding period must be presented when an entity changes
its accounting policies; makes retrospective restatements or
makes reclassifications, and that change has a material effect
on the statement of financial position. However, the related
notes to the opening statement of financial position as at
the beginning of the preceding period are not required to be

presented.

(b) HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation: Clarifies
that income taxes arising from distributions to equity
holders are accounted for in accordance with HKAS 12
Income Taxes. The amendment removes existing income tax
requirements from HKAS 32 and requires entities to apply
the requirements in HKAS 12 to any income tax arising from

distributions to equity holders.
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23 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s profit
or loss to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any

impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a
jointly-controlled entity, in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line
any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group’s
share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of associates is
included in profit or loss and consolidated reserves, respectively.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s investments in the associates, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

The results of associates are included in the Company’s profit
or loss to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s investments in associates are treated as non-current
assets and are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than properties
under development, inventories and financial assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in
use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for

the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent

with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in

the period in which it arises.
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23 SUMMARY OF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(®)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same

group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(iii)

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Richly Field China Development Limited #3 F o [ 8§ & 45 B 24 w)

2.3 FEFEIBORME (&)

I8 34 J5

IR — T WA s A SR I 2 B T

(a)

(b)

S HHENLERENLZHARHB

J% >

)

(ii)
(iii)

Hiz A+

A 4 I EL A 1 o R S ]
il HEE 5

HALEAEAEREET s &

Sy A G B H AN R 2 Ho—
ZEEEMAS ;

%75 T A S AR AT 8 1 2 R

@

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

EBAALE BN —E£E
BB

ZEELSHMEN HMEE
Z B ]~ B A ) B R &R B
AT 2B R B A E A
2

HEEAAEE SRS =
ZEEMRE

ZEMTIE =TTz ERE
1M 75— B A R 5 = O R 2 W

/NI

% FUE A A AR B A B
TR R BAR A 3o 2 B AR
AIFH# 3

% B Z () T 8 A LR Bt
e 5 M

(vii) (@))FFi 2 A8l EA

RGBS ZER (8
HWZEARE) 2HP—2E
TEMAR -



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
f B T AR I

31 March 2013
—E—=4F=H=1—H

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease terms
and 20% to 25%

Office equipment 15% to 33'/.%

Furniture and fixtures 15% to 20%

Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or
loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings that are
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes, or for sale in the ordinary course
of business. Such properties are measured initially at cost less
accumulated depreciation and provision for any impairment in
value. Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis over the
expected useful lives ranging from 5 to 40 years.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in profit or loss in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to profit
or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases net
of any incentives received from the lessor are charged to profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value and comprise construction costs, borrowing
costs, professional fees, payments for land use rights and other
costs directly attributable to such properties incurred during the
development period.

Sales deposits and instalments received in respect of pre-sale

of properties under development prior to completion of the
development are included in current liabilities.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Properties under development (continued)

Properties under development are classified as current assets as
the construction period of the relevant property development
project is expected to complete within the normal operating cycle.
On completion, the properties are transferred to properties held for
sale.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
loans and receivables. The Group determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus

transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or

convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method
less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in other income and gains in profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in profit or loss in finance costs for

loans and in other expenses for receivables.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised
when:

0 the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. In
that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an
incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation
and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant,
or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a

collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.c., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in profit or loss.
Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been

transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account.
If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other
expenses in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
loans and borrowings. The Group determines the classification of

its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable

transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, other
payables and accruals, amount due to related parties, financial
guarantee contracts, and interest-bearing bank and other

borrowings.

Richly Field China Development Limited #3 F o [ 8§ & 45 B 24 w)

2.3 FEFEIBORME (&)

SR AW (80
LI AT <2 i B ()

% S 11 MR TR (LB 2 208 {68 P A 1K MR 17 9
Do T e 18 B R 18 4 MR AR o LB
A TR WD AR S B R R A A > ELER
AR U (EL s 18 IRF P LA 4T B R AR B 4 0 B
MR R AGE - H HEWEATES > B
P A KA o 2 B B s g AR > J
% B SR R[] A ol AH Bl 4

ik A 7 LA S ] i 9 (A 4R 4 B e Y

AU 2 A% % A F) 2 TR i e 2
FUJ 35 208 8 R J35 A < A I k2 S T e
A A A 1R o ik 7 JEL AR ol [ o 5%
TR [m] 5t AR 2 iR 2 LA B 52 o

il AR
VEY T ¥ Tk

A ke RIS 399 v Y B il B R
TR B A K o AR SR A 0 4 e R
M 16 L il 4 P 8

P < BB A A8 4 P (L ARERE - T A
J& B R Bk BRI 5 5
7 o

A A 1Y 4 B 6 A ST AR R - LAt
B A R T R B T M AR B 5 K
T~ eI IR A SRt B ERAT MO A
£ o



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
f B T AR I

31 March 2013
—E—=4F=H=1—H

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate

amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate

amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between

the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to

realise and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs

to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the

Group’s cash management.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and
bank balances comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance

costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and

practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.
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23 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects

neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same

taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to

compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to profit or loss over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
released to profit or loss by the way of a reduced depreciation
charge.
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23 SUMMARY OF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably, on the following bases:

(2)

(®)

(c)

(d)

(e)

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership,

nor effective control over the goods sold;

from the sale of properties, when the risks and rewards
of the properties are transferred to the purchasers, which
is when the construction of the relevant properties has
been completed and the properties have been delivered to
the purchasers pursuant to the sales agreement, and the
collectability of related receivables is reasonably assured;

rental income from properties, in the period in which the
properties are let and on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms;

from construction contracts, on the percentage of completion
basis, as further explained in the accounting policy for
“Construction contracts” below; and

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when

appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Construction contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount and
appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims and incentive
payments. Contract costs incurred comprise direct materials,
the costs of subcontracting, direct labour and an appropriate

proportion of variable and fixed construction overheads.

Revenue from fixed price construction contracts is recognised on
the percentage of completion method, measured by reference to
the proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated total cost
of the relevant contract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are
anticipated by management. Where contract costs incurred to date
plus recognised profits less recognised losses exceed progress
billings, the surplus is treated as an amount due from contract
customers. Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred
to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus

is treated as an amount due to contract customers.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in
the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value
at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by an external valuer using a binomial model, further details of
which are given in note 33 to the financial statements.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which
the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at
the end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as

at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or

service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification that increases
the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the

original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in central pension
schemes operated by the local municipal governments. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage of their
payroll costs to the central pension schemes. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance

with the rules of the central pension schemes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Where funds have been borrowed generally, and used for the
purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, a capitalised rate ranging
between 3.9% and 0.3% has been applied to the expenditure on
the individual assets.

2.3 FEFEIBORME (&)

oA i B 5 1
Bk EatH

A EAR B R R e N B R B R B
JI A A 6 A 2 B o T AR A A
(MR A8 &t #)) 2 {8 B war—JHEH
PR AR B R H o IR 5 AR S Rl ) 2
A > R4 0R B A & 2 A 2 HeA
o SR R A R R A SR AR AR o AR Rt
Bl BRI R > W
AL 2 FEISH o AEEMEHZEE
PR A B8 B < 4R B 4 o dg R O
R -

AL ] 7 v B A b T Y s F 2 AR
B2 Bty b 7 T BUR 8L 2 LR AR
PRI H o 5% 55 M a2 Al JHA% % 55 8 B
TEZHATASL 1525 b SR IR
B T A b K o AR A v SRR AR BE R
B 2 FLR > RO AT IR 7E 18 2 MR A 4T

i B A

WE - RS ERERERE (MF
K& — Bef= IRy ] 7 AT AR fE 2 B 4
ZEE) BEEAEEEABTESR
Ve R i EE AT Y - HEEKR
bR AE S E AR s B o A B AR
BRAKEBATEES - ARSEREZ
I BCE B R B WA CR R A
B AN ABTEARZERRA
HAIER o B A H A 8 AR 7R 7 AR 39 ]
S o BB o R R R i O T
P 2 B B A AR P ALK

HESERBOMEBALTAERESEHRE
FEIRE > I Bl & E 2 B 5 F3.9%E
0.3%Z EARL L RFIA -

Annual Report 2013 — % — ZAEAE

81



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A By 1 25 A Y

31 March 2013
—E -S4V — H

82

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s presentation currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined. The gain
or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into the presentation currency of
the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and, their statement of comprehensive income
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on

the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied

properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers
whether a property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. If these portions could be sold separately or leased
out separately under a finance lease, the Group accounts for the
portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an
individual property basis to determine whether ancillary services
are so significant that a property does not qualify as an investment

property.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year, are described below.

Valuation of properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. The estimated net realisable value is the
estimated selling price less selling expenses and the estimated
cost of completion, which are estimated based on the valuation

assessed by an independent external qualified valuer.

Impairment of investment properties, properties under

development and land lease premium

The Group adopts cost model for subsequent measurement of
investment properties and land lease premium. Management
performs review for impairment of investment properties and
land lease premium whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amounts of investment properties and
land lease premium may not be recoverable. In such case, the
recoverable amounts of investment properties and land lease
premium have been determined based on value-in-use method. For
the purpose of assessing impairment, management had grouped
investment properties and land lease premium at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows cash
generating units. The value-in-use calculations require the use of
significant estimates and assumptions on the projections of cash

flows from the continuous use of investment properties.

The Group’s management reviews the properties under
development periodically and carries out an impairment review on
a project-by-project basis at each financial year end. The budget
cost and development progress of the project is reviewed by the
Group on a regular basis and adjusted as appropriate. Should
the actual cost differs from the budget cost, such difference will

impact the accuracy of cost of properties held for sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment loss on other receivables

In determining whether impairment loss on other receivables is
required, the Group takes into consideration the ageing status
and the likelihood of collection. Following the identification
of doubtful debts, the Group’s responsible personnel discusses
with the relevant debtors and reports to management on the
recoverability. Impairment loss is only made for receivables that
are unlikely to be collected.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment of all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting
period. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there
are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs to sell is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Current tax and deferred tax assets

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and Mainland
China. The Group carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions in accordance with the prevailing tax regulations and
makes tax provision accordingly. However, judgement is required
in determining the Group’s provision for income taxes as there
are many transactions and calculations of which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
on the income tax and deferred tax provision in the periods in
which such determination is made. The carrying amount of income
tax payable, carried as a liability in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2013 was HK$7,687,000 (2012
(Restated): HK$28,518,000).

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. There was no deferred tax recognised with respect
to tax losses at 31 March 2013 (2012: Nil). The amount of
unrecognised tax losses at 31 March 2013 was HK$70,878,000
(2012: HK$96,949,000). Further details are contained in note 11
to the financial statements.

Useful lives of depreciable assets

The Group’s management exercises its judgement in estimating
the useful lives of the depreciable assets. The estimated useful
lives reflect the management’s estimate of the periods the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of these
assets.

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties in accordance with the accounting policies
stated in note 2.3 to the financial statements. The net carrying
amounts of property, plant and equipment and investment
properties are disclosed in notes 14 and 15 to the financial
statements, respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Percentage of completion of construction contracts

The Group recognises revenue for construction contracts according
to the percentage of completion of the individual construction
contract. The Group’s management estimates the percentage of
completion of construction contract based on the actual cost
incurred over the total budgeted cost, where corresponding
contract revenue is also estimated by management. Because of the
nature of the activity undertaken in construction contracts, the date
at which the activity is entered into and the date when the activity
is completed usually fall into different accounting periods. The
Group reviews and revises the estimates of both contract revenue
and contract costs in the budget prepared for each construction

contract as the contract progresses.

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

Management reviews the aging analysis of inventories of the
Group at the end of each reporting period, and makes provision
for inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for
sale. The assessment of the provision amount required involves
management judgements and estimates. Where the actual outcome
or expectation in future is different from the original estimate,
such differences will have an impact on the carrying value of
the inventories and provision charge/write-back in the period in
which the estimate has been changed. In addition, physical counts
on all inventories are carried out on a periodical basis in order to
determine whether provision needs to be made in respect of any
obsolete inventories identified. The Group carries out an inventory
review at the end of each reporting period and makes provision
against obsolete and slow-moving items. Management reassesses
the estimation at the end of each reporting period. The directors
of the Company are satisfied that sufficient provision on obsolete
and slow-moving inventories has been made in the consolidated

financial statements.
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PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2013, the Company identified errors
and omissions in its presentation and disclosures of certain
transactions and balances in the previously issued consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012. Those
errors include: (i) prepaid land lease payments incorrectly
included in “Investment properties”; (ii) prepaid land lease
payments in respect of undeveloped land parcels construction
were incorrectly included in “Properties under development” and
were not amortised over the respective terms of the land leases;
(iii) certain administrative expenses were incorrectly capitalised in
“Investment properties” and “Properties under development”; (iv)
valuation of share options granted at grant date were not properly
estimated in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment;
and (v) construction revenue was not recognised in accordance
with the percentage of completion method under HKAS 11

Construction Contracts.

Consequently, the Company’s consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2012 and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and certain explanatory notes have been restated to correct

those errors.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
f B T AR I

31 March 2013
—E—=4F=H=1—H

4. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (continued) 4. MAAERERE ()
Group AR
Effects on the consolidated statement of comprehensive income HEE-_FT-"HF=H=1T—HILFE
for the year ended 31 March 2012: ZEAR RIS R R
The Group
as previously The Group
reported Error Reclassification as restated
AL adjustments adjustments AL
(In5EHT 2 ) Hadl e EH R (KEE= )
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
T T THET T
Revenue g 289 50,554 = 50,843
Cost of sales BB A (197) (34,188) (4,825) (39,210)
Impairment loss of amount JREMSC g 5 R RO 2
due from an associate WAE R = = (13,079) (13,079)
Other income and gains HoAt e A B 5 18,492 (1,541) - 16,951
Selling expenses $H8 B S (5,860) 945 (3,172) (8,087)
Administrative expenses TR % (110,448) (27,272) 21,076 (116,644)
Finance costs Eiy<¢-4il = (962) - (962)
Loss for the year attributable to: RUNSW/ Paii] 2
Owners of the Company E/NCIE 2N (78,493) (13,414) = (91,907)
Non-controlling interests I P R 45 (21,884) 950 = (20,934)
(100,377) (12,464) - (112,841)
Effects on the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 HEZE_—_F—-—"F=A=+—HILFE
March 2012: ZERE BRI R Z B
The Group
as previously The Group
reported Error Reclassification as restated
4L adjustments adjustments AL
QPGS SRR EH BN (K8E51)
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T#T T T
Increase/(decrease) wan (i)
ASSETS &iE
Investment properties TEWE 554,746 17,101 (324,895) 246,952
Prepaid land lease payments FEAT T Hb AR B 3K = - 641,127 641,127
Properties under development it/ B 855,557 (77,997) (360,950) 416,610
Prepayments, deposits and TN IE ~ e a K
other receivables HoA i H 56,176 (21,751) 37,651 72,076
Due from related parties JREE i P 3 7 K R 47,322 = (980) 46,342
LIABILITIES Al
Amount due to a contract customer  JEfT & 4% F 2 IE = = 160,593 160,593
Trade payables JEAS AR K 21,179 46,066 1,499 68,744
Receipts in advance, other payables  FEUEIE » HAbEST
and accruals SROE KR 404,122 (126,411) (172,056) 105,655
Tax payable JEA B I 19,610 6,991 1,917 28,518
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4. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (continued) 4. MAAERERE ()
Group (continued) A (A7)
Effects on the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 HEzr - _—F=H=+—HILEF
March 2012 (Continued): A MBI R MR - ()
The Group

as previously
reported Error
AL adjustments

The Group
Reclassification as restated
adjustments AL

QP TEEY SRRATRE EH KR (K51

HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000
Tt T Tt Tt
Increase/(decrease) B ()
EQUITY i
Share option reserves I R HE A 18,642 8,109 - 26,751
Exchange translation reserves B A 29,566 (294) 101 29,373
Statutory reserve funds R & - 6,215 - 6,215
Accumulated losses Z5tEHE (854,735) (18,065) (6,414) (879,214)
Non-controlling interests FEHE IR 5 287,171 (5,258) 6,313 288,226
Company A ]
Effects on the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2012: gz 2 _—F=H=+—HILEF
Z BRI R Z B -
The Company
as previously The Company
reported Error  Reclassification as restated
AvE] adjustments adjustments /N
(nemi 24 Rl B (K8 5)
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$°000
Ti#T T T THT T T
Increase/(decrease) s ()
ASSETS j2g3
Investments in subsidiaries RHHE A R 2 B4 464,344 - 10,192 474,536
Investments in associates BB AR A - - 49,999 49,999
Loan to an associate BTHE AR Z B 49,999 - (49,999) -
LIABILITIES =8
Due to a subsidiary JREASF eI A ) 3R - - 10,192 10,192
EQUITY B2
Share option reserves W R R A 18,642 8,109 - 26,751
Accumulated losses 5t (708,122) (8,109) - (716,231)
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Over 90% of the Group’s revenue, expenses and assets are
generated from the Group’s property development project in
Changsha, Hunan Province, the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) (the “Changsha Project”). The management of the
Group makes decisions about resources allocation and assesses
performance of the Group based on the operating results from and
financial position of these business activities. Accordingly, the
directors are of the opinion the Changsha Project in the PRC is a
single reportable operating segment of the Group.

An analysis of the Group’s revenues from external customers for
each group of similar products and services is disclosed in note 6
to the financial statements.

The Group’s revenue from external customers is derived solely
from its operations in the PRC, and all non-current assets (other
than financial assets) of the Group are located in the PRC.

During the year, the Group mainly had transactions with a single
external customer (2012 (Restated): one) which contributed over
90% of the Group’s total revenue. The revenue generated from the
sales to this customer for the year amounted to HK$27,414,000
(2012 (Restated): HK$50,554,000).

BB W E R

7 AR [ R 90% 2 W g - BH S B E Y
FEAE A A N R IR ([
) MEERPzYEERER (RY
JEH J) o 7S 45 B T8 MR 48 5% 25 2SS
By 2 75 4 S48 % W BUIR D A S TR 43 i
PR R R Al AL B 2 R B - BRIt >
HERRTERYEHE AALEE -2
B -

A B2 1 25 R DL il S MR 55 AL 1 AR A
5 Z MR o0 AT A S 5 AR B R 6 1 8 o

AN F 2 Ut (AR B P 2 5
B MALENAFREEE (&RE
FEBRAN) AL H B o

R, AEBFER -Z (ZF—
F(RE) : — ) INEEF ELT L
5> H B 22 G 4G A S AR IR £590% DA
Feo N BZEF & ELEZ W
F527,414,000% 7T (& — T4 (5 &
51) @ 50,554,0004 7C) °
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6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents an
appropriate proportion of contract revenue from a construction
contract; the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowance for
returns and trade discounts; and gross rental income received and

receivable from investment properties during the year.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains is as

Wodk ~ A A B W gR

e (BPASEB BRI TG4
Z Bl B R B B R
AR [0 R 5 T AR I B IR R 0 RAE N
E W B BB B B ) 3 2 A B W\ R

ASE B g~ HAt A Bl R 2 a0 A

follows: T
2013 2012
e e I
Notes HKS$’000 HKS$’000
Mt it Fi#or Fior
(Restated)
(8 41)
Revenue &
Construction revenue I 25 (a) 27,414 50,554
Sales of fashion wears and accessories K2 & Jir fiffi 65 518 289
Gross rental income FH A YA B8%H 11 =
27,943 50,843
Other income and gains Ho At A B e g
Bank interest income SRAT A E A 290 550
Other interest income Ho A St A (b),(c),(d) 10,812 9,021
Late payment interest income 3 A A ORISR A - 626
Exchange gains, net [ifE 5, e i 1 465 5,724
Financial guarantee fee income MAEER I 39(b)(i) 740 359
Others HoAth 191 671
12,498 16,951
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries 1B BT B A W) 2 i 35 6,446 7,219
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6.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

Notes:

(2)

(®)

(©)

(d)

*

On 18 March 2010, Hunan Richly Field Outlets Real Estate Limited* (i#]
T I BRURRHE i 1 2645 /A ) (“Hunan Richly Field”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Wangcheng Economic Development
Zone Construction and Development Company Limited* (2IR4EH
i 2 5 B #E /A7) (previously known as Wangcheng Development
and Construction Investment Company Limited* (2355 B %8 i a4k
AN ED)) (“Wangcheng Investment™), a state-owned entity, entered
into a construction contract (the “Construction Contract”), pursuant
to which Wangcheng Investment appointed Hunan Richly Field, as
the primary constructor, to provide construction services for some of
the infrastructures and supporting facilities surrounding the Changsha
Project, which mainly include municipal power facilities project, earth
project, drainage and sewer project and gardens landscape project at a
cash consideration of RMB251,474,000 (equivalent to HK$310,797,000).
Based on the percentage of completion method in accordance with the
accounting policies stated in note 2.3 to the financial statements, the Group
recognised construction revenue of HK$27,414,000 (2012 (Restated):
HK$50,554,000) in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
during the year ended 31 March 2013.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group recognised interest
income of HK$10,277,000 (2012: HK$4,144,000) in respect of a loan
to Qinhuangdao Outlets Real Estate Company Limited (“Qinhuangdao
Outlets”), an associate of the Company. Further details of the
transaction are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 6 January

2012 and note 18(c) to the financial statements.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group recognised interest
income from a deposit placed with Qionghai Millennium Investment
Co., Ltd* (T EHRAA) (“Qionghai Investment”), a
company owned as to 54.3% by Mr. Leung Ho Hing (“Mr. Leung”)
(a substantial sharcholder of the Company), of HK$379,000 (2012:
HK$2,789,000). Details of this transaction are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 6 March 2013 and note 23(a) to the financial

statements.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group recognised
interest income from deposits placed with Guangdong Yangjiang
Construction Group Company Limited* (J# 5 & 57117 2 % 42 [E A F
/3 H]) (“Yangjiang”) and Guangzhou Haizhu Payi Decoration Design
Services Department* (J# JH 7 ¥ BRI 24 i i 5T R B HT) (“Payi”),
both independent external parties, of HK$4,000 (2012: HK$961,000)
and HK$152,000 (2012: HKS$1,127,000), respectively. Details of these

transactions are set out in note 22(a) to the financial statements.

For identification purposes only
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. ME#EM
An analysis of the Group’s finance costs is as follows: AL BEE MO
2013 2012
S =t JY
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
F T THT
(Restated)
(KEHE %))
Interest on bank and other loans wholly SEE R R B R 2 SR AT &
repayable within five years HoAth B A S 66,663 28,978
Less: Interest capitalised o DEAREFE (44,257) (28,016)
22,406 962

The capitalisation rates used to determine the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation for the years ended 31 March 2013

and 2012 were 3.9% and 0.3%, respectively.
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31 March 2013

CE = H=t—H

8. LOSS BEFORE TAX 8. BB il i 18
The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): AEHGHEBERDING S (GEA) Tl
Ig -
2013 2012
—E A TR
Note HKS$’000 HKS$’000
K7 Fi#x FitEor
(Restated)
(K& 3)
Cost of inventories sold EEFEEH 1,998 197
Cost of services provided B2 IR A B A 22,453 34,188
Depreciation e 2,101 1,996
Provision for compensation B AE 4 A 31 530 325
Write-down of inventories ORATE 5 2 ] 5 B R
to net realisable value” 6,858 4,825
Amortisation of prepaid land TEAT - Hb B S
lease payments 11,851 12,059
Less: Amount capitalised W DEARMbZ 2 (5,853) (5,936)
5,998 6,123
Auditors’ remuneration 3 GRS 1,500 1,300
Minimum lease payments under FRPEA B 1 Hh Ko A 580
operating leases in respect NP & W
of land and buildings 4,105 4,486
Direct operating expenses WA S 2 EWEELE 2
(including repairs and maintenance)  E.#EAEE BT (ALFE4EE X
arising on rental-earning investment REE)
properties 3,913 -
Employee benefit expense (including {8 BEAI I X (WHFEH
directors’ remuneration (note 9)): < (BEE9)) -
Wages and salaries TE K4 31,892 30,656
Equity-settled share option expense DA 4 4% 5 2 W I HE BH =2 1,571 7,392
Pension scheme contributions AR ARAE A AL 3 2,415 4,804
35,878 42,852
# This amount is included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated statement # ZAaBEAG S IR FE 2 [HE
of comprehensive income. <A e
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9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9.

Directors’ remuneration and chief executive’s for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and Section 161 of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

o

RIRAE W W & 52 5 T A PR W] (T2 BT )
W LR (T TR ) K2 m ik
ISR 161 14 i < B 48 B ATBORERAR A 4
FEIEIIT -

Group

A4 B
2013 2012
TR =ZE——Gk=
HKS$’000 HKS$000
T# 7 T T
(Restated)
(& 51)
Fees 14 3,084 3,478

Other emoluments: HAb 4 -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Hid o B R BRI 360 240
Equity-settled share-based payments DIRE S 4505 2 DA By 2 i 2 A5 3k 2,338 3,910
Pension scheme contributions B AR A 5 ) 448 30 24
2,728 4,174
5,812 7,652

During prior years, certain directors were granted share options,
in respect of their services to the Group, under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out in
note 33 to the financial statements. The fair value of these options,
which has been recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included
in the financial statements for the current year is included in the
above directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration disclosures.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or

agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2012: Nil).
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31 March 2013
CE = H=t—H

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 9. EHM4E (&)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) B IERATESE
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during AEN A B ST JE AT E R A 2 M4
the year are as follows: I
2013 2012
- St TR
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#x THETT
Mr. Liu Ming Fang B 5 5e 4 14 177
Mr. Yiu Fai Ming R A S A= 154 =
Mr. Hou Rong Ming 5 5E IE S A= 140 —
Mr. Lin Qi MRS AR 140 —
Mr. He Chuan ] )11 e 4 - 177
Mr. Cho Denise Yee Man A8 ek - 177
448 531
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent A A Slf7 48 1) g ST FIF AT EE S A HoAt
non-executive directors during the year (2012: Nil). P4 (—F— 4F ) o
(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (b) BUITHEFIIEPTEDSE
Salaries,
allowances Equity-settled Pension
and benefits  share-based scheme Total
Fees in kind payment contributions remuneration
DAHE SR 45 50
B EE DkfBA BKEAM 4
e REWMAG  ERzAE aHBIEs s
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS’000 HKS$000 HKS$000
Ti#x T#x T#x T#x T
2013 —F -
Chief executive: B -
Mr. He Guang ek 1,440 360 1,344 15 3,159
Executive director: HITES
Mr. Wong Kin Fai A 848 - 994 15 1,857
2,288 360 2,338 30 5,016
Non-executive directors: FRTES
Mr. Huang Shao Xiong WO 180 - - - 180
Mr. Wang Yuan Xun T 168 - - - 168
348 - - - 348
2,636 360 2,338 30 5,364
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9.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (continued)

9. HFHMEL (@)

(b) BUTHEFRIEMITHEF (5

Salaries,
allowances Equity-settled Pension
and benefits  share-based scheme Total

Fees in kind payment contributions remuneration
DIMEf 45
4 LR 2 B 5
e REWMG R s Fiski)
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
THT Tk FIET T T#7T
(Restated) (Restated)
(K8 H5) (K1)
2012 —E— U
Chief executive: AR
Mr. He Guang (Epjivinaa 1,620 240 2,248 12 4,120
Executive director: WITHEF
Mr. Wong Kin Fai A 961 - 1,662 12 2,635
2,581 240 3,910 24 6,755
Non-executive directors: FfTES
Mr. Huang Shao Xiong WM 188 = = = 188
Mr. Wang Yuan Xun FooE et 178 = = = 178
366 - - - 366
2,947 240 3,910 24 7,121

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included one

director and the chief executive (2012: one director and the chief

executive), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 9

above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining

three (2012: three) non-director, highest paid employees are as

follows:

10. 4% 35 = %7 T O B

FERNEARFHHMES S > G —2ESR

B—RATHAER (T — 4 —ZEER
—ZATECAEE) > N 4 A R L SR R

9o N > Hfp =& (mF— 4 =4)
FEHEEREFIEES 2 FMEEEW R

Group

A4 [E
2013 2012
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T# 7 T T
Salaries, allowances, and benefits in kind Brd > BN RCE YA 3R 2,761 3,432
Pension scheme contributions ER N I AR 84 12
2,845 3,444
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose

remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

10. Ak e HimiEE (&)

I E S P A 2 JEE R s N B 2
ANSE -

No. of individuals

N i
2013 2012
et B 1 ey
Nil to HK$1,000,000 L% 1,000,000 T 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7 765 1,500,000% 7T 1 2
3 3

During the prior years, share options were granted to a
non-director and non-chief executive highest paid employee in
respect of his services to the Group, further details of which are
included in the disclosures in note 33 to the financial statements.
The fair value of these options, which has been recognised in
profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the
date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements
for the current year is included in the above non-director and
non-chief executive highest paid employees’ remuneration
disclosures.

4 1 — (30 96 B AT 2 e
4 0 O 3 A 40 ) 0 A
HE A7 B — 2 R 0 BTS2 W
533 o AL 7 5 0D P AR 35 0
PANHE AT > BRET H I RE 1
HAEI SRR 2 SRS a1
0 A A R O L
2 -
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11. INCOME TAX 11.

For the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC, PRC
Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at the rate of 25% (2012:
25%).

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made for the
year ended 31 March 2013 as the Group did not generate any
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year (2012:
Nil). Taxes on profits assessable in elsewhere have been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which

the Group operates.

Fin 53 Bt

A B A S 2 B AR S >
B A 2 T 15 BT R B R25% (. FE —
41 25%) I o

AREBARFRE (ZF—4F 0 E) EFEB
48 7 A AT ] E SR B R A > PR UL R iR 2 —
F—ZFEZA=ZT—HILEEZ FHB G
Bl H Ml o HoAth b 7 2 FERR B s A 2 B
THAR AL E 2 BR ATHEERZ
BIATBLEFT A o

2013 2012
ey A ===
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
Fi#x T
Group: ALEH
Current — Mainland China AR — o A3
Overprovision in prior years T A B R A 9,437 -
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11. INCOME TAX (continued)

11. st (s

A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to loss before tax at
the statutory/applicable rates for the jurisdictions in which the

Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the

2 A R B AT s 48 45 AR 2 ) B R R 43 B
J& > A 2 R T AE W A R R 8
PR ARG A 2 BRI % > B 4% T MR B Rt

tax credit at the effective tax rate is as follows: B RIEIE RN
Group
A4
2013 2012
R 4R —E -
HKS$’000 HKS$000
T T
(Restated)
(KT A)
Loss before tax R Hi 5 48 (111,495) (112,841)
Tax at the statutory tax/applicable tax rates AR F] AERE R E B
of different jurisdictions pi D S = W (25,301) (24,855)
Adjustments in respect of current tax A4 7 408 [T B R )
of previous periods (9,437) -
Losses attributable to associates B B ) JE A s 4R 449 1,629
Income not subject to tax THE GBI Z WA (716) (28)
Expenses not deductible for tax ANAT B2 B S 3,816 4,056
Tax losses not recognised KRR 2 BiIH 518 22,096 19,505
Others HoAh (344) (307)
Tax credit for the year AAE 2 B IR A (9,437) -

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the share of tax expense
attributable to associates amounting to HK$45,205,000 (Restated)
was included in “share of losses of associates” in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB57,349,000(equivalent to HK$70,878,000) (2012:
RMB78,859,000 (equivalent to HK$96,949,000)) that will
expire in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been
loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can

be utilised.

BE_F-"F=H=1+—HILFERX
A £ B ORE AL B A A W M B JH B X
45,205,000 o0 (K EH]) EFFA%EH 20
Wi a2 [ HEAL B2 A Fl s 4R A -

7% 4 A b B A b A B TE S 1R N R
57,349,0007C (#H 45 jj270,878,000% JT) (—
T — A AR %78,859,0000T (HH &5 it
96,949,000%5 7)) > A% A — & A 14 T
DA A 1K 5 A 2R B U ) o E A % S s
B W BBk A5 1R — BOiE R 2 B A 7 E
Ao M ER S AR K W] B ME R i A AT AL S
SHBLIE 1R - WO R A % 5 s R R R
BT & o
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12. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 12. AA"#HA A\JEALEGIR

COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the Company for BE - F—=ZF=HA=+—HIEFEEARL
the year ended 31 March 2013 includes a loss of HK$82,427,000 AEA NEL S BIR AR B R AN | B
(2012: HK$39,998,000) which has been dealt with in the financial i3k s Bl 2 B 1H82,427,000% 7T (5%
statements of the Company (note 34(b)). — " 4F 2 39,998,000%57T) (FifEE34(b)) °

13. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY 13. AA G ¥ E A\ E TR E

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY i

The calculation of basic loss per share amounts is based on the T B FE AR s 8 4 5 TG MR B AR N T 3 om M 2
loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the A NFENELEE DLRFERND BT
Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 0 RN RESE- Y G -

issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share amounts MR E ="K - F—"4HF=H=
presented for the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012 in respect +— B IR A R AT R R 2 2
of a dilution as the share options outstanding had no dilutive RS R e sE D e R 2 . Rt s
effect on the basic loss per share amounts presented. S 4 e 48 2 ) 2 0 A I B AR s 1R AR
The calculations of basic loss per share are based on: FEFEA R DL SR e
2013 2012
—E = E S
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T#x THETT
(Restated)
(REE L)
Loss | Fi]
Loss attributable to ordinary equity holders EN/NCIRS L e N
of the Company, used in the basic loss W18 AR EHE S
per share calculation HeAEE (96,901) (91,907)

Number of shares

It % H
2013 2012
=g —E
Shares Jiz
Weighted average number of ordinary shares RN DB T T4
in issue during the year, used in the basic FIAFHA A A 1R
loss per share calculation 8,880,874,303 8,880,874,303
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. W3 ~ W Kokt
Group AAE
Furniture
Leasehold Office and Motor
improvements  equipment fixtures vehicles Total
I &

MEWREE  RARH  HekE gt At
HKS000  HKS’000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000
T T T Tt T

31 March 2013 —R—-==H=+—R
At 1 April 2012 (as restated) REF—"AFNA—H (KEHT))

Cost B 532 2,916 413 4,997 8,858

Accumulated depreciation 25T s (198) (842) (79) (2,113) (3,232)

Net carrying amount JFE T VA 334 2,074 334 2,884 5,626
At 1 April 2012, net of RZE—ZFNA—H >

accumulated depreciation B 25HE (REF)

(as restated) 334 2,074 334 2,884 5,626
Additions NE - 1,007 23 850 1,880
Disposal/written off HE - - 1 - 1)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 35)  HEME AT (335 - (1) (35) (328) (404)
Depreciation provided during N AT

the year 177 (634) ©) (1222 @101
Exchange realignment EE J 8 1) (1) 1) - 3)
At 31 March 2013, net of RE-F—=4=H=+—H>

accumulated depreciation bk £t e 156 2,405 252 2,184 4,997
At 31 March 2013: REF—=F=A=F—H:

Cost BA 532 3,665 390 5,504 10,091

Accumulated depreciation Z5Hne (376) (1,260) (138) (3,320) (5,094)

Net carrying amount T T Y38 (1 156 2,405 252 2,184 4,997
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

14. W3 ~ B Kot ()

Group (continued) AAEH (%)
Furniture
Leasehold Office and Motor
improvements  equipment fixtures vehicles Total
IR
HEWREKE  WARE HERE JRH w5t
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HK$’000
T T TH#T THT TH#T
31 March 2012 (as restated) “E-THEZA=F—H (BES)
At 1 April 2011: RZFE——4FNA—H :
Cost BA 304 2,270 48 5,233 7,855
Accumulated depreciation P (51) (224) (18) (943) (1,236)
Net carrying amount M TV 253 2,046 30 4,290 6,619
At 1 April 2011, net of REF——FNA—H
accumulated depreciation b A5t 253 2,046 30 4,290 6,619
Additions NE 214 477 377 756 1,824
Disposals/written off e/ - (65) (48) (1,010) (1,123)
Depreciation provided during FERATE
the year (147) (618) (61) (1,170) (1,996)
Exchange realignment EE 5 14 234 36 18 302
At 31 March 2012, net of WoZE—-"H=H=+—H>
accumulated depreciation ks Rt E 334 2,074 334 2,884 5,626
At 31 March 2012: WoFE—"HE=H=+—H:
Cost % 532 2,916 413 4,997 8,858
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (198) (842) (79) (2,113) (3,232)
Net carrying amount T R 334 2,074 334 2,884 5,626
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

14. W3 ~ B Kot ()

Company . A |
Office Furniture Motor
equipment and fixtures vehicle Total
3193
A ] [i] 5 %% HH HagE
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
FEx Fi#c F#r FiEx
31 March 2013 —B—=F=H=+—H
At 1 April 2012: RoFE M —H
Cost A 59 49 360 468
Accumulated depreciation e i (29) (29) (183) (241)
Net carrying amount R T VR(E 30 20 177 227
At 1 April 2012, net of P —AEPIH —H >
accumulated depreciation Bk RAFHT 30 20 177 227
Depreciation provided A TR T F A
during the year 12) (&) (72) 93)
At 31 March 2013, net of MR_E—=4F=H=+—H >
accumulated depreciation Bk A5t 18 11 105 134
At 31 March 2013: MNoEFE—=FE=HA=+—H:
Cost A 59 49 360 468
Accumulated depreciation i (41) (38) (255) (334)
Net carrying amount IR T v 18 11 105 134
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14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Company (continued)

14. W3 ~ B Kot ()

AT (47)

Office Furniture Motor
equipment and fixtures vehicle Total
(ELIYN
b N ] i 5E e 1RE e
HK$°000 HK3$°000 HKS$000 HKS$'000
T T T T T T T
31 March 2012 —F——H=H=+—8
At 1 April 2011: WoFE 5N —H
Cost A 58 49 360 467
Accumulated depreciation e i (19) (18) (111) (148)
Net carrying amount ] T VR(E 39 31 249 319
At 1 April 2011, net of W E——4 WA —H -
accumulated depreciation Bk A5t 39 31 249 319
Additions NE 9 - - 9
Disposals e (8) - - ®)
Depreciation provided RN B
during the year (10) (11) (72) (93)
At 31 March 2012, net of MNoE—"HE=H=+—H >
accumulated depreciation Bk A5 30 20 177 227
At 31 March 2012: W oFE—"HF=H=1—H:
Cost JAS 59 49 360 468
Accumulated depreciation ZEHreE (29) (29) (183) (241)
Net carrying amount R T VR L 30 20 177 227
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. #&W#%

Group
A S
Under
Completed construction Total
TR e 5t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FioT TIT TIT
At 1 April 2011 (Restated) at cost WE——FNH—H (KHEH) — 141,608 141,608
Additions (Restated) WHE (KE) = 97,014 97,014
Exchange realignment (Restated) e 50, R % (Z8H 51 = 8,330 8,330
At 31 March 2012 and at W_E—ZHFE = = —H R
1 April 2012 (Restated) ZE-TAAEMA—H (REF) - 246,952 246,952
Additions wHE - 141,219 141,219
Transfer LLX¢ 44,036 (44,036) -
Depreciation provided AR A TR A
during the year (3,914) - (3,914)
Exchange realignment REE 54, ) %% 348 4,503 4,851
At 31 March 2013 REF—-=F=A=+—H 40,470 348,638 389,108

All of the Group’s investment properties are situated in Mainland
China.

At 31 March 2013, the above investment properties were valued at
HK$544,300,000 (2012 (Restated): HK$510,200,000) which was
carried out by Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of
professionally qualified valuers, on an open market, existing use
basis. The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included in
note 37(a) to the financial statements.

At 31 March 2013, the Group’s investment properties with a
net carrying amount of HK$225,455,000 (2012 (Restated):
HK$221,877,000) were pledged to secure certain bank loans of
the Group (note 29).

A B 2 B 3 2 TR T B A 3

WoFE—=4F=A=1—H> L& YE
Z A {H £5544,300,000% J0 (& — AR (58
H41) :510,200,000% 7)) - T4 A 5L 2
B R Al TR R A BR A R A B
TG4 A R AT o IRE MR EA
BHEMETE = SRR
R EE37(a) ©

WoF—ZAF=H=1—H> REEERF
8 7#4225,455,000% Jo(— & — —4F (K &
5) 221877000#%71: ZHREWECAER
A A EE L T AR T B LA (5 29) ©
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16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 16. FEAF L AL %
Group
AR H
2013 2012
TR -S4 e S
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
Fi#ET Fi#Eor
(Restated)
(EE )
Carrying amount at 1 April AP A — B Z iR {E 653,073 633,999
Recognised during the year A R HERR (11,851) (12,059)
Transfer to properties under B TE Y ZE (MFE19)
development (note 19) (37,186) -
Exchange realignment [FE 54, i 5) 31,133
Carrying amount at 31 March R=H =+ —H 2R (E 604,031 653,073
Current portion included in prepayments, SEATENRIE - 4 R Ho At fE
deposits and other receivables (note 22) WK 2 B ER 43 (B 7E22) (11,679) (11,946)
Non-current portion IE W B A 592,352 641,127
The Group’s leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and is PSSyl E S~ R A L N B N e
held under the following lease terms: AR
Group
A4
2013 2012
TR AR N S
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
Fi#L T T
Long term leases AT 383,391 426,560
Medium term leases A 220,640 226,513
604,031 653,073
At 31 March 2013, the Group’s leasehold land with a net carrying N_F ===t —H AR
amount of HK$217,590,000 (2012 (Restated): Nil) was pledged to FE£5217,590,0003 0 (—F — 4F (58F
secure certain bank loans of the Group (note 29). F) : ) 2 FE T EAE A AR EEE R

THRATE R ZEAN (MaE29) -
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. RHEA ¥ ZRE (@)
Company
AR ]
2013 2012
RS- o T
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
Fi#ET FitEor
(Restated)
(EE )
Unlisted shares, at cost I Ay > HERAS 15,000 15,000
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE Wi i 28 2 ) S TE 424,858 473,120
439,858 488,120
Less: Impairment loss W AR (55,364) (13,584)
384,494 474,536
Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and JARE iz T JE8 > D 3 JE A AR P G S I 4[]
have no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the directors, FERPH o HERE > ZEA RGN AR
these balances are considered as quasi-equity investments in the Bt 28 B 2 B AR REAR o
subsidiaries.
The amount due to a subsidiary included in the Company’s current T AR ik ) A8 2 A B A R R £
liabilities of HK$10,192,000 (2012 (Restated): HK$10,192,000) is 10,192,000% 7T (= & — Z4F (K & 7)) -
unsecured, interest-free and is repayable on demand. 10,192,000% 75) > 2 MEHEHR ~ o5 R HRER
fE -
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17. W& A V2 & (40
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: KNE 7 FERE A B FHENT
Percentage of
Issued and nominal value of
Place of fully paid issued capital/
incorporation/ share capital/ registered capital
Name operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
ALY R CETHMERA  RAWEECEITRA
4 1 R it A  GEMEAmEEAE R
Directly Indirectly
HE il 4%
Chuang Yu Holdings Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - 100  Investment holding
(“Chuang Yu”) il KL Eid gLl
R PR R (TR 1)
Globe Outlets City Holdings Limited ~ Hong Kong HKS1 - 100 Investment holding
(“Globe Outlets”) s ST BB
SRR B St 42 BT I
AR R ([ HFER i 5 1)
Globe Outlets City Limited British Virgin US$1 100 — Investment holding
SRR SR St 54 R AT A RS Islands (“BVI”) 170 BB
B IR LR
Hunan Richly Field"* (note (a) & (c)) The PRC/ HK$469,000,000 - 100  Property development
A6 (ffita & c) Mainland China 469,000,000 7T VEEE
i o
Jiangxi Richly Town Construction The PRC/ HK$10,000,000 100 —  Construction and
Projects Co., Limited* Mainland China  10,000,000% G maintenance
(“Jiangxi Richly Town™) # B o e Y&

TLVG# H RS TR PR ]
(ML P4 ) #
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

17. RHE AR ZH#E (@)

Percentage of

Issued and nominal value of
Place of fully paid issued capital/
incorporation/ share capital/ registered capital
Name operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
GRU R CRITHBERA  AAvFECRITRA
e RE abMPEA  REMEAWE AR EREEH
Directly Indirectly
Hi% fH] #%
Mile Gain Limited BVI/Hong Kong USS1 100 — Investment holding
BEARAF ERWELRES 1370 BB
i
Million Harmony Holdings Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - 100  Investment holding
AR AT PR &k LT LB
Million Harmony Limited BVI/Hong Kong USS1 100 — Investment holding
1A PR R ERWELREE 1370 BB
i
Pilot Will Holdings Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 = 100  Investment holding
BB AR &k LT BB
Pilot Will Limited BVI/Hong Kong USS1 100 — Investment holding
BEARAF ERWELREE 1370 BB
i
Profuse Gain Holdings Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 = 100  Investment holding
BRI AR &k LT BB
Profuse Gain Limited BVI/Hong Kong USS1 100 — Investment holding
HEARAF ERELREE 1%7T BB
i
Quality Depot Limited BVI/Hong Kong USS$1 = 100  Investment holding
(“Quality Depot”) (note (b)) BRELHE (B BB
A BRA T (AR D) (BfaEw)) it
Richly Field (Beijing) Investment The PRC/ HK$15,000,000 100 —  Property management
Consulting Co., Ltd* Mainland China 15,000,000 JC MEE
(“Richly Field Beijing”)* il e A

W SRR (Jea0) B ERR A RA
([ AR IR ) #
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17. RHE AR ZH#E (@)

Percentage of

Issued and nominal value of
Place of fully paid issued capital/
incorporation/ share capital/ registered capital
Name operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
LRy R CEHTHBERA  AAuFHECETRA
e R REMEA  GEMEAWAE AR EEEH
Directly Indirectly
HE IRl 4%
Richly Field Hainan Holdings Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 100 —  Dormant
8 P 2 PO PR ) i 1T RS
JUaT A B A A PR A The PRC/ RMB1,000,000 - 100  Property management
Mainland China AR¥1,000,0007C /B g
R o B A
Changsha Yutianoutlets Business The PRC/ RMB1,000,000 = 100  Property management
Administration Co. Limited* Mainland China A R#1,000,0007C and trading of
R UM H B A R R B B it fashion wear
and accessories
WA B B e
Fic B 5 7
R H BLA ) 2 T PR Al The PRC/ RMB500,000 = 100 Property management
Mainland China A R¥500,0007C ES 8
g v
Richly Field Kabuskiki Kaisha* Japan JPY 3,000,000 - 100 Sourcing
HH R EE HA 3,000,000 A [H] R

# Registered as limited liability companies under PRC law.

##  Registered as wholly-owned foreign enterprises under PRC law.

### Registered as Sino-foreign joint ventures under PRC law.

> For identification purposes only.
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(®)

The Group acquired the remaining 49.25% equity interest in
Hunan Richly Field from Zhongrong International Trust Company
Limited (“Zhongrong Trust”), an independent non-controlling equity
holder, at a cash consideration of RMB224,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$276,031,000) in November 2012. Upon the completion of the
acquisition, Hunan Richly Field became an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. The acquisition was accounted for as an
equity transaction and a gain on bargain purchase of HK$7,178,000
was recognised directly in other reserves in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity during the year ended 31 March 2013. Further
details of the acquisition are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 30 May 2013.

The Group acquired the remaining 28% equity interest in Quality
Depot from its non-controlling equity holder at a cash consideration
of HK$966,000 in April 2011. Upon the completion of the acquisition,
Quality Depot became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. The acquisition was accounted for as an equity transaction
and the excess of consideration over the fair value of net assets
acquired of HK$334,000 was recognised directly in other reserves in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity during the year ended
31 March 2013.

At 31 March 2013, the Company’s entire equity interest in Hunan
Richly Field is secured for a bank loan of the Group (note 29).

17. RHE AR ZH#E (@)

(2)

(b)

R F—TAF T —H o AEE U S
£ 18 A R #224,000,0005C (41 25 it
276,031,000% 7G) ) 48 37 IF 4 A B £
e Nl AR G BR A R (T Al
G el ) e S T80 A R TS 49.25% 2
TE o i 58 I R AR o 180 R A B R R
O ) 22 [ A RS A D o i DA
WEGHINE WHERE ZF— =4F =
AZ+—HILFEEZ ARG X
Nt A OB B TR R Uk R
7,178,000% 7T A BH W 2 A — 2 5F
R ANFA B - F—=FHH
=+ HZ A -

R F——AF A > A& E LB A AT
5966,000%5 7t [1] H IF £ I HE 72 158 A
Wi B & R iR T 28% 2 IR o A 5E Bk
W% > b R 2 A A ) 22 [ 45 2 O
J& 8w o I DARE 25 32 5 A1 R o i AR
B R 288 T M I S TR E A T 2 B
#334,000% 00 > EHBREE ~EF—
SHEZAZ - HIREEZ AR
ST % A HLAth % A R AR o

MRo-Z—=ZF=ZH=1+—H > AR

A T8 T A T 2 2 S MR A A AR S
R RAT R A (HH5E29) -
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

18. R E AR ZHE

Group Company
AR A H]
2013 2012 2013 2012
R CF T FE S F T8
Notes HKS$’000 HK3$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
ik FEx T T Fi#r T T
(Restated) (Restated)
(&) (KEHE L)
Unlisted shares, at cost FE BTy > FE A 1 - 1 -
Share of net assets A & 7 IFE (9,578) (8,319) - -
Due from associates T AT B 2 ) KT (a) 77,869 41,953 86,011 49,999
68,292 33,634 86,012 49,999
Provision for impairment S {E 4 (b) (17,387) (13,524) (17,387) =
50,905 20,110 68,625 49,999
Loan to an associate = /N = o (c) 103,893 103,114 - =
Notes: Mt -
(a) Amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest-free and have (a) JRE WA B 5 N ) 2 R TR A SR R

(®)

no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the directors, these
balances are considered as quasi-equity investments in the associates.

Qinhuangdao Outlets is principally engaged in a property development
project in Qinhuangdao, Hebei Province, the PRC (the “Qinhuangdao
Project”). At 31 March 2013, the Group had an amount due from
Qinhuangdao Outlets of HK$31,689,000.

Pursuant to the consultation with external lawyer to the Hebei
Provincial Department of Land and Resources, the state-owned land
use rights certificate(s) will be obtained once Qinhuangdao Outlets
grants the approval from the related government authorities. The
directors of the Company considered that the requirement for the
approval from the related government authorities does not render
significant adverse impact on granting the land use rights.

As the application of land use rights certificate(s) is in progress,
the Group has provided an impairment loss of HK$120,000 (2012:
HK$7,659,000). At 31 March 2013, an aggregate impairment
loss on investment in Qinhuangdao Outlets HK$7,779,000 (2012:
HK$7,659,000) was recognised.

Globe Outlet Town (Jilin) Limited (“Jilin Outlets”) is principally
engaged in a property development project in Changchun, Jilin
Province, the PRC (the “Jilin Outlets Town Project”). At 31
March 2013, the Group had an amount due from Jilin Outlets of
RMB22,582,000 (equivalent to HK$28,151,000).

Richly Field China Development Limited #3 F o [ 8§ & 45 B 24 w)

BT T N T SR BB

(b) Z 8RR EE AP ILE & 2
EREYEMBIER ((REBHHE]) -
MoZ—ZFE=ZA=+—H . KAEEG
e 22 B B BRI W 2 IR 3K TE 31,689,000
WIC ©

AR5 A1 I A5 i BT b ) R S U R T
FiAs - 28 2 B BLRR3E T A M IO Bl BURS
PR L AR - I T IR I AT i D
W o ANFEHGDS o AHBBUR B 2
S AR R A AN B 34 T o i fi T E AR
HRAFREE -

H A T AT 1 b R RS 2 RS A
7 S ) U6k M 4R R TR 4 45 120,000 5
JG (T — T4 1 7,659,00045T) o i T
T—=HF=H=+—H > CHEREER
%2 W R B 2 Wk s 1R A A
7,779,0003% 7C ( —F — T 4E 7,659,000
L) o

MR AR 2 S T 44 R A PR
(THEMEAE ) EERPREARE R
HRHYEREIER - R T ——4F
SA=t—H o AREEA N AR
Hir M T A R ¥522,582,0007C (FHH A
28,151,000#7C) ©
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(®)

(©)

(continued)

Jilin Outlets had been making losses in recent years and recorded
net liabilities at the end of the reporting period. In view of the
deteriorating operating results of Jilin Outlets, the Group has provided
an impairment loss of HK$2,725,000 (2012: Nil). At 31 March
2013, an aggregate impairment loss on investment in Jilin Outlets of
HK$2,725,000 (2012: Nil) was recognised.

Jiangxi Outlets Brand Discount City Company Limited (“Jiangxi
Outlets”) is principally engaged in a property development project
in Nanchang, Jiangxi Province, the PRC (the “Jiangxi Outlets Brand
Discount City Project”). At 31 March 2013, the Group had an
amount due from Jiangxi Outlets of RMB18,506,000 (equivalent to
HK$23,069,000) and an aggregate impairment loss on investment
in Jiangxi Outlets of HK$5,064,000 (2012: HK$5,064,000) was
recognised.

Huailai Dayi Wineries Company Limited (“Huailai Dayi”) is principally
engaged in a property development project in Huailai, Hebei Province,
the PRC (the “Huailai Dayi Project”). At 31 March 2013, the Group
had an amount due from Huailai Dayi of RMB1,453,000 (equivalent
to HK$1,811,000), respectively.

In view of the Huailai Dayi Project was suspended due to insufficient
funding and the going concern assumption of such is uncertain, the
Group has provided an impairment loss of HK$1,018,000 (2012:
HK$456,000). At 31 March 2013, an aggregate impairment loss
on investment in Huailai Dayi Project of HK$1,819,000 (2012:
HK$801,000) was recognised.

On 6 January 2012, Richly Field Beijing entered into a loan agreement
with Qinhuangdao Outlets pursuant to which Richly Field Beijing
would, inter alia, provide a loan facility of RMB99,343,000 (the “Loan
Facility”) to Qinhuangdao Outlets for one year commencing from 6
January 2012 and repayable on 5 January 2013 with an annual interest
rate of 20%. On 2 May 2013, Richly Field Beijing and Qinhuangdao
Outlets entered into a supplemental agreement, pursuant to which the
tenure of the Loan Facility was extended for one year and becomes
repayable on 5 January 2014. Pursuant to the loan agreement and the
supplemental agreement, the Group recognised interest income of
HK$10,277,000 (2012: HK$4,144,000) in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income during the year ended 31 March 2013 (note

6(b)).

18. REEE AR ZHE (@)

Mt - (%)

(b)

(c)

(%)

HARBELEE T T A — R kR > AR
et IR B AT BT AR o SR AR AR
RITWMEEEEG AT » AMEEC
ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁ%%%mxmm&ﬁ:%

— A ) o R T —=4FE=H =1
—H Eﬁﬁ&ﬁ#*%i%%%zm
{H & TE 48 %52.725,000%E TC ( -
4E 1 )

LV B BE 3T &4 RT kA FRA =] ([T
PORRRFENT ) FE R BV & BT
%%%%%%ﬁﬁﬂﬂ@ﬂ%%%@
TR ZE—=HE=A=+—H &
%@ﬁ%&ﬁﬁ%%%@%ﬁﬁk%%
18,506,0000C (FH & /223,069,000
) > i E R ﬁ%#aﬁﬁ%%%ﬁ
Ezﬂﬁ%ﬁ%?ﬂwmm%m (=%
— 4 15,064,000 C) ©

R AR — ] 25 51 [ A PR ] TR
— 1) EBR PR L A R AR S SE B

RBIER ([HRK—EHH]) - h-F—=
F=H=+—H  REEARERK—
JE iz 3k TE N R H1,453,0000C (K & R

1,811,000%#7C) °

B AR —TH B R E &R g
%> HAWHEA REFESERE > ARE
@B%mﬁ&@ﬁﬁ%ﬁmwom%m
(T —T4F 1 456,000400) o A
#E A=+—H > B &%%R%
K—IH B 2 W E e 15 48 %61,819,000 5 o
T —T4F 1 801,000%70)

AT F—TAE—FANH - M EREI
2R B R T R S B Ik o BB
B> M SEAR L 50 (Hoh %) )
75 B 5 BLRR 216 4 £ 48 N IR 999,343,000
L EEHAE ([HRRAEE ) > FIHE —
FT— T 4E— AN HEF A —EMR
K= —HHEHBR E£HF5
20% ° R -EFE—=FHH_H  HwHE

Eﬁﬂ? Bl 7% 52 ISy B € T AT 524 T 1D

B BRI R —
@aI\#? PUSE— H L HEK - i)
5B B e A T B e o A SR PR R

CE A= HIEEEZ S
%Ewﬁﬁﬁaﬂ L A 10,277,000

TC(ZF— T4 4,144,00088 58) (B 3
aw
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18. REEE AR ZHE (@)

FEBE AR ZFEEWT

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:

Percentage
of ownership

Place of Issued and fully interest held by
Name incorporation paid share capital the Company Principal activities
C#HIT K ARwlfA
Hk il 3 3 BRIBA WAEMMEGT L B
Champ Wisdom Holdings Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 50 Investment holding
T BT R A FR A 7 R0 1T LA
Champ Wisdom Limited BVI US$2 50 Investment holding
(“Champ Wisdom”) PR IE LR 2ETT BT
A RA R GEH8)
Chuang Yao Holdings Limited Hong Kong HKS1 42 Investment holding
AR A PR A R ik LT e gidid
Chuang Yao Limited BVI US$200 42 Investment holding
(“Chuang Yao”) PG IE RS 20070 Eid gLl
RIEA R R ([AE )
Cosmos View Holdings Limited BVI US$100 50 Investment holding
(“Cosmos View”) 5 R 1003 7C BEEK
R PR AR (T )
Jilin Outlets* The PRC US$10,320,000 42 Properties
i ARELRE A HT FE 10,320,000 ¢ development
E L
Huailai Dayi* The PRC HK$20,000,000 50  Properties
BRK— H 20,000,000 7T development
E RS
Jiangxi Outlets* The PRC USS$1 50  Properties
VLTG5 BLAREHT B 13570 development
E L

Richly Field China Development Limited #3 F o [ 8§ & 45 B 24 w)
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

18. REEE AR ZHE (@)

Percentage

of ownership

Place of Issued and fully interest held by
Name incorporation paid share capital the Company Principal activities
C#IT R AR Al A
e ALY AR ] BRBA WAEMEREGE L EECEW
King Future Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 40  Investment holding
D S5 P PO PR ) &k LT BB
King Future Limited (“King Future”)  BVI US$10 40  Investment holding
EFARAR (THF]) S e R 10%7T BB
Qinhuangdao Outlets The PRC US$10,320,000 40  Properties
% 8 B BRI Gile] 10,320,000 7T development
ESEE
Richly Field Nanchang Hong Kong HKS1 50 Investment holding
Holdings Limited ik RS BT

#H B PR
> For identification purpose only.

The Group’s shareholdings in the associates all comprise equity

shares held by the Company.

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of losses
of an associate, Champ Wisdom, because the share of losses
of the associate exceeded the Group’s interest in the associate.
The amounts of the Group’s unrecognised share of losses
of this associate for the current year and cumulatively were
HK$1,919,000 (2012: HK$2,137,000) and HK$4,056,000 (2012:
HK$2,137,000), respectively.

AL FA W A A 2 IR ARSI AR N R R A
e 2 PR A ALK

A ] ) 4% L A R A 5 N R R . s
8 JRHE 5 AL S A R 2 R R
AL TE G N Rl 2 ME AR o ANAE AR
9] ) A T R R A % T A B 2 e 4R 4y il 2
FF £51,919,000% JC (= F — 4
2,137,000 JC) $4,056,000% JC (— & —
—AE 12,137,000 00) ©
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18. REEBE AR ZRE (&)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial Nk ) A £E A N T 2 B & R A
information of the Group’s associates extracted from their 2, bk B H AR B sl IS Rk

management accounts or financial statements:

2013 2012

R R T

HKS$’000 HKS$°000

Fi#L T T

(Restated)

(R F)

Assets B 972,412 796,785
Liabilities A1 (1,115,898) (930,252)
Revenue I %5 25,592 —
Expenses B 2 (10,933) (135,227)

19. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 19. e
Group
AL

2013 2012

R R T

HKS$’000 HK$°000

Fi#L T T

(Restated)

(R F)

At beginning of year AR 416,610 244,735
Additions NE 198,803 157,659

Transfer from prepaid land lease e [ A AR R

payments (note 16) (MtiE16) 37,186 =
Exchange realignment [ b, 7 2 4,790 14,216
At end of year AR 657,389 416,610
At 31 March 2013, the Group’s properties under development REF-=F=H=1+—H > ALHEKHE
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$172,576,000 (2012 HE/172,576,000% 70 (ZF— 4 (FHE
(Restated): HK$108,560,000) were pledged to secure for certain F) : 108,560,000%7T) (MfiE29) 2 fE@&Y)
bank loans of the Group (note 29). ECER AL EERE TRIT AR EM -
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20. INVENTORIES 20. #8§
Group
A 4 1
2013 2012
—E A TR
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#7T ToT
Finished goods — fashion wears and accessories R B b — WE5E K Hir i 8,103 14,475
21. TRADE RECEIVABLE 21. JEWCIR K
Group
ASE
2013 2012
- St I S
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#x ToT
Trade receivable JRE SR - 804
As at 31 March 2012, trade receivable due from an independent MW E—-_"HF£=H=+—H > BE LI

external party was unsecured, interest-free and was fully settled

during the year.

RN HAE R -

AR A =07 Z MEWOIR AR AR~ S B
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22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

22, TEAFRKIA - #48 K b ROk

RECEIVABLES
Group Company
ARGEH Ao
2013 2012 2013 2012
S =t Mt St St St et St o
Notes HK$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
it T# T#T T T#T
(Restated)
(KEHE71)
Prepayments YA K TE 2,284 725 811 702
Deposits g (a) 1,221 31,674 264 212
Tender guarantee for a land bidding - Hi4AHE 2~ S EIE (R (b) - 12,458 - =
Consideration receivable JEM A (c) - 4,058 - -
Other receivables oA REWGHIA 11,115 11,215 42 4
Prepaid land lease payments FEAT T R 3K 16 11,679 11,946 - =
26,299 72,076 1,117 918
Notes: M &t
(a)  On 8 October 2010, Richly Field Beijing and Yangjiang entered into an (a) £:$*$$+H ANGIRE EE] $;ﬁ bl
agreement (the “Yangjiang Agreement”), pursuant to which Richly Field o B (/I%TTL jﬁfﬁ)% (I F :{I k)
Beijing placed a refundable deposit of RMB40,000,000 (equivalent to It > i HH SEAR IR AL 5 ] B VLA A — 4
HK$49,832,000) with Yangjiang for a term period commencing from ﬂ?&%?ﬁ:ﬁ?ﬁg NS #40,000,0007C (#H%
8 October 2010 to 7 April 2012. During the tenure of the Yangjiang Ji+49,832,000% 70) - AFHIH B — AR
Agreement, Yangjiang would identify and refer suitable residential or +J1 {\ H ?Eﬁ: Z5 *‘:ﬁilﬂl HLtHIE °
commercial property development projects in Guangdong Province, B L e B 1L T B i A
the PRC to the Group. The investment return of the project referred %@&rﬂj-(%@ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%%
by Yangjiang should be no less than 15% based on calculations on %%%Iﬁ H ° *Eﬁ%j—‘%@%ﬁ%%§+ﬁ
investment returns agreed by the Group. Within one year from the date 753 > HBTLE S 2 IH H & (8] i H IR
of the said placement, i.e. 7 October 2011, Yangjiang would provide the AEI15% o R AN Lt ZIEE B (R
Group with the feasibility study report and calculations of the investment — = FEHLEH) BE—4F W » [
returns (the “Feasibility Report”) for potential property development TLE WZS%@%{AT B =] @TJJE"?
projects in Guangdong Province, the PRC. If by the end of the aforesaid ﬂﬂ% o JEIH H E‘/f 47‘@@?%#&%&?1’%—
period, Yangjiang failed to provide the Feasibility Report to the Group % & [l iﬁ'&("— aJ 17 3 ?& 1) o i A bk
or the Feasibility Report provided by Yangjiang failed to meet the ;ﬁﬂ ] 45 o Ay > F%‘{Iﬁ‘(fﬁfl$%%&ﬁf
requirements of the Group, Richly Field Beijing would have the right 17@?&%5‘2557 Yl}ﬁi%1ﬁéﬂ/7‘@$&%f
to demand Yangjiang for the repayment of the deposit plus interests HE?&%Z‘K%@%?* » Hy FH S AR I
charged at a rate 10% higher than the prevailing lending rate of the ﬁf@giﬁﬁ{lféﬁ’ﬁé%ﬂqy bl %j@ﬂﬁ
People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”). Richly Field received a refund of N BERAT ([ A &fﬁﬁj) Iﬂﬁﬁ“
RMB30,000,000 during the year ended 31 March 2012 and remaining AHN R = 10%5T A 2 FLE o #H 2Rk
balance was received during the year ended 31 March 2013. FoR - = — BB IR
B3N B #530,000,0007G - T Bk AE Ok
mE—F ===t HIEFER
B o
On 30 November 2010, Richly Field Beijing and Payi entered into an MoFE T =+H > #HEE
agreement (the “Payi Agreement”), pursuant to which Richly Field {ﬁkjlﬁ ey %?T Y2 *}E i ‘A_( NEEY]
Beijing placed a refundable deposit of RMB30,840,000 (equivalent ) o TRIL ’ 3 HH SE 48 3k b 5 rﬁlﬂlﬁgﬁ?
to HK$38,420,000) with Payi for a term of two years (i.e., the period A — 4 n] R IR 1% & A R #30,840,00070
commencing from 30 November 2010 to 29 November 2012). During (FH 1% 38,420,0004E7T) B RARAE (B
the tenure of the Payi Agreement, Payi would identify and refer H Z—REL—J=THEE _F—
suitable residential or commercial property development projects :ﬁz F—=HZ+JLH IEHH) o AhEk
in Guangdong Province, the PRC to the Group. If by the end of the fih sk AN 'ﬁﬂéﬁﬁi‘iﬁ?ﬁi%ﬁ%@
aforesaid period, Payi failed to identify any suitable projects, Richly L) A £ @ﬁ%ﬁﬁf@ﬁ:%ﬁk@%% e
Field Beijing would have the right to demand Payi for the repayment %IE H o ﬁﬂﬁ/\\iﬂﬁﬁ F’Hﬁ%fﬁ HI > ﬂ]ﬁ%ﬂf
of the deposit plus interest charged at the prevailing lending rate of %%@Eﬁf%i@l{\ H IR > 4 H 3248 Sk b
the PBOC. 57 HE 2R 05 545 4 3 4% 7 A
REITHATERM G HZFE -
During the year ended 31 March 2013, Yangjiang and Payi both failed éﬁi:%~£$£ﬂ = +: ﬂ:@g :
to fulfill the terms of the Yangjiang Agreement and Payi Agreement, F%(I&WE%w*ﬁEﬁfiﬂﬁi TF’%Q}%%&
respectively, and fully repaid the deposits placed with them including 8] %Tﬁ]% > 7 ) A FE SE AR 3L e 7 A
the relevant interest to Richly Field Beijing. Richly Beijing received 1jﬁ7§g’i?&%2j’§% (GG AH B FLE) o
a refund of RMB19,000,000 during the year ended 31 March 2012 HEERRIE A C R E & — T
and the remaining balance was received during the year ended 31 =A= +j H Ik 47 B i BUR 3k R ¥
March 2013. 19,000,0007T > 1M B % CL R #H = % —
SAEZH =4 — BB E R -
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22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

23.

*

*

Notes: (continued)

(®)

(©)

Balance at 31 March 2012 represented a refundable tender
guarantee deposit (the “Deposit”) of RMB10,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$12,458,000) placed with the Finance Bureau of Shuangyang
District, Changchun, Jilin Province, under the normal course of
property development business carried out by Jilin Outlets, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company at that time, in respect of the
Group’s proposed bidding for a parcel of land located in Shuangyang
District in accordance with the requirements for a public land auction.

Upon the completion of the deemed disposal of Chuang Yao in July
2012, Jilin Outlets ceased to be a subsidiary, but remained as an
associate, of the Company. Details of the deemed disposal of Chuang
Yao are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

The balance as at 31 March 2012 represented the consideration
receivable from Zhongcheng Lianhe Investment Group Limited* (!
WA B E S AT BR/A ) (“Zhongcheng Lianhe™), an independent
third party, of RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to HK$3,737,000) and an
interest receivable of RMB257,000 (equivalent to HK$321,000, in
relation to the Group’s disposal of Yinchuan Outlets World Brand
Discount City Company Limited* (§R)1] BLAF2E T tH 5 44 B4 F145 B
A 7l) (“Yinchuan Outlets”). The balance was unsecured, non-interest-
bearing and was fully settled during the year ended 31 March 2013.
Further details of the disposal of Yinchuan Outlets are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 25 June 2012 and note 35(a) to the
financial statements.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES

22, TEAFRKIH - $4 K A WO H (480

g
(b)

(©

S ()

MNoFE—_HE=ZHA =+ —H2ZEEBRATT
AR 75 R B R T T L B R Y — 2
MR EBEERES (e AR
10,000,0007C (#H %5 /% 12,458,000%5 JC) >
R AR N T B — ] 42 A A ) o AR
R0 S st A 4 [ 4 TR N B - A B R e
AV 7 T 555 T ) — S - b JE £ o 4 A R
T A — M S % S S5 Hh S A5t o

& AR A SE AR AE AR
& > MRBRRHEET A AR 2 R TR
Ao AR A m S A A o A B
B B SRR O AR R R I E3S

MoEB—-—HE=ZA=+—H2Z&%E
BALE =B AR EEEARA
A (TR A ) Z B ffE AR
3,000,0007C (/1 & ji*3,737,000¥ JT)
K E W A BN )R 257,00000 (R 45 7%
321,000%5 J6) > J7 BLAC AR 8] B 4R )1 B
A A RN A BR A ) (T4R )]
BLRR T ) A B o A BR AL R 2 JEKAT -
REERBE_F—-=F=H=1T—H
IR AT BE G B E o A BRI B R
W st HR AR B A T — "4
7N H AT H 2 A A DA e B R B
35(a) o

23 JRE WK R L Bk E

2013 2012
R = TE A
Notes HKS$’000 HKS$°000
et T T#IT
Qionghai Investment WiGHRE (a) - 41,044
Guangzhou Outlets World Brands JAE Y SRR A 0 44 R AT Tk
Discount City Company Limited* A IRA A
(B ] B 2R 3 44 R Tk AT BR A D) (B M BLRR 3 AT )
(“Guangzhou Outlets”) (b) - 4,052
Guangzhou Haimozhai Culture Activities B 1 55 i ST AL 3 B
Planning Company Limited* HIRAF (N7 ])
(B 2R 70 AL 10 38 SR A B )
(“Haimozhai”) (c) - 1,246
- 46,342

For identification purposes only

14 i 1
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23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES
(continued)

Notes:

(a)

(®)

(c)

On 4 March 2011, Richly Field Beijing and Qionghai Investment
entered into an agreement (the “Qionghai Agreement”), pursuant
to which Richly Field Beijing placed a refundable deposit of
RMB32,178,050 (equivalent to approximately HK$38,203,000) with
Qionghai Investment for a term of one year commencing from 4 March
2011 to 3 March 2012. During the tenure of the Qionghai Agreement,
Qionghai Investment would identify and refer suitable residential and
commercial property development projects in Hainan Province, the
PRC to the Group. If by the end of the aforesaid period, Qionghai
Investment failed to identify any suitable projects, Richly Field Beijing
would have the right to demand Qionghai Investment for the repayment
of the deposit plus interests charged at the prevailing lending rate of the
PBOC. Further details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 6 March 2013.

At the end of the term of the Qionghai Agreement, Qionghai Investment
failed to have any successful referral, Qionghai fully repaid the deposit
and the relevant interest to Richly Field Beijing during the year ended
31 March 2013.

The balance represented the consideration and the late repayment
penalty of RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to HKS$3,737,000) and
RMB252,000 (equivalent to HK$315,000), respectively, from
Guangzhou Outlets, wholly-owned by Mr. Leung, in relation to
the disposal of the Yinchuan Outlets. The balance was unsecured,
interest-free and was fully settled during the year ended 31 March
2013. Further details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 25 June 2012 and note 35(a) to the financial

statements.

The balance represented a financial guarantee fee receivable from
Haimozhai, wholly-owned by Mr. Leung, in relation to the financial
guarantee provided by Hunan Richly Field for a credit facility granted
by Guangzhou Branch of Shanghai Pudong Development Bank (“SPD
Bank”) to Haimozhai. The balance was unsecured, interest-free and
was fully settled during the year ended 31 March 2013. Further details
of the financial guarantee are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 10 August 2012 and note 30 to the financial statements.
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24. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

24. Bl& R8T & R

Group Company
AL E AR H

2013 2012 2013 2012
ZE-EE SR8 RS SR8
HKS$’000 HK$000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000
F TFi#r Fi#L Fi#T
Cash and bank balances Bl JARAT B 13,401 29,452 2,647 9,362
Time deposits EWAER 36,900 = - =
50,301 29,452 2,647 9,362

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted
to RMB36,739,000 (equivalent to HK$45,799,000) (2012:
RMB14,231,000 (equivalent to HK$17,728,000)). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies

through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and three months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances
and time deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the cash and
bank balances and time deposits approximate to their fair values.

R ER > AEBUARYE TAR
W l) Bz Bl SSRAT &5 i 2 N RKE
36,739,0007C (#H 5§ J445,799,00045 JT)
(ZF — 4« AR %14,231,0000C (H
8 17,728,000% 08)) - AR AR A
H o4 5 At B W > (AR o I R 2
A1 REE A5 FRAGE (51) B 4 REE ~ 65 REE B £ R 75 2L
KU A B2 [ 488 4 3 3 57 B 45 7 A E 2
W5 2 SRAT A N R S 4 4 oAt B o

R SRAT Z Bl R IR B H 8RAT 77 FOR R LA
FEFE o Y ERZETANF
LHZ3EA > BPAEEZ B R &R
R WA B A WE AR R R EH R -
SRAT & B S WAF 9 A TR 5 B R4
Jo It A6 0T 4 X T Bk 2 SR AT o Bl KR
A7 &5 B SR A7 K 2 B T (e B P
M -
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25.

TRADE PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

25. FEAT IRk

DABEEE HOH /o S0 o A HR AR R i
RZIRW AT

Group
AL
2013 2012
TR =F——k=
HKS$’000 HK$°000
F#L F T
(Restated)
(K= 5)
Within one year —4RE A 78,729 68,744
One to two years — R W4E 66,855 —
145,584 68,744

26.

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and repayable within

the normal operating cycle.

B AR SRR 0y B A — M A Y T R

AMOUNT DUE TO A CONTRACT CUSTOMER 26. MEATG A% P Ak IH
Group
AL
2013 2012
—®—=g  —Ef
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
F#L T
(Restated)
(= 51])
Amount due to a contract customer JREAH & 4 % P 3 IH 131,590 160,593
Progress billings HE AR 271,758 271,584
Less: contract cost incurred plus recognised W A A H AN B R
profits i ] (140,168) (110,991)
131,590 160,593

Richly Field China Development Limited #3 F o [ 8§ & 45 B 24 w)



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

55 W B HOR B RE
31 March 2013
CE = H=t—H

27. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE, OTHER PAYABLES AND

27. TEWOSKIH ~ At A sk JE % T 2

28.

ACCRUALS
Group Company
A ARl
2013 2012 2013 2012
SEeSE S F SRSE CF
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T T#T T T
(Restated)
(REH#H )
Receipts in advance from pre-sale
of residential properties T ) 2 FICHIE 30,586 21,822 - -
Deposits received A& 54,485 7,955 - =
Other payables JEL A AT S I 85,856 73,900 - -
Accruals et B 4,540 1,978 3,771 940
175,467 105,655 3,771 940

As at 31 March 2013, the Group received deposits from the
pre-sale of residential properties of HK$52,903,000 (2012:
HK$6,229,000).

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled

within one year.

AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

MRoE—ZF=H=1—H  REHIK
ok | TE B T Y 2 2 $4252,903,000 4
G (& — T 4F : 6,229,000 70)

H At JE A 3

KIAAFE > @HER—FEN

28. MEAF B 5 K IH

2013 2012

R4 BT

HK$’000 HKS$°000

T#T ToT

Zhongrong Trust HRE S - 1,707
Qingdao Outlets Town Holding Limited T by BLRF AT 2% M 419

(“Qingdao Outlets™) BIRAF ([F5EAFHNT ) - 6,229

- 7,936

On 23 March 2012, Richly Field Beijing and Qingdao Outlets,
a company controlled by Mr. Leung, entered into an agreement
(the “Qingdao Agreement”), pursuant to which Qingdao Outlets
provided Richly Field Beijing with an advance in the amount of
RMBS5,000,000 (equivalent to HK$6,229,000).

Amounts due to related parties are unsecured, interest-free and
were fully settled during the year ended 31 March 2013.

RFE—-HF=H=+=H> %ﬁﬂﬂiﬁ
WAL 5 (— [ B 2 o A HE il 2 8 F))
FCE X S EIA T N THET%%J
B FHE R %,ﬁﬁrﬁ]%’ﬁﬁﬂ$%bﬁijb
wAE AR 5,000,0000C (FH & 7 4
6,229,000 C) Z TEAT A o

At 8 AT IR 22 5 T A SRR - REEE
&Eﬁi‘&@ F=#=A=t—HlL
FEANBHAER -
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29.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 29. il B8R4 15 3k B H At 5% 5%
BORROWINGS
Group A4
2013 2012
—F = “E-CAE
Effective Effective
interest rate Maturity ~ HK$’000 interest rate Maturity ~ HK$ 000
TS R T HIA% ERie Filb
Current K
Bank loans - secured FATHH - HH 6.4% 014 9,728 6.4% 2013 87,006
Other loans - unsecured HAE - ST 6.1% - 17.6% 2014 5,984 - - -
105,712 87,206
Non-current JER
Bank loans - secured ATE — HALR 6.4%  2015-2016 186,990 6.4%  2014-2016 286,534
Other loans — secured Fof B — AT 16.1% 015 659,335 - = -
846,525 286,534
952,237 373,740
Analysed into: ROV R BT -
Bank loans repayable: AERBITEN
Within one year —ER 99,728 87,200
In the second year B 124,660 99,664
In the third to fifth years, inclusive =EHE
(FEMFAMBLER) 62,330 186,870
286,718 373,740
Other loans repayable: AR AR -
Within one year —IE R 5,984 =
In the second year WA 659,535 =
665,519 =
952,237 373,740
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29.

30.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 29, 3B 84715 5% & HAbfE % ()
BORROWINGS (continued)
Certain bank loans of the Group are secured by certain assets of AEFEEFHETERHAEHE TS E
the Group’s with net carrying amounts as listed below: LI Z BRI R -
2013 2012
e S TR T
Notes HKS$’000 HKS$’000
Mt F#oT Fi#T
(Restated)
(& FEF1)
Investment properties LA~ CE S 15 225,455 221,877
Prepaid land lease payment TEAS - Hh FH B K 16 217,590 =
Properties under development iSELy/E 19 172,576 108,560
In addition to the above, as at 31 March 2013, a bank loan of & EaEA A oF—=4F=H=+—
HK$279,238,000 is secured by the Group’s entire equity interest H > $R17 48 3279,238,000% 7T i A< 4 5]
in Hunan Richly Field (2012: Nil) (note 17(c)). A M 2 2T R (ZF—
AR ) (B EELT7(C)) o
All of the Group’s bank and other loans are denominated in RMB. A A B T A ERAT R HoAh B AN R
HI{H o
FINANCIAL GUARANTEE OBLIGATION 30. MBHBREE

On 16 December 2011, an entrusted mortgage guarantee contract
(the “Entrusted Mortgage Guarantee Contract”) was entered into
between Hunan Richly Field, as the guarantor, and Haimozhai,
as the borrower. On the same date, a guarantee contract (the
“Guarantee Contract”) and a mortgage contract (the “Mortgage
Contract”) were entered into between Hunan Richly Field, as the
guarantor, and SPD Bank, as the lender. Pursuant to the Entrusted
Mortgage Guarantee Contract, the Guarantee Contract and the
Mortgage Contract, Hunan Richly Field provided a financial
guarantee to SPD Bank of RMB22,230,000 (the “Guarantee”) and
the mortgage of a parcel of land with an area of 69,449 square
meters located in Changsha, Hunan Province (the “Mortgage”)
to SPD Bank for the credit facility of RMB20,000,000 granted
by SPD bank to Haimozhai with the term of one year from 8
December 2011 to 8 December 2012. Further details of the
transactions are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 10
August 2012. The Guarantee and the Mortgage were released in
October 2012.

R oF——4EFHTANH > R H
(TERYEMRN) B SRTE (EAMBRN)
F LR FEIRITIE R G ([ R iR
AR o A H 5 R (FFE A R
N) B EEERAT (TERERN) #TER
AR (THERAFED KA A R ([
AR o MIBZRLIRFIERER - HEHE
AR K AR A - 59 e T R AR AT
HoZ -+ AN RE T ——
AN H IR B — N SR R
T &RE N K #20,000,0007C - [A13H 5%
SRATHRME N R H522,230,00070 2 BA B IE R
(TRZ¥E R ) BARA O B R & =Y
T 1 B £169,449°F 7 K 2 — g + 1 (5%
A o H B 5 28— 55 WR
RAFAMAE —F——F/NHTAHZA
ffi o ZIEOR BGZARMR —F— 4+ H
HERR R

Annual Report 2013 — % — ZAEAE

127



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
55 WA B R B RE

31 March 2013

—E e — [

128

31. PROVISION

In 2011 and 2012, the Group entered into a number of lease
agreements (the “Tenancy Agreements”) with its tenants in
relation to the lease of certain shop premises developed under
the Changsha Project. Pursuant to certain Tenancy Agreements,
the shop premises shall be ready for lease during the period from
August 2011 to May 2012.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the PRC government
launched a series of adjustment measures and policies to control
the property market. These regulatory control measures and
policies caused the slowdown in the pre-sale of the properties
under development of the Changsha Project, which in turn added
pressure on the Group’s capital requirement and further resulted
in the slowdown in the construction progress of the Changsha
Project. As the results of the pre-sale of the properties under
development of the Changsha Project was below the expectation
of the Group, during the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group
made certain adjustments to the original design of the Changsha
Project, which included among others, adjustments to the floor
design of the certain residential portion, and the allocation of the
floor area among the residential portion, the commercial portion
and the facilities, to meet the local demand. These adjustments,
which required the approval from the local relevant government
authorities, also affected the construction progress of the
Changsha Project. As the construction of Changsha Project was
behind the original schedule, during the year ended 31 March
2012, the Group was not able to deliver the shop premises to a
number of tenants according to the agreed timetable set out in the
Tenancy Agreements. Pursuant to the Tenancy Agreements, the
tenants could terminate the agreements and/or claim against the
Group for the delay in the delivery of the shop premises on the
basis of loss incurred or the number of days delayed.
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31.

32.

PROVISION (continued) 31. #fl (4)
The Group has been in discussions with the tenants regarding 2N £E 8 B 5l 28 28 28 A5 Al o7 B AH P LT RS
the delay in the delivery of the shop premises. Some of the o FRFH P B 4% 1k B A 4E [ 2 fH S
tenants have terminated the Tenancy Agreements with the 2o MALEBEINVBIBY R4 o AREE
Group with the initial deposits being refunded by the Group. CHFESEEHMNE > ABHE BT
For those tenants who are willing to continue their lease, the Wz G OEfT R Bt — e
Group has been in discussions with them regarding the revised rek e FH IR 2 ZE ) 2 R AE - R e% A I
terms of agreements by offering them certain discounts on the HR R B 1 > A 4E [ 517 M )i 3] AR S Ak
leasing fees or rent-free period as compensation for the delay. AR ERALEBEREDER HMmEs
As at the date of these financial statements, the Group has not B TEAE BB 3 Al 5T o b & ik
received any claims for compensation from its tenants against MR E - A B Tk ) H 8 51 B A AE
the Group, and no estimation can be made on the amount of this 4% 2 wHE > 530,0009 o0 (—FE —
potential compensation. With respect to the terms of the Tenancy 325,000 00) B - FE —=4FE=H
Agreements, for which the calculation of compensation have been =+ — H EE B i BE T 2 s o
specified, HK$530,000 (2012: HK$325,000) was recognised as
provisions for such compensation as at 31 March 2013.
SHARE CAPITAL 32. A
Shares
ity
2013 2012
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
F#L F ¥
Authorised: P
20,000,000,000 (2012: 20,000,000,000) 20,000,000,000/1% (—2&— 4 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 20,000,000,000 %) 45 i i {E
(2012: HK$0.05) each 0.05% 70 (T — 4 ¢
0.05%5 1) 2 4 % 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BT B
8,880,874,303 (2012: 8,880,874,303) 8,880,874,303 /1% (& — 4 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 8,880,874,303 %) 4 B i {E
(2012: HK$0.05) each 0.05% 70 (T — 4 ¢
0.05%70) &% i 444,044 444,044

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note
33 to the financial statements.

S ¢ i

AN T S IERE ST B 2 SRS O B R
Rt 5E33 o
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33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include any
directors, including independent non-executive directors, and other
employees of the Company, any subsidiary or any invested entity
which the Group holds any equity interest. The Scheme became
effective on 2 November 2009 and, unless otherwise cancelled or

amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of

this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director or chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are

subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 33. BEHEGTE ()

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 20
business days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after a vesting period of one to three years and ends

on a date which is not later than the expiry date of the Scheme.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date
of offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal

value of a share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or

to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme
during the year:

FRAZ N AT A 152 ) B b o R I AR 20 11 7
% H W AR R EAUE S 3L 1 T
B R o 43 i S 2 AT (R ph
P - R A bl AR R R AE
izt il 2 B H AL

S PR 2 A ol £ oy B S R o RS AT IR
T (i) 2 ) S A7 T il BB M Sk 2 HI A T
B FT TR M 5 (i) A mB R B
AR AR IR H T TR 22 5 H TR
BB P 2 P Wi 5 B (i) B4 T

2 e
L3¢ PAL RPN 3 ¥ SN &N
R LR -

AR AEBE - T E A R AT A S B HE
wr

2013 2012
—F A CE AR
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options
InREF- 35 ik SR
T Sl Pt e 8 H frifE Ji R
HKS per share 000  HKS per share 000
IR T T’ 4 IR T TH
(Restated)
(KE#EF)
At 1 April RHA—H 0.428 154,750 0.428 192,950
Forfeited during the year AR FERER M 0.428 (30,488) 0.428 (38,200)
Lapsed during the year AR 0.428 (38,050) - -
At 31 March W=H=+—H 0.428 86,212 0.428 154,750

No share options were exercised during the years ended 31 March
2013 and 2012.

REBEE_F-=HR_F—-_"F=A=
+— HIRAERE - WM O AT fi
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options

outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

33. WEEREREE ()

TR IR > RAT (O SO 2 AT i
FTEEHaT

2013
TR A
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
Ji i i 98 H A3 45T+ A3 390
000 HKS per share
TR IR BT
28,737 0.428 3 July 2011 to 21 December 2015
“E-—HtEtA=FE_F—-HE+ZA=+—H
28,737 0.428 25 October 2013 to 21 December 2015
“F—=Z#4+A-t+HAE_F—H4E T HZ=+—H
28,738 0.428 30 June 2014 to 21 December 2015
R NWEASAZTHESZE - RE T A
86,212
2012
TR
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
brdiigid VeS| 1THEE= 1T
000 HKS$ per share
T Bt T
38,687 0.428 3 July 2011 to 21 December 2015
SR -—HFLA=SHESZ-HFE T At —H
38,687 0.428 14 March 2012 to 21 December 2015
SR -CHF=ZATNAE-F-AFE T A= +—H
38,688 0.428 25 October 2013 to 21 December 2015
SE-EZETASTRAER SR -HFE T A= +—A
38,688 0.428 30 June 2014 to 21 December 2015
ZE—NENA=ZTHEZ—RAE+F_HZ=+—H
154,750
& The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in * T PSR 22 A7 (00 7t R e sl 4 IR AT 3k

the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the

Company’s share capital.

No share option was granted during the years ended 31 March
2013 and 2012. An equity-settled share option expense of
HK$1,571,000 (2012 (Restated): HK$7,392,000) was recognised

during the year in respect of the share options granted before 1

April 2011.
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33.

34.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 86,212,500
share options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in
full of the outstanding share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 86,212,500
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of HK$4,311,000 and share premium of HK$32,588,000
(before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 56,200,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme,
which represented approximately 0.63% of the Company’s shares
in issue as at that date.

RESERVES

(a) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 50.

The share premium reserve represents the difference between
the nominal amount of share capital and amounts received
on issue of shares. The contributed surplus reserve represents
the surplus arising on reduction of paid-up capital during the
year ended 31 March 2004.

The re-organisation reserve represents the carrying amount
of net liabilities of subsidiaries, net of expenses, being
disposed under the schemes of arrangement under section
166 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap 32 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and section 99 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended time to time). Both schemes
of arrangement were sanctioned by the High Court of Hong
Kong and the Supreme Court of Bermuda on 27 May 2008
and 13 June 2008 respectively.

Other reserve represents the difference between the
consideration paid to obtain additional non-controlling
interests and its carrying amount of the net assets on the
date of the acquisition. The excess of the fair value of the
consideration over the carrying amount of the net assets
acquired has been debited directly to equity.

33.

34.
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34. RESERVES (continued)

34. filifl ()

(b) Company (b)y AL H
Capital Share
Share  Contributed  redemption option Reorganisation  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses Total
Rl MARR EARPRE  WRERG LE it Hit
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
Ti#r Ti#r T Ti#r TH#r T T
At 1 April 2011 RZF——ENA—H
As previously reported RS 412,757 69,476 109 14,806 287,004 (671,680) 112472
Prior year adjustments WA R = = = 6,307 = (6,307) =
As restated A 412,757 69,476 109 21,113 287,004 (677,987) 112472
Total comprehensive loss for the year A4 2 i {2 44 - - - - o (39,998) (39,998)
Equity-settled share option WERSHZ BRELHE
arrangements (Note 33) (W33) - - - 7392 = = 7392
Transfer of share option reserve TR R
upon the forfeiture or expiry BRI
of share options - - - (1,754) - 1,754 -
At31 March 2012 and 1 April 2012 R=ZF—"F=A=1—H
IZZF-ZFNA-H 412,757 69,476 109 26,751 287,004 (716,231) 79,866
Total comprehensive loss for the year A4 [ 2 i 42 4848 - - - - - (82427) (82.427)
Equity-settled share option DY AVl fig R0
amangements (Note 33) (Hi#33) - o - 1,571 o - 1,571
Transfer of share option reserve TR S e i
upon the forfeiture or expiry HRETERE
of share options - - - (10,401) - 10,401 -
At 31 March 2013 RZZ—-=F=f=1—H 412,757 09,476 109 17921 287,004 (788,257) (990)
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35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 35. HEMEA A

Year ended 31 March 2013

Disposal of 58% equity interest in Chuang Yao

On 12 July 2012, the Company, Xenoton Investment Limited
(“Xenoton”) and Favour Brightness Development Limited
(“Favour™), both independent third parties, entered into a share
transfer agreement (the “Share Transfer Agreement”), pursuant
to which, Chuang Yao issued an additional 199 new shares to
the Company, after which, the Company transferred 99 shares,
representing 49.5% of the enlarged issued share capital of Chuang
Yao, and 17 shares, representing 8.5% of the enlarged issued share
capital of Chuang Yao, to Xenoton and Favour, respectively, at the

consideration of US$1 per share.

In addition, pursuant to the Share Transfer Agreement, the
shareholders’ loan of HKS$15,476,000, representing 49.5% of
the shareholders’ loans, and HK$2,657,000, representing 8.5%
of the shareholders’ loans, due to the Company by Chuang
Yao was assigned to Xenoton and Favour, respectively. The
total consideration receivable by Xenoton and Favour in cash
for the shares of Chuang Yao and the shareholders’ loans was
HK$15,477,000 and HK$2,658,000, respectively.

Upon completion of the Share Transfer Agreement, Chuang
Yao and its subsidiaries, Chuang Yao Holdings Limited and
Jinlin Outlet, were owned as to 42% by the Company, 49.5% by
Xenoton and 8.5% by Favour, respectively. The Group lost control
over Chuang Yao and its subsidiaries (“Chuang Yao Group”) as a
result of the disposal and Chuang Yao Group became associates
of the Group effective from July 2012. During the year ended 31
March 2013, a gain on disposal of subsidiaries of HK$6,446,000

was recognised in profit or loss.

At the time of the transaction, Chuang Yao Group were principally
engaged in the development of a commercial and residential
property project in Changchun, Jilin Province, the PRC.

BRE_F=HF=A=1HILEE
H BRI 2 58% I HE

W_E—"FLH+TH > RAAF - KF
MR ERRARAR (TBRE]) R#EER
GG R A ([HEH]) (X A5
=J7) RIS — TE B A i AR e ([ A i
R o BRI > BURE AR 4w BE AN B
199 Iy » HoAg > AL F) B 183899
JBE B A3 O 7 12 ) 468 9 K L 8 AT e AR
149.5%) K 171 [y (5 A A 48 1%
KE BT IAHI8.5%) T IR & I #EHE >
BB ARE R 126 0T -

BEAh o AR I i ik - AN ) R K
Al W 2 SR #K15,476,000% T5 (A
A A 3K 4049.5%) K2,657,000% TT
(FR & A R B3R 408.5%) B4 Bl 4 it T
BRI I HEHE o B [ I R R B M 2 B
T R 5Bk DA B 46 R i 2 S AR AR 0 A
15,477,000%5 7T %.2,658,00035 JC

i P Ay W Wil o8 BUAR - AN ] - BRRE
T 3R 43 Al AR R S HC g A W A
W 42 A BR A R R PR R e 17429
49.5% K 8.5% It - A H KA B
BT 2% 2 S RIDRE B R B 2 W) (T A e 4k
B ) Z e mAlEERE —F——
AR A AL BE AR - R
EFE-=ZH=ZA=Z+—HIEE > &
B [ 1B N ) 2 Wi 25 6,446,000 IC £ iR 18
it MR N HERR.

T 52 T W o R R A I A P B AR
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35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. HEME AT ()
Year ended 31 March 2013 (continued) BEZR - =Z=H£=ZA=1T"HILHEE
()
Disposal of 58% equity interest in Chuang Yao (continued) HEREIEZ58%IRE (4)
The aggregate amounts of net assets and liabilities of Chuang Yao AL B & A 2 EE AT E
Group at the date of disposal were as follows: BRI T
Note HKS$’000
Mt T#x
Net liabilities disposed of: HEMTIHE ZAMTEHE
Property, plant and equipment W~ BB KR 404
Deposit for land acquisition o i B 2 i 12,279
Other receivables HC A JRE S R T 4,568
Cash and bank balances B4 JRAT &S R 26,913
Other payables and accruals L b R AT SR T % JE R 2 (31,231)
Exchange translation reserve T 50, {4 (1,244)
11,689
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries th 5 BB A B 2 AR 6 6,446
18,135
Satisfied by: DL A AT
Cash B4 2
Shareholder’s loan i = 18,133
18,135
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and bank balances in 1B M E N R 2 B MERAT AR 2
respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: W AT AR
Cash consideration Bl 1E 2
Cash and bank balances disposed of O B a KRAT &5 R (26,913)
Net outflow of cash and bank balances A7 B LB B A R 2 B A SR SR AT &G R 2 Ut T AR
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries (26,911)
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35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2012

(a)

(b)

Disposal of the entire equity interest in Yinchuan Outlets

On 10 June 2011, Richly Field Beijing and Zhongcheng
Lianhe entered into the first equity interest transfer
agreement (“First Equity Transfer Agreement”), pursuant
to which Richly Field Beijing shall transfer 50% equity
interest in Yinchuan Outlets, a wholly-owned subsidiary at
that time, to Zhongcheng Lianhe at a cash consideration of
RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to HK$3,606,000).

On 16 June 2011, Richly Field Beijing and Guangzhou
Outlets entered into the second equity interest transfer
agreement (“Second Equity Transfer Agreement”), pursuant
to which Richly Field Beijing shall transfer the remaining
50% equity interest in Yinchuan Outlets to Guangzhou
Outlets at a cash consideration of RMB3,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$3,679,000).

The First Equity Transfer Agreement and the Second Equity
Transfer Agreement were completed in June 2012 and the
Group recognised a gain on disposal of a subsidiary of
HK$443,000 in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income during the year ended 31 March 2012. Further details
of the disposal are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 25 June 2012.

Deemed disposal of 50% equity interest in Champ Wisdom
Limited

On 10 October 2011, the Company entered into an agreement
with Vision Far Investments Limited (“Vision Far”), Champ
Wisdom, a wholly-owned subsidiary at that time, allotted one
new share to Vision Far at par value of US$1.

Upon completion of the share subscription, the Group’s
equity interest in Champ Wisdom was diluted from 100%
to 50%. The Group lost control over Champ Wisdom and
its subsidiaries (“Champ Wisdom Group”) as a result of the
transaction and Champ Wisdom Group became associates
of the Group effective from October 2011. During the year
ended 31 March 2012, a gain on disposal of HK$3,555,000
was recognised in profit or loss.

"EE

(@)

(b)

35. HEMBA R (&)

ZHEEZA=ZTHIEE
B SR A5 A Fr 2 v I h
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2 30 B HE 1 100% 88 T 250% o A
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35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2012 (continued)

(¢

Deemed disposal of 60% interest in King Future

On 6 January 2012, the Company, King Future and Sky
Speed Holdings Limited (“Sky Speed”) entered into a
subscription agreement, pursuant to which three and six new
shares of King Future, a wholly-owned subsidiary at that
time, were allotted to the Company and Sky Speed at par
value of US$3 and US$6, respectively. Upon completion of
the share subscription, the Group’s interest in King Future
was diluted from 100% to 40%. The Group lost control over
King Future and its subsidiaries (“King Future Group”) as
a result of the share subscription and King Future Group
became associates of the Group effective from January 2012.
During the year ended 31 March 2012, a gain on disposal of
subsidiaries of HK$3,221,000 was recognised in the profit or
loss.

Further details of the transaction were disclosed in the

announcement of the Company dated 6 January 2012.

Richly Field China Development Limited #3 F o [ 8§ & 45 B 24 w)
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35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. EME AT (4
Year ended 31 March 2012 (continued) BE_F-_H#=A=1+—"HILFE
(#8)
The aggregate amounts of net assets and liabilities of Yinchuan SRV BRI~ R A [ R AR
Outlets, Champ Wisdom Group and King Future Group at the date HEEH 2 B E A AT E AR
of disposal were as follows: T
Yinchuan Champ King
Outlets  Wisdom Future
i Group Group Total

BRRN AN EREM Y]
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$°000 HKS$ 000

T T F#T T#T

Net assets/(liabilities) disposed of: WELREEZEE
(B fi) FH
Property, plant and equipment W ~ MBI M 359 495 269 1,123
Prepayments, deposits and FEATZKIE ~ e M
other receivables LAl JE A S JE 232 28,812 152,627 181,671
Cash and bank balances 4 M ERAT &5 R 6,499 1,512 50,089 58,100
Other payables and accruals A R A SR TE
M ESH R (231) (33,713) (204,753) (238,697)
Exchange translation reserve T 2. fati 5 (89) (661) (1,453) (2,203)
6,770 (3.,555) (3,221) (6)
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries H R B 2 W) 2 i 443 3,555 3,221 7,219
7,213 - — 7,213
An analysis of the net inflow/(outflow) of cash and bank balances A ERE AT 2 R MIRITA SR 2
in respect of the disposals of subsidiaries is as follows: WA R BHES T
Satisfied by: AR B 324
Cash 4 7,213 = — 7,213
Cash consideration e E 7,213 - = 7,213
Cash and bank balances disposed of BB B4 S ERAT A5 Bk (6,499) (1,512)  (50,089)  (58,100)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) of A T B A A mD 2
cash and bank balances in Bl S SRITH R 2
respect of the disposals of BEWA
subsidiaries (i) FE 714 (1,512)  (50,089)  (50,887)
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36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

(b)

Save as disclosed in note 31, the Group may be subject
to claims for compensation for failure to deliver the shop
premises of the Changsha Project and a provision of
HK$530,000 (2012: HK$325,000) was recognised in this
respect as at 31 March 2013. While claims for compensation
for some of the tenants were based on parameters which
cannot be ascertained at this stage (e.g. monthly contingent
rental charges over the tenants, which are based on certain
percentages of the monthly turnover of the individual outlet
shops), no reliable estimation can be made on the amount
of the potential compensation payable for this tenants as at
31 March 2013. No claim for compensation has been lodged
against the Group up to the date of these financial statements.

As at 31 March 2012, the Group provided the Financial
Guarantee to the extent of RMB22,230,000 (equivalent to
HK$27,694,000) to SPD Bank in respect of a credit facility
granted to Haimozhai. The Financial Guarantee was released
during the year ended 31 March 2013.

37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15 to
the financial statements) and some other properties under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for

terms ranging from one to fifteen years.

At 31 March 2013, all of the Group’s existing operating lease
arrangements are termed with contingent lease payments and
are calculated based on a percentage of relevant performance
of the tenants, ranging from 5% to 10%, pursuant to the
rental agreements. None of the existing operating lease

arrangements included minimum lease payment terms.

Richly Field China Development Limited #3 F o [ 8§ & 45 B 24 w)
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37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued) 37. MEMEL 48
(b) As lessee (b) FERAEMA
The Group leases certain of its office properties and staff AL B RS E YA HA
quarters under operating lease arrangements. The leases for THAZEWERE TIEE - WA=
the office properties and staff quarters are negotiated for WERB TIE&HESHRERZ
terms of one year. TR B —4F o
As at 31 March 2013, the Group had total future minimum MWoFE—=F=H=+—H » K%
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling B AR A T 51 40 1 3 A 2 AS T
due as follows: KB TH R H A% 28 S04 2 AR A &
M -
Group
A EE
2013 2012
e St TR
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#T ToT
(Restated)
(K& 1))
Within one year —4E A 2,055 2,413
38. COMMITMENTS 38. i
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note Bk b SR 5E37(b) 2 48 48 FH B R 5 5F 1
37(b) above, the Group had the following commitments in respect o REEIAR > AEEAUTHBRAY
of property development expenditures at the end of the reporting ES i A
period:
Group
A 5 1
2013 2012
R =4 —F -5
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#x T#oT
(Restated)
(RHE5)
Contracted, but not provided for EEESER N i 75,867 145,145
Authorised, but not contracted for C A HEEH R T4 3,115,647 3,348,431
3,191,514 3,493,576
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions disclosed elsewhere in
the financial statements, the Group had the following

39. BEATR S

(a) FRAS IS ¥k H A B 20 R 2 52 )
b > ASR Y AR A DL B T &L

transactions with related parties during the year. 5y o
2013 2012
R e e
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#x THETT
An associate: W& Nl -
Interest income from a loan to K E & 2SR AR
Qinhuangdao Outlets Z FLE A 10,277 4,144
A related party: BT -
Consultancy fee payable to JREAS Hh A HE 2 B R 2
Zhongrong Trust 1,693 16,757

These transactions were conducted on terms and conditions
mutually agreed between the parties.

(b) Other transactions with related parties

(i) The Group recognised a financial guarantee fee income
of HK$740,000 (2012: HK$359,000) in respect of the
Group’s financial assistance provided to Haimozhai
during the year ended 31 March 2013. Further details
of the financial assistance are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 10 August 2012 and note 30 to the
financial statements.

(ii) The Group recognised interest income of HK$379,000
(2012: HK$2,789,000) in respect of the deposit placed
with Qionghai Investment during the year ended 31
March 2013. Further details of the transaction are set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 6 March
2013 and note 23(a) to the financial statements.

(iii) On 16 June 2011, Richly Field Beijing and Guangzhou
Outlets entered into the Second Equity Transfer
Agreement, pursuant to which Richly Field Beijing
transferred the remaining 50% equity interest in
Yinchuan Outlets to Guangzhou Outlets at a cash
consideration of RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$3,679,000). The transaction was completed in June
2011. Further details of the transaction are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 25 June 2012 and note
35(a) to the financial statements.
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39.

40.

41.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 39. BRI RS (4
(c) Balances with related parties (c) BB Z &%
(i) Details of the Group’s balances with its associates as at () A5 BA ok AR 2 W A
the end of the reporting period are included in note 18 45 R 2 G O B RS R B
to the financial statements. 1814 °
(ii) Details of the Group’s balances with its related parties (i) AR [ A i R 2 B 5 &5
as at the end of the reporting period are included in R 2 w9 O RS R B 523
notes 23 and 28 to the financial statements. J281A °
(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group (d) AREEFEEEPANEBZHE
2013 2012
TR R
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T T
Short term employee benefits paid to WI%%E&%?ZN
key management personnel Z 5 AR B A A 5,840 7,652
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in TN A — 2D R O B
note 9 to the financial statements. R M5EO o
The related party transactions in respect of items (b)(i), (b)(ii) and H B EH (b)) ~ (b)(ii) B (b)(iii)H 2 B 2
(b)(iii) above also constitute as connected transactions as defined 75 38 5 I B b T R RIS 14A T BT E 2
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. ZBREAL )
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 40. BB 5y 2 ek TR
Except for certain financial guarantee obligations at fair value B T 3% N TE R A T8 25l 2 B 1 1%
through profit or loss, which are measured at fair value, other BAE TS A FER RS > REE KARN
financial assets and liabilities of the Group and the Company as at AR_F-=ZFR - F-_F=A=+
31 March 2013 and 2012 are loans and receivables and financial — H 2z HoAth 5 & E B EF&%‘%\'&WE@
liabilities at amortised cost. WO T DA R FEe BB LA 51 e 2 < Rl LA o
FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 41. 2PAE B R
Fair value hierarchy YNNI

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and
disclosing the fair values of financial instruments:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for
which all inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for
which any inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs)

A L4 i BB T
2T

SE—Jg  MRARAN ] BB A I
i‘ﬁj{%ﬁﬂg (RACFH %) Tt

R4 Py A s A SCH X T
By ] B 3 S IR A P {E
A Y A E T kTR
AFE

AR AT o sy A SIS0 JF 2
IR -2 ¢ JE IR F -3
ABE) BB CIIRAFEA
%g%ﬁﬁgz%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ% BR

i
>t

BJE

HEE
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41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

(continued)

Liability measured at fair value:

41. AP R AP (50

He /A TR 2 B

Group

A 4
2013 2012
TR A R T
Level 2 Level 2

B L

HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T#x THT

Financial guarantee obligations WABS S IR BAT:

- 882

The Group did not have any financial assets measured at fair value
as at 31 March 2013 and 2012.

The Company did not have any financial assets and financial
liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 March 2013 and 2012.

During the year, there was no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer into or out of Level
3 (2012: Nil).

Richly Field China Development Limited #3 F o [ 8§ & 45 B 24 w)

ALEER _F - =F R F - F=A
= F 3 AT A % - R R 2
BE -

AKARRNFE—=F R _F—"4HF=H
= — B AR A TEF R 2 4Rl
G Remag -

ER > S — B B I 2 [ AN
Al 2 W s R AN B A =
ZAEDL (I — T AF ) o



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
f B T AR I

31 March 2013
—E—=4F=H=1—H

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, trade and other payables, cash and bank
balances and bank and other borrowings. Details of the major
financial instruments and the Group’s relevant accounting policies
are disclosed in note 2.3 to the financial statements.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The directors review and agree policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group’s cash and bank balances and bank loans
with floating interest rates. The Group has not used any interest
rate swaps to hedge its interest rate risk, and will consider hedging

significant interest rate risk should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s loss before tax (through the impact on
floating rate borrowings). There is no material impact on other

components of the Group’s equity.

2. < E Be A B H B R BUR

A4 1 = < T 45 R AR Ak R
b BB SRR T - R AST R AR R L Al E A K
TH BB S RAT A R DA BRAT S H At AE
Ao E R T H KA 4 FAR B & R
HEZ TR S A B R R B 2.3 R

A4 [ < T EL B A 2 LB A A
g B~ SRR - 5 R B O E) R
S a0 H A R A A T G
JR\B 2 BUA > SRS

7] 32 )l i

A AR 9] O T 3 2 i 45 ) 25 g B JE By =
LA S5 T B 4 T RAT 45 8% I dt g B Rt A
SRATHE A B o A2 8 NI 0 ok A Ao A1)
A ) DL i LA R > R A
LRGP R SR JAR

N REURA RS B A] RS E) (P A A
AR NS BAL B BRBLATEE 2
HRE CBREFFEN R EE) - B
7 45 B E 2 2 At AR RS 4031 A K R
7,

Increase/
(decrease) in
loss before tax

i 5 T M 4H8
Bm (W)
HKS$000
T

2013 “E =8

Increase of 100 basis points N 10011 & B 2,364
Decrease of 100 basis points I 10011 55 B (2,364)
2012 B St S

Increase of 100 basis points HETN 100 K= B 3,442
Decrease of 100 basis points I 10011 5L (3,442)
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42.

AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s property development and investment business are
mainly operated in Mainland China and sales transactions and
all major cost items are denominated in RMB. The RMB is not
a freely convertible currency. The PRC government imposes
controls on the convertibility of RMB into foreign currencies and
in certain cases the remittance of currency out of Mainland China.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, management monitors the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency

exposure should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of
the Group’s loss before tax (due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets and liabilities). There is no material impact on

other components of the Group’s equity.

<o b B4 B H R R BOR ()

B s T i

N L IPA/ES Y EN S E R D
I Ay b K > T B 5 B I P A
AHHEHUARFHE - ARWTIARE
SRR Pt L RS NN
S Ay AR Z AT R R TN
& TR W B H A B A o

A 4% 0 B I Sl 0 A1 W3 o B < SR
i L L SN I SRR o I AE A R
B IRF 5 i T K AN I S8 R B AT
W e

N RBUNME TR HAt 2 BRI A 2
THUUT > A H RN R 2 5 B ]
AE 8 B 365 78 45 [ BR B A S 18 00 U R
(P B W R AR A P (B B ) P
B) o BFALE P HE £ A9 HL A PRSI A ]
EDN 2 3

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) in

in rates loss before tax

BE 2 B e 1if s 48
¥m,(WA)  Bm ()

HKS$°000
T
2013 —E =8
If HK$ weakens against RMB Eh TN T 5% 56,771
If HKS strengthens against RMB LR ST NN 2 e (5%) (56,771)
2012 B S S
If HK$ weakens against RMB Eh TN T 5% 24,788
If HKS$ strengthens against RMB LRSI PN 2 - e (5%) (24,788)
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

No credit terms are granted to the customers of the Group’s
property development and investment business.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, a loan to an associate and
other receivables arises from default of the counterparty with
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments. The Company is also exposed to credit risk through
the granting of financial guarantees, further details of which are
disclosed in note 30 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Management of the Group aims to maintain sufficient cash
and bank balances and available funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities to meet its construction

commitments and other business operations.

2. <o e R B H AR B ()

i B JE B

LS L N EFIRYE S IIEYE S & AL S
F#R i EE

AEMEMbEMERE (BFERe S
HE M BT HE S A 2 E R A
MW K IH) 2 (5 SRR B 52 5 i
o> RZZEREBHESERZETAZ
HRTAT(H o A% 2% W) IR 92 8 4%t B 365 4f8 DR T
R AE BRI — 2 R E S B
ORI FE30 B HE

i By 4 L B
A A B 5 TR MERR R A 2 Bl IR
Fras ek > A7 78 A5 FERH L ME R mT 43

B M EE > DO H o SRS KO A
BrgiE o
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42.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42.
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted

payments, was as follows:

<o b B4 B H R R BOR ()

BB b (A1)

R EE R R AT A{ERITE Z 3K
Ho AEEEREAEFIMERmT

Group A4
2013
i
On demand
or less than
1 year 1to2 3toS
HER years years Total
—HEZR 1524 3FESHE At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
T T T T
Interest-bearing bank and BT B H A 3K
other borrowings 239,831 888,259 63,981 1,192,071
Trade payables T4 R K 145,584 - - 145,584
Financial liabilities included in A ATEUCGRIH ~ HABRE ] 3K
receipts in advance, TH R R 2 AR
other payables and accruals 85,856 - - 85,856
471,271 888,259 63,981 1,423,511
2012
—E T
On demand
or less than
1 year 1to2 3to5
FEERE years years Total
—HEZN 1524 REREE At
HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
T THT THT T
Interest-bearing bank and FHEERAT B H At i
other borrowings 107,342 114,566 194,656 416,564
Trade payables JRE ARt ik 68,744 - - 68,744
Financial liabilities included in FEATEUGRIE ~ HABRE ] 3K
receipts in advance, TH K ERT 2 4 LA
other payables and accruals 73,900 - - 73,900
Due to related companies JRE St B 78N ) B TE 7,936 = = 7,936
Financial guarantee obligation BT HEOR AT 882 - - 882
258,804 114,566 194,656 568,026
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AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42. Z@h)a\ b5 P H B RBUR (41

BB b (A1)

Company A
On demand or less than one year
HERE—AFEZ N
2013 2012
S Set< T
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#C T#T
Due to a subsidiary JE AT i J&8 2 ) 3K TE 10,192 10,192
Capital management B P

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital
ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholders’

value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is debts
divided by equity attributable to owners of the parent. Debts
include interest-bearing bank and other borrowings. The gearing
ratios as at the ends of the reporting periods were as follow:

AR BB A M T A A R OR A R
AP AR 0 R B A LR AR > DASCIR
FSEPs KA P2 M BOR M -

A 4 1 5 8 KSR L 2 5 B DA A B
A K MDA R $%@Tﬁ¥ﬁ%
R IR S RIARIEAT R A > AMERFER
BB RBE T - =F R
F—"HZA=ZF—HIRFEER > WK
BEAGI Y BRE  BUOREE 7 5
o

AEEMAHEEABIAREREAR > A
B PR LLBE A I HEA AN AL REAR o f 85
LA AR BRAT RO A A B o AR IR
ZHEEAMLRINT

Group A4
2013 2012
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
FL Fi# T
Debts e 952,237 373,740
Equity attributable to owners of the parent BN ml A N EALHE SR 469,927 562,069
Gearing ratio (Restated) BEAMKILR (KHEH)) 202.6% 66.5%
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43.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the reporting period, the Group entered into three

entrusted loan agreements with a bank established in the PRC (the

“Entrust Bank™) in relation to three entrusted loans with a total
amount of RMB1,200,000,000 (equivalent to HK$1,513,000,000)
(the “Entrust Loans”). The details of the Entrusted Loans are set

out below:

(1

(i1)

On 21 November 2013, the Group and the Entrust Bank
entered into the first entrust loan agreement in relation to
an entrusted loan of RMB540,000,000 (1st Entrust Loan)
pursuant to which, the Entrust Bank was entrusted by a
company established in the PRC who is an independent third
party. The 1st Entrust Loan has an initial term of three years
and bears interest at 7.96% per annum. The 1st Entrust Loan
can be extended for another two years with terms mutually
agreed by both parties. Pursuant to the respective entrust loan
agreement, the Group agreed to pledge parcels of land in
the total area of approximately 404,801 square meters to the
Entrust Bank in relation to the 1st Entrust Loan. The entrust
loan will be settled by three installments, of which the first
two installments in the respective amount of RMB50,000,000
will be due in November 2014 and November 2015,
respectively, and the remaining balance of RMB440,000,000
will be due in November 2016; and

On 5 December 2013, the Group and the Entrust Bank
entered into two entrust loan agreements in relation to two
tranches of entrust loans each amounted to RMB330,000,000,
with a total amount of RMB660,000,000 (the 2nd and 3rd
Entrust Loans) pursuant to which, the Entrust Bank was
entrusted by a company established in the PRC who is an
independent third party. Each of the 2nd Entrust Loan and the
3rd Entrust Loan has an initial term of three years and bears
interest at 7.96% per annum. The 2nd and the 3rd Entrust
Loan can be extended for another two years with terms
mutually agreed by both parties. Pursuant to the respective
entrust loan agreements, the Group agreed to pledge parcels
of land in the total area of approximately 242,318 square
meters and commercial properties under the development
with construction area of approximately 70,832 square meters
to the Entrust Bank in relation to the 2nd and 3rd Entrust
Loans.

Richly Field China Development Limited #3 F o [ 8§ & 45 B 24 w)
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AT ([ZEE4RAT ) M=HAESH A AR
#1,200,000,0007C (FHEFH21,513,000,000
won) 2 Zit K ([Zt &) 575
SMMEGERWE - BRLERZFEEWN
o

i) R=F—=%+—H=+—H>
AEEEZHRITHARY
540,000,0007C 2 Z= 5t B 3K ([ 5 H
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WAL Z BN E = A AT - HHE
BBV L EW R =8 %
R #7.96%% - B HZE REHE K
2 A HA AT i By SRR E 2 K
T2 WA o MR8 & 2 RE BRI
ok o AR A B H R T RE
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T ZFLRAT - BREEFGE > = HIME
B> HbEmilize#sa b AR
#50,000,0007C > 43 Al A% i & —
WiE+—H R =F—HFE+—HF
> #R%E A K 440,000,000 70 # it
ZENET AR K
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43.

44.

45.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(continued)

The Entrust Loans are guaranteed by Mr. Leung. In connection
thereto, the Company provided counter-guarantee to Mr. Leung

relating to the personal guarantee provided by Mr. Leung.

The pledged assets as aforesaid mentioned in the Entrust Loans
which represented the prepaid land lease payments of the Group
with an aggregate net carrying amount of RMB450,513,000
(equivalent to HK$568,023,000) as at 31 March 2013.

Up to the date of these financial statements, successful drawdown
of each the 1st Entrust Loan, 2nd Entrust Loan and the 3rd Entrust
Loan has been made by the Group.

Further details of the Entrust Loans have been set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 25 November 2013 and 6
December 2013.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in note 4 to the financial statements, due to
the identification of errors and omissions in the presentation and
disclosures of certain transactions and balances in the previously
issued consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2012, the presentation of certain items and
balances in the financial statements have been restated to correct
those errors. Accordingly, certain comparative amounts have
been reclassified and restated to conform with the current year’s
presentation and accounting treatment, and the third statement
of financial position as at 1 April 2011 has been presented. In
addition, the comparative profit or loss has been re-presented.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board on 6 December 2013.

43.

44,

45.

ek MR EIE ()

TRt ER R AENER - FERIL - A
2% TR ST AR BRI A AT R B S A
PRt AR -

B EE I ALEEN T — = 4F =
A=+—H> IEEBFMHEEGLARKE
450,513,0007C (#0455 jiA 568,023,000 7T)
Z TEAT A B K o

WEAMBHRE AL > AEEC R
RBCHIHZGER K ~ 5 _HERFEE R L
BETAZRREEK o

Tt R 2 — B HR A/ H )
B FE =t —H +hHHE T
SHEFTANHZAME o

b g <5 7

WA B R R M GE4E — L R > A
A EBA LRI R A B E 4
=H="+—HILFET %555 M5k
BB AP A T2 5 A R B L R
SRR A > R B R 2 4 THA
LA HEEES > IEIEZSFHH - F
B A TR e e =B ES
PASF & A4 B 2 07 K % &t e 2
MR =% —— 40 A — H 95 = B
RILRTRE 251 o BAHME 7 IR 2 HLEE
FREES -
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A summary of the results and of the assets,

liabilities and non-

controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as

extracted from the published audited financial statements and restated/

reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. The amounts for years

ended 31 March 2011 and 2012 in the five year financial summary have

been adjusted for the effects of the retrospective changes in the prior
year adjustments, as detailed in note 4 to the financial statements. In
the opinion of directors, the retrospective restatement is impracticable
for years ended 31 March 2009 and 2010 as the exercise will be costly

and time consuming.

VAT 21 B T 8% 2 RS9 A% BB ok 2 A 4R
VR 2 1 {1 B B4 2 SE AR I R
T b AR BE 2 - N A B R B
(W) o RIFEMBEHEHERE —F——
Fh_F-CHF=ZA=+T—HIEFESH

A DA 4 B2 o 2 0 ) A B 2 R A
% FrTE BB HCR I RE4 - RS > R

E_FTNFELR_F-FE=A=+—HLt
R HB W RS A AT > HbREARE
g A N AR

RESULTS E 3
Year ended 31 March
BEZA=Z+—HIL4EE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
mER-ZgE R R ZF-FE “FRNE
HKS$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$000
T Tt TFi#T Ti#T Fi#TL
(Restated)  (Restated)
(48 4) (48 E5)
Turnover R 27,943 50,843 50,554 25,843 3,351
Profit/(loss) attributable to: DN
WA (ER)
— Owners of the Company IR /NEIE: ZEDN (96,901) (91,907) 24,347 (32,090) (16,805)
— Non-controlling interests — R4 (5,157) (20,934) (59,739) =
(102,058)  (112,841) (35,392) (32,090) (16,805)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES & R i
At 31 March
R=A=Z+—H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
I S "R R DR RE CRRNE
HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$000
T Fittoo TiBc Fittoo Tic
(Restated) (Restated)
i«( i @J z«< E §|J
Total assets g 1,883,347 1,596,688 1,604,317 1,015,480 280,444
Total liabilities ALK (1,413,420)  (746,393)  (679,976)  (451,544) (2,572)
469,927 850,295 924,341 563,936 277,872
Equity attributable to: DRNSW/ Al £
— Owners of the Company /NG ZEDN 469,927 562,069 628,495 563,936 277,872
— Non-controlling interests — FE R AR - 288,226 295,846 = =
469,927 850,295 924,341 563,936 277,872
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